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£)) s GLOBAL LEADERSHIP

During the year 2006, we consolidaiied ow.¢ position as & ey global player. Our
strategic acquisitions and expesions in giffierent parts of the world
mamenturm e our aspiration to achieve @ tumever of US $ 5 Bn by 2012.
@@Wﬁh@@h@@@@ﬁ%@%ﬁ@%@d&h@moﬂ@@@iﬂ@m@m@ﬁﬁ@
markel. We successiully our inherent skills to celiver @ Winn.ng
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Our trsjectory towerds globsl leadership reinforced through our
iIvestments i eMerging Accardingly, our focus has on
enhancing eperationsl efficiencies, cost competitiveness,

besed jon delivering value to our stakeholders consiantly mspires us to
infiovate, achieve exeellencs and set new global benchmarks.

@Mf’{f@ﬂ]{ﬂa in owr velue system and strong ethics inspire us to
detiver value consistently. lby the of & highly commitied Team
at Ranlpaxy, we ere repndly towerds sttaining glebal ieadership.




RANBAXY

LABORATORIES LIMITED
Registered Office: A-11, Industrial Area, Sahibzada Ajit Singh Nagar (Mohalil-160055, (Punjabl

NOTICE is hereby given that the 46th Annual General Meeting of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited will be held on Thursday,
May 31, 2007, at 11.00 A.M. in th= Auditorium of The National Institute of Pharmaceutical Education and Research INIPER],
Sector-67, S.A.S. Nagar (Mohalil - 160 062, Punjab, to transact the following business :

1. Tareceive, consider and adopt the Profit and Loss Account far the year ended Decernber 31, 2006, and the Balance Sheet as
at that date and the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vivek Bharat Ram who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Dr. P. S, Joshi whe retires by rotation and being eligible cffers himself for re-appointment.
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vivek Mehra who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appeointment.

To appoint Auditors of the Corr pany to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the canclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting and to fix thei - remuneration, M/s Walker, Chandiok & Co. retiring Auditors are eligible for re-appeintment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

6. Toconsider and if thought fit, 1o pass with or without modifications] the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution :
"RESCLVED that Mr. Atul Sobti be and is hereby appointed a Director of the Company.”

7. Toconsider and if thought fit, 10 pass with or without modificationls] the following resoluticn as an Ordinary Resolution :

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant te Sections 198, 24%, 309 and all other applicable provisians if any, of the Companies Act, 1956
[Act), read with Schedute Xl t the said Acl, the Company hereby accords its approval for the appointment of Mr. Atul Sobti
as Chief Operating Officer and Whole-time Director of the Company effective January 13, 2007, with such designation as the
Board may decide fram time ta time for a period of five years and for payment of remuneration and on terms menticned
below ;

A. Salary: not exceeding Rs.\'5 lacs per annurn with the authority granted to the Board of Directors [hereinafter referred to
as “the Board” which terr shall include a Commiitee of Directers] to determine the salary and grant increases from
time te time within the aforesaid limit.

B. Perquisites : He will be entitled to perquisites, allawances, benefits, facilities and amenities (collectively “allowances &
perquisites ] such as furnished residential accommodation or house rent allowance in lieu thereof, maintenance of such
accommodation, gas, electricity & power, water, furnishings, utility allowance, medical reimbursement, foreign travel,
leave travel assistance / allowance, membership fees for clubs, hospitalisation and accident insurance, security at
residence and any other “sllowances & perquisites” as per the policy / rules of the Company in force and { or as may be
approved by the Board frorn time to time provided that aggregate value of such allowances & perquisites shall not exceed
Rs. 325 lacs per annum. Allowances & Perquisites to be valued as per the income-tax rules, wherever applicable and at
actual cost to the Company in other cases.

In addition to the above, he will also be entitled to the following benefits as per policy / rules of the Company in farce or as
may be approved by the Bnard from time to time :

(il Company maintained ca-(s) with driver(s); (i) Telephonels] and fax at residence; liil) Company’s coniribution ta Provident
Fund and Superannuation Fund; {ivi Payment of gratuity and other retiral benefits and [v] Encashment of leave.

The Board is authorized te fix actual remuneration and revise it from time to time within the aforesaid ceilings.
C. Commission : such amount for each accounting year as may be decided by the Board.

D. The total remuneration including salary, allowances, perquisites and commission shall not exceed the limits specified in
Schedule XM to the Companies Act, 1956.

E. Subject to superintendence, control and direction of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director, he
shall perform such duties. and functions as would be commensurate with his position as Chief Operating Officer and
Whole-time Director of th= Company and as may be delegated to him from time to time.

F. The Company or he shall be entitled to terminate this appeintment by giving twelve months notice in writing ar such
shorter notice as may be rutually agreed between him and the Company.

' Or
In lieu of notice, payment by the Company or by hirn to the Company, equivalent to twelve months last drawn
“remuneration” subject to commissicn included in such remuneration being restricted to 50% of the commission paid in
respect of the immediately preceding accounting year.”
"RESOLVED FURTHER tat the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to take such steps as the Board may
consider necessary or exg edient to give effect to this Resolution.”

8. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s] the following resolution as an Ordinary Resalution :
"RESOLVED that in partial madification of the Resolution passed at the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on




June 28, 2006 and in accordance with provisions of Sections 198, 269, 309 and 310 read with Schedule X)) and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Articies of Association of the Company, the ceilings on remuneration for
Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh, Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director of the Company, be and are hereby revised
effective January 1, 2007, for the remaining tenure of his appeintment :

(A] Salary : not exceeding Rs. 250 lacs per anpum.
(B] Commission : such amount for each accounting year as may be decided by the Board,
{C] Altowances and Perquisites : not exceeding Rs. 1250 lacs per annurr,

(D) The total remuneration including salary, allowances, perguisites and commission shall not exceed the limits specified in
Schedute Xl to the Cornpanies Act, 1956.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER that all other terms and conditions of the appeintment of Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh, Chief Executive

Officer and Managing Director as approved by members at the Annual General Meeting hetd on June 28, 2006, shall remain

unchanged.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors [hereinalter referred to as "the Board™ which term shallinclude a Committee

of Directors| is autherized to fix actual remuneration of Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh, Chief Executive Officer and Managing

Director, and revise it from time to time within the aforesaid ceilings.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby autharised to do all such acts, deeds and things as the Board may

consider necessary or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Place : Gurgaon S.K. PATAWARI
Dated : April10, 2007 Company Secretary
NOTES
1. AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND

VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXIES TO BE
EFFECTIVE, SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173 of the Companies Act, 1956, is given below and forms part of the Notice.

M/s Alankit Assignments Ltd. [Alankit}, 2E/8, 1st Floor, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi-110 055 is the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent for physical shares of the Company. Alankit is also the depository interface of the Company with bath
NSDL and CDSL.

However, keeping in view the convenience of shareholders, documents relating to shares will continue to be received by the
Company at the Corporate Cffice of the Company at Plot No. 90, Sector 32, Gurgaon - 122 001 (Haryana), Tel No. $1-124-
4135000, Registered Office at A-11, Industrial Area, Sahibzada Ajit Singh Nagar [Mohali, - 160 055, (Punjabl, and Head Office at
t2th Floor, Devika Tower, 6, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 Tel No. 91-11-26237508; email address: secretarial@ranbaxy.com.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, May 25, 2007, to Thursday,
May 31, 2007 (hoth days inclusive),

The Company has transferred unclaimed amounts of dividends paid up to March 23, 2000, to the General Revenue Account /
Investor Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government as required under Sections 205A and 205C of the
Companies Act, 1956.

Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants within the validity period may w-ite to the Company Secretary, Ranbaxy
Laboratories Limited, Plot Ne. %0, Sector 32, Gurgaon - 122 001 [Haryanal, for obtaining payment in lieu of such warrants.

The documents referred toin the proposed resolutions are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
during werking hours between 9.30 A.M. and 1.00 P.M. except on holidays.

The Certificate from the Aud'tors of the Company certifying that the Employees Stock Option Scheme of the Company is
being implernented in accordance with the SEBI (Employees Stock Option Scheme and Employees’ Stock Purchase Schemel
Guidelines, 1999, and in accordance with the resolution of the general body will be available for inspection to members at the
Meeting.

Members seeking any information relating to the Accounts may write to the Company at Plot No. 90, Sector 32,
Gurgaon - 122 001 [Haryanal, for the attention of Mr. 5. K. Patawari, Company Secretary, at the earliest.

Members / proxies should bring the attendance slips duly filled in and signed for atterding the meeting.

. Members who hold shares in physical form may nominate a persen in respect of all the shares held by them whether singly

or jointly. Members wha hold shares singly are advised to avail of the nomination facility by filing Form 2B in their own
interest. Blank forms will be supplied by the Company on request. Members holding shares in demat form may contact their
respective Depository Participants for recording of nomination.
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SECTI?N 217(2A)

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 217(2A] OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 READ WITH THE COMPAMNIES (PARTICULARS OF
EMPLOYEES! RULES, 1975 AND FORMING PART OF THE REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

20064.
SI. Name Designation Age Gross Qualifications Experi- Date of Last Employment/ Last
Neo. {Nature of Dutiesl [Years) Remune- ence Appoint- Designation Held Employment
ration {Rs.| [Years] ment Since
A, EMPLOYED THROUGHOUT THE YEAR
1 ABIGE, RAMESHL Whole time - Director - 5% 7873400 BE W MBA i 16/02/06  Fiatindia PviLidf 977
Corparate Affairs & Global Executive Director-
Corperate Communications Corporate Affairs
7 AGRAWAL,S.C. Vice President- 55 10,82,880 B.COM. LL.B., 32 02/05/91 DCM Shriram Consolidated 1791
Global Direct Taxation CA Limited / Manager-Taxation
3 AHUJA, SUNILKUMAR Director-Sourcing 51 2798 41 MPHARM, 25 07/05/98 Harshita Healthcare Ltd/ 1996
Gen.Manager. Incharge of
Pharmadv.
4 ARORA, ANILKUMAR Dwrector-Technology 55 2497044 B.E.[CELPGDPM& 34  08/04/74 DauralaChemicalsIndustnes/ 1972
Developrnent & Transfer LW, EMS Audniors Cherical Engineer
Course
5 AROQORA, LALIT KUMAR Director-Financial Senices 49 2976401 BA.[H) 27 09/12/M  Escorts Limited / 1987
Senior Officer Excise
6 ARORA,RK.|Dr| Associate Director- 48 2,417.534 MSc,PhD. 21 02/03/85 HNone -
Chemical Reszarch
7 ARDRA VK. Vice Presiden:-PDR 52 4145075 M.PHARM, 27 05/08/94 Cadila Laboratiries Lirmized / 1992
DIFINBE.M. Dy.General Manager
[Form. & Devp.}
g ARUTYUNOV VALERY* Senior marketing manager 42 2,851,553 Moscow medicine 19 01/07/9%  Station of ambulance service 1988
institute Sechenova Moscow/ Manager
7 BANSALRS. Director-ProczssEngineering 55 2,549,236 M.Sc.[Chem Engg) k1| 16/08/30 P.N.F.C Limited/ 1988
Senier Dy, Manager
10 BANSAL VINAYSHEEL[Dr] Associate Director- 51 2.523,260 MSc. PhD. 24 01/03/04  Merck ResearchLaboratories, 990
Pharmacology N1 USA fResearch Fellow
1 BARSHIKAR, RANNTG. #  Vice President-Global Quality 58 6,493,403 M.5c.[Bio- 35 31/07/02  LykaLaboratories Limited/ 1987
. Chermistry], D.C.M. GM-QA/R&D-Regu Affairs
12 BATRA, ALOK* CountryManager 37 426095 M.Computer 13 16/08/94  Company Comicon Kiev/ 1992
Engineering Deputy Director
13 BATRAVIJAYKUMAR (Dr.] Head-Generies/NDDS/ 59 13,895902 B.SIPharmacyl, 32 09/02/04 Schenng-PloughResearch W
Drug Development Ph.O. Institute / Group Dhrector,
Pharmacokinetics
14 BEHERA, SWADESH Director-Hum 3n Resources, » 3,582,978 M.AMA[PMEIR) 18 05/08/05 CocaCola/GM-HR 1998
KUMAR India Regicn
15 BHANDARI, PRABHA(Dr)  Director-Requlatory Affairs 51 4,240,036 MS5c, PhD. 22 02/02/89 Unwersity of Nottingham, 1984
[Bulk Drugst U.K./Post Doctoral Fellow
16 BHARDWAJ, MANEESH Director-AP! Business 42 3,049,662 B.E.{CHEM.) 21 19/06/89  Technofab Engineering Ltd./ 1985
Senior Project Engineer
17 BHARGAVA, RAHUL Associate Direclor- 42 2627978 BSc,DPT.DMS. 19 17/08/92 Nafed Processed Foods / Deputy 1991
Packaging Development Manager-Pachaging & Devp.
18 BHASKAR, VIJAYA® AreaManager: Southern Africa 38 2,494,317 B.Sc.Botany, 9 26/03/90  Amencan Remedies Pvt. Lid./ 1989
P.G.D.M. Medical Service ’
19 BHATNAGAR,PRADIP Vice President-New Drug 5 12,357,708 M.Sc,MS.,PhD., Vel 01/07/05  Glaxo SmithKline / 1982
KUMAR Biscovery Research M.BA. Drrector-Alliance Management
20 BINDRA, PUSHPINDER President & Chief 58 13,763,585 B.Sc. [ENGG),MBA. 35 15/06/81 Richardson Hindustan Lirmited / F
Techmical Officer Production Executive [Pkg)
21 BONG, BRIGITALICIA® Human Resource Manager- 45 3192558 Diplomain 24 01/D3/05 ESEC [Asta Pacific) Pre. Ltd. / 1995
APAC Human Resource Regional Human Resource Manager
22 CHANDNA HARISHKUMAR GeneralManacer-Engineenng 56 2,782,873 B.EI[HI 34 04/12/00  Nicholas Prramidtndus. Ltd. / 1984
Vice President-Engineering &
Projects
23 CHANDRASHEKHAR, Vice President- 44 4751470 PhD. 19 28/G7/95 Torrent PharmaceuticalsLimited/ 1952
T.6.10r.] Analytical Research Scientist-l Head Anal.Dev.
24 CHAUDHURY RAJIVROY*  Finance Controller 42 56157114 MBA 7 01/06/05 Ernst& Young, India/ 2002
Manager - Markets
25 CHAWLA,S K Vice President- 5 7196071 M.COM. LCWA, 35 10/07/78 Coal India Limited / 1976
Globat Internal Audit P.G.D.BEM. By.Finance Manager
26 CLIFFE,IAN(Dr.) Director-Medicinal 5 7,397,256 BA.,PhD. 3 01/10/04 Vernalis Research, UK/ 2001
Chemistry INDOR) Seniar [Hrector of Chemistry
27 DANI, SANJEEVI. Senior Vice President & 47 9970499 B.PHARM_MBA. 23 01/03/01  Johnson & Johnson Limited/ 990
Regional Direcior-Asia & CIS Vice President-Sales & Marketing
28 DHAR,SUBHASH GeneralManager-Engineering 46 2413414 BE.H)-Chem. 24 0Y/04/%7  Cepham Milk Speciuties Ltd. / 1984
& Facilities [API] ENGG., M.5¢. [H) Dy.General Manager [Technicat}




Sl. MName Designation Age Gross Qualifications Experi- Date of Last Employment/ Last
No. INature of Duties| |Years) Remune- ence Appoint- Designation Held Employment
ration  [Rs.] |Yearsl ment Since
29 DHINGRA, HEMANT Director-Finance 38 2,695,477 B.COM.[HONSI, 7 10/07/8%  None -
LCWA.
30 EASWAR,TL Director-API Manufacturing 47 3,651,586 B.TECH. 24 12/10/98  Sun Pharmaceuticals Limited / 19%4
[Chem, Engg.l General Manager (Operations}
31 GADE.SM. Associate Director- 41 2736955 M.CHEM.ENG. 20 07/10/92  Indian Organic Chemicals 198%
Chermical Research Limited/ Sr.Officer-Design/
Devp/Projects
32 GANJOO, UDBHAV irector-Human Resources 47 3762236 B.Sc.LLB. 23 1W09/97 Turner Mirmson Group/ 1992
[R&D, Gtobal Quality & P.G.O.B.M., MSW. GMIHRD Related functionsl
Manufacturing)
33 GHOSH, JAYANT* Sales Manager 34 3.504,545 8.Pharmacy 12 01/08/99  Sun Pharmaceutcals/ 1954
Territory Manager
34 GOSWAMIRAHUL Vice President- 52 8,082,142 B.COM.JHLPGDM. 29 15/1/79  Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited / 977
Strategic Planning Accounts Dfficer
35 GOWRISHANKAR,R.[Dr}  VicePresident-Medica Affars 58 7541550 MBBS, K| 31/07/95  AstraiDL Lirmited/ 1984
& Clinical Research M.D.{MICRO.) Medical Contraller
36 GROVER,ILP.S. Director-Technelogy 56 3,238,079 M.Sc 33 02/07/73  None -
Management
37 GUPTA, ANIL KUMAR Director-Dewas Complex 53 3,694,853 B.TECH.,P.G.D.M. 3 28/08/00 Torrent Pharma / w99
Vice President (Ops.)
38 GUPTAVIJAYESHKUMAR  Director-Ranbaxy CV, 42 3,396,897 M.B.BS. MD. 15 01/02/94  AlLM.S./ Junior Resident Lzl
[Or.) CVLife & Solus
3% GUPTA VINAY KUMAR Director-Production Planning 51 2955424 B.PHARM., b 25/05/84 Rajasthan Prugs & Pharma Ltd./ 1980
P.G.D.B.M. Incharge- Prod., Planning & Control
4D 1RANI,PAURUSMEHELLI  Head-MedicatSerices 40 2961084 MBBS, MD. 12 01/03/59 Elder Pharmaceuticals/ 1994
1Dr) Medical Advisor
£1 JACOB,.B1IU* Country Manager-Gulf 34 3,466,766 MSc., MMM 12 02/04/02 German Remedies Limited / 1998
Product Manager
42 JAJUGK. Vice President-Global Matenal 50 4,849,675 B.PHARM., 3¢ 04/04/%4  Micholas Piramat (Il Limited/ bl
Sourcing & Supply Chain LL.B.D.OM. {.ogistics Manager
43 JALALL RAJINDER KUMAR Director-Medical Affairs and 50 3784938 MBBS.MD, 16 01/04/%6  Springdales Hospitals / 1995
O ClricaiResearch Censultant Medicine
44 JUMRANI, DINESH General Manager- 47 2,748,002 B.COM., % 10/06/81  Syntetics Forms Limited / 1980
Human Resources P.GD.PMA&IR. Stenographer
45 JUNE.JA, SANDEEP Director-HIV Projects 3% 2,573,702 B.TECH,M.L.B. 16 06/04/94 Larsen & Toubro Limited/ 1990
Marketing Manager
46 WALLITUKKIL, AJAYAN * Country Manager 48 3,033,527 M.Physics 21 10/12/9¢  Menor Group/ Senior Manager 1993
47 KAPIL, BRIJESH Director-Ranbaxy Global 43 2,983,300 BV.Sc&AH MBA., 23 01/12/05  BetaHealthcare intl.Ltd/ 2004
ConsumerHealthcare Ph.D. General Manager
48 KATIYAR,C.K.[Dr) G rector-Herba! DrugResearch 52 4,061,390 M.D.Ph.D. 16 26/09/03 DaburIndiatimied/Head-Herbal 1990
49 WHANDELWAL, ANIL Director-Mergers & Acquisitons 48 3.204,491 B.COM.{H} CA. 25  09/08/04 IspatKarmet, Kazakhstan/ 2003
GM-Finance
50 KHANDURI.CH.10Dr) Associate Oirector- 47 2749179 MSc. MPHILPRD. 161292 None -
Chemicai Research
51 KOCHAR,RAGHUNANDAN  Director-Corporate 49 3766 B.Sc,P.GDOM., 26 09/11/04 HCL Technologies / 2002
Communication SM.MB.A, Yice President-Communications
52 KGHLI RAJESH Strategic Business Unit 42 2545587 BSc. 23 15/02/05  Glenmark Pharmaceuticals/ 2002
Head-Croslands General Manager
53 KOHLL RAMJIT Director Finance-Globat 5t 3,732,462 B.COM.CA. 26 1212/94  Telephone Cables Limited / 1987
Manufactunng & APl Business General Manager-Corp.Finance
54 KOTWANEY,H.MN. Gereral Manager-Warehouse 54 2523538 M.PHARM, MAM. 27 14/08/89 Medley Pharmaceuticals Pvt.Ltd/ 1984
Technical Co-ordination Manager
Tech. Services
55 KRISHNAN, Country Manager 35 5,058,230 B.Pharmacy 14 01/10/3  None -
SIVA KUMAR GDPALA "
56 KUMAR, AJay Director- 52 3,146,808 B.Sc.,M.PHARM. 2 09/05/96 lpcaLabaratones Limited/ 94
Contract Manufactuning Dy.General ManagerlFormulation)
57 KUMAR, ARUN Director- 51 3,682,118 M.PHARM, DBEM 21 05/04/04 DrReddy'sLaboratones Ltd/ 2002
Drug Reguiatory Affairs Seneral Manager
58 KUMAR MAHESH Director- 50 2,410,841 B.Sc., M.PHARM. 26 03/1/95  Nicholas Piramal India Limited/ 993
Regulatory Affairs [Pharmal QAR GMPManager
59 KUMAR,NARESH [Dr.] Senior Vice President- AP 54 $.808.072 MSc,PhD. 29 20/04/7% SarabhaiResearchCentre/ 97
Research, Manufacturing & Senior-Chemist Research
Business
80 HKUMAR, PARVEEN [Dr] Director-Farmentation 56 3,010,210 MSc.Phi. 34 04/03/98  Max-GB Limited/Head & 1993

Cy.General Manager-R&D




SL. Name Designatian Age Gross Qualilications Experi- Date of Last Employment/ Last
No. [Nature of Out es) [Years] Remune- ence Appoint- Designation Held Employment
ration |Rs.) [Yearsl ment Since
£ KUMAR, SUNIL rector-Internal Audit 50 3.953.83% B.A.[ECD|,CA. 25 17/10/01  Bharti Enterpnses/ 1997
VP-Finance & Accounting
42 LAMBA, SANJITSINGH Director-Manufacturing 40 3,279,874 MPHARM.PGDM. 16 15/i/04  Lupin Labs, Ltd/ 2000
VP-Mamufatturing
63 MADHAVRAQ, Director- 48 4,443,000 M.NV.SclVatPath), 23 29/01/01 BombayVet.College/ 1939
SHINGATGER! VYAS [Dr. Drug Safety Evaluation Pp.D. Assistant Professor
66 MAHNA, SANJEEV™ Regianat Finance Contraller 42 10,213,009 B.Com.C.A.CS. 20 15/05/89 5.5.5uranad 1936
Co., Chartered Accountant/ C.A.
65 MALHOTRA, VISHAL Vice President-Fermentation 54 6,652,129 B.TECH. 3z 79/09/03 MaxIndiaLimited/ 1984
and Engineening & Facilities CEO-Pharmaceuticals
Planning (AP
& MALIK, PAWAN* Regional Manager -SIR Project 32 3,362154  BPharm., MBA. 7 i2/01/04 PanasiaBiotech/ 2000
Senior Brand Manager
&7 MANDREKAR, Oirector-India Operations, 52 4,468,238 B.Sc, [HI. MMM 20 £1/04/04  Shreya Life Sciences Pvt Ltd/ 2001
SHEHHAR KESHAV Acute Care Therapies Chief Executive Officer
4 MARDUEZ SOCORRO* Reguiatory Affairs Mgr. 45 2977011 B.A, Diplomate, 19 21/02/05 PFIZER/S.A.DEC.V,MEXICO/ 2001
Pharmaceutical Regutatory Manager
Administrator
@ MATHUR RAJEEVS, Director-Pharma Research 2] 2,692,552 M.PHARM. 16 01/05/96 Morepan Laboratories Ltd/ 935
Manager-Production
70 MEHANDROQ,SANDEEP  Director-Finance R&D 45 3,208,734 B.COM.[Hons),C.A. 21 D7/08/95 Capham Milk Specialities Limited/ 1994
DGM-[F]
71 MOHAN, 5. $BU Head-Respiratory & 47 2,553,227 BA 25 G2/01/04  Astrazeneca Pharma Limited / w4
Marketing Excellence Sales & Marketing Director
72 MONIF, TAUSIF [Or.) Vice President- 43 4421655 MPHARM. PhD. 17 30/04/93 C.D.R.I./5r, ResearchFellow 198%
Clinical Pharmacology and
Pharrmacokinetics
73 MORALES, LUIS Commercial Director 57 5087121 Diplomate 1n 5 24/01/05 GRUPOQIFACQ, SA.DECV, 2004
ROBERTO * High Direction MEXICQO/ Commercial Director
74 MAKRA,RAJENDER Vice President- 54 4,270,035 B.TECH.[Chem.], 20 01/09/05 Nicholas Piramallndia Ltd/ 2002
Glebal APl Business MB.A. Exec.Cirector
75 PALIWAL, JYOT) KUMAR [Dr.] Director-Metabolism & 52 4,023,578 M.PHARM., Ph.O. 23 28/D6/05  Wockhard: Lid/Vice President- 2004
Pharmacokinetics , Chermical Research
T PAREWH, RAMESH Vice Preswdent- 55 5,203,149 B.PHARM. 7 WAYTS  Thnifty Stores/ Pharmacist o5
Pharma Manufacturing
77 PATAWARI SK. Company Secretary 51 3919,358 M.COM. LL.B., bsl 2712/84  The Institute of Company 1981
. ACS Secretanies of India /
Assistant Director-Research
78 POPLI,HARVINDER[Dr)  Head-Inlicensing 43 2497915 M.PHARM.PhD. 16 31/03/00 College of Pharmacy/ Lixdl
Teaching
7 PRASAD,MOHAN [Dr) Director-Chemical Research 50 3,186,402 M.S5c¢.Ph.D. 22 30/03/98  Lupin Laboratories Limited / 1984
Senior ManagerIR&D)
80 PUROHIT,AK.[Dr) Vice President- 54 6,121,945 M.B.B.S.MD. 26 3112/9¢ Cadila Laboratones f 1983
International Markating Medical Advisor
Development
81 RAMASUNDAR,RAMS. President & CFQ 5 17,066,141 B.COM,C.S.C.A, 28 15/10/03  Nipuna Services Limited, 2003
P.G.D.M. Hyderabad/ Chief Operating Officer
82 RAMPAL ASHOKKUMAR  Vice President- 54 7,156,755 M.PHARM. 28 03/04/97 Ranbaxy Lilly Co./ K95
PharmaResearch & NDDS Director-Pharma Research
B3 RANGARAJAN,S. Director- 57 3,853,477 MSe 34 03/0%/93  United Brewanes Lirmited / 1990
Quality Assurance [API] Manager-Quality Assurance
84 RAVEENDRAN,B. Head- 53 3038900 BA. 32 27/04/04  Parke-Daws & Pfizerf 1998
i Logistics and Cornmercial Controtler-Distt
B85 RAY,ABHINT(Dr) Director-Pharmacology 47 3,142,857 M.PHARM., 23 31/07/95  University of Ottawa/ 1992
M.Sc., Ph.O. Post-Doctorate
85 SACHDEVA, Director-Legal 40 2,858,201 B.Sc.LLM. 16 14/03/98 Essar Telecom Ltd/ 1996
RAJBEER SINGH Manager-Legal
87 SAHA, NILANJAN [Dr.) Head-Clinical Pharmacology 44 481417 M.B.BS,MD,DM. 12 21/10/04 Dabur Research Foundation, 2002
and Development Sahbabad /Head-Clinical Research
88 SAIGAL, MUNISH Director-Forex Operations 52 3.873262 MSc.[H 27 2%9/69/95 BniskForeign Exchange 1993
Company / Vice President
89 SAINI, Girector-Bigtechnology 30 4,778,725 MSc,PhD. 18 13/05/02 Alphagene Inc. MA, USA/ 2000
KULVINDER SINGH (Dr,) Associate Director
90 SANDHU. GURPREET Director-APY Mar-eting 4 2.868,702 BSc HLMBA, 19 0208/04 Matox Lifesciences AG [Zunch)/ 2003
Vice President
1 SENTHILMATHAN, ANAND *  Regional Manager 41 6,939,481 B.Sciencewith 19 N/01/02  Mega Preduct Lid./ 799

Post Graduation in
Marketing

International Marketing Manager




5. Name Designation Age Gross Qualifications Experi- Oate ot Last Employment/ Last
MNo. [Nature of Duties] [Years) Remune- ence Appoint- Designation Held Emplayment
ration {Rs.| IYears] ment Since
92 SETHLVIJAY Director-Business Solutions 39 3.960,530 B.TECH.P.GDIE., 17 31/07/96 TataConsultancy Services/ e
P.G.DMM. CISA Assistant Consultant
§3 SHARMA, DEBAJITSEN Regional Financial Controlter, 42 2,473,183 B.COM,CA. 14 0111/01  Reckitt Benckiser [l Ltd. / 1952
India Region Finance Manager
94 SIBAL, RAJERY SBU Head-5olus 38 2484174 B.Sc.,B.Ed. 14 01/01/03  Lupin Laboratories Ltd./ 170
Regm. Mgr.
95 SIM, KOHOON * Head - Business Development 41 4,062,012 B.Sc.Pharm. 18 01/09/02 ICN Pharmaceuticals/ 1959
{NUS-S'pore] Sales & Mkt. Director - ASEAN
% SINGH, ADITYA Director-Carporare Human 42 4,859,995 M.A.[Economics] 7 22/11/04 Colgate-Palmolive [India) Ltd. / 154
Resources & Global Manager-Corp IR &
Ceonsumer Healthcare HR Generalist
97 SINGH,BHUPENCRA™ FWA Business Manager 3 2,966,084 M.B.A, Marketing 7 15/10/99  Core Healthcare Ltd./ 1954
Management, B Sc, Manager Exports
Physics, Certtficate
de Francaise;
98 SINGH, GURSHARAN* CountryManager 38 3,070,183 B.Sc. [Maths), 14 01/10/02  Unichem Laborateries Ltd./ 798
M.5¢. [Pre - Maths] Country Managar
% SINGH, HARPREET * GeneralManager inance 40 6444169 B.Com. CA. 15 07/08/91  None -
100 SINGH, HARSHARAN Director-Taxation “45 3,627,307 B.LCOM.C.A. 23 13/1/85  Sethi & Mehra/Adicle Clerk 19€2
101 SINGH, CEQ and Managing Director 34 45749981 B.A MBA. 13 25/05/98  MerntlLynch, Singapere / 1997
MALYINDER MOHAN Summer Assaciate, Corp. Finance
102 SINGH, MANINDER Yice President-Global 43 4,822,323 B.COM.HI C.A 8 17/10/88  Harji Engineening Works [P]Ltd. / 19E8
Treasury and Insurance Finance Manager
103 SINGH,RAJAN BIR Director-Systems 46 3122,248 B.5c[Elect.Engg.], 23 17/01/94  Wiproinfotech Liimited / 1950
PGD.CA AreaSuppart Manager
104 SINGH,RAJENDER Associate Director-DRA 3 2419,657 M.PHARM. 1 03/03/93  Systopic Laboratories Pvt.Ltd./ 19%3
Production Development Executive
105 SINGH. VK. Director- 39 2587579 B.CE.MAB. 18 03/04/00 G.Premjee TradingLimited/ 1954
Busmess Developnent Marketing Manager &
Vice President
106 SINGLA, AJAY KUMAR Assaciate Directoi - 37 2,438,035 M.PHARM. 14 23/06/99  Knoll Pharmaceuticals Ltd., Goa/ 1956
Pharma Research Product Developrnent Executive
107 SINHA, K.D.|Dr.) Director-Works 51 2,442,034 MTECH, 28 12111/88  Johnson & Johnson/ 1994
Ph.0.[TECH] Technical Executive
108 SOBTI ATUL Chief Operating Officer and 52 12243718 BA[HLP.G.DBM. 30 17/10/05 Hero Honda Motors Ltd/ 1998
Whole time - Director Sr¥VP-Sales & Mktg./
Exec.Director-Bus.Ops.
109 SONI, RAVI KUMAR * Country Manager Ky 8,760,243 B.Pharm,M.BA. 17 31/06/90  None -
N0 TEMPEST,BRIANW.[Dr]  Chief Mentor and 59 49,674,867 B.5c.[HIChem,, 35 I04/01  Fisens/Worldwide Commercial 1962
Executive Vice Chairman Ph.D.in Cperations Director
Polymer Chem.
M THAKAR, PRAPHULLA® Plant Manager ¥ 2,964,486 B.Pharmacy 17 04/11/89  Plethico Labs/ 1999
Production Chermist
112 THYE, KEVINTANKENG®  RegionalHead- 47 5682974 MBA BSc, 25 24/10/05  Guoco Land Ltd. / 2004
Human Resources, Asia Pacific Diploma P.Mgt. Group HR Head
113 TRIVEDI, JAYESHS, Head-Qutsourcin 49 2462591 BPHARM. 27 '9/08/04 NicholasPiramal(l) Ltd/ 1984
Vice President-Outsourcing
114 UPADHYAY, DILIP J.(Dr.) Associate Director- 44 2,552,072 MSc, PhD. 22 C2/06/03 WockhardtLtd/ 1748
Microbiclogy Dy.ChiefRRes.5c.
115 UPENDRA,UDAI Vice President- 54 10473832 BBA[BHULMBA. 35  16/04/01 Colgate Palmolive IndiaLimited/ 1992
Global Human Resources Vice President-Human Resources
' 116 VARGHESE, BIlIU General Manager-_egal 35 2849438 BA.LLBMLL. 9 "2/05/05 Naorton Rose International Law 2004
C.ICL. Firm/Lawyer
N7 VASUDEVA, Country Manager 48 7,935,864 Phammacist 28 C3/08/93 Glaxe Laboratories Ltd./ 1978
TAVINDER JITSINGH * Regional SalesManager
8 VIJAK Director-Blue-R & Maxxm 56 3136596 BSc,DOQP. 3%  03/04/03 CadilaPharmaceuticals Ltd/ 196
C.LEM. Head-SBU [Generics & Vat.)
119 VISWANATHAN K.Y * Area Manager: North Africa 34 4,269,367 M.ScH,P.GD.M. 0 03/06/96  Mone -
120 VOLPINA, MATALIA* Business Manager -Ethical 41 3,886,210 MBBS. 15 $1/03/05  Schering Plough Ltd. / 1995
MarketingManager
121 WAGLE, PRAKASH G. Director-Environraent, 53 3968202 B.TECH. kil 01/03/04  ICYIndiaLimited/ 2000
. Health & Safety Corp.Engg. & SHE Manager
122 YAGNIK, BHAGWAT Vice President- 48 5484575 B.Sc. MA. 19 12/01/03  Biological E.Limited / 1999

Global Hurman Resources

{Psychologyl, M.PHIL.

Director-Corporate Affairs




51.  Mame Designaticn Age Gress Qualifications Experi- Date of Last Employment/ Last
No. [Nature of Duties} [Years] Remune- ence Appaint- Designation Held Employment
ration [Rs.| [Years] ment Since
B. EMPLOYED FOR PART OF THE YEAR
1 AHLUWALIA LALIT Vice President- 55 6,359,589 B.COM..C.A 30 09/04/01 The Gillstte India Lirmited /
Business Finance Oirector-Projects 1992
2 BAJAJNITISH Senior Brand Manager 33 965470 B.TECH. P.G.DM. 12 3C/06/03  Heinz tndia Pvt Ltd/ 1998
Product Manager
3 BALACHANDRAN, Group Leader 43 465,352 M.Sc.,Ph.D. il 02/06/02 V.Polytechniclnst. /Researcher 1999
SARALAIDr)
4 BHOLE,ABHAY GeneralManager-Iriternationat 36 441203 B.E.MBA 13 30/09/02 ConcepPharmaceuticais Limited /
Marketing Development GM-Exports 2002
5 BISHEN, SHYAM [Dr.} Vice President-Stretegy 46 8216832 PhD.MBA. 17 12/04/05 HenrySchein, Inc./Vice 2003
Planning and Development President, Business Development
& BRISKMAN, DAVID Vice Presidentand 41 3932716 MEOR&ZIE,MB.A. 18 07/08/06 Schering-Plough Cerporation, 2002
Chief Infermation Officer New Jersey and Singapore /
Director. Global ERP
Centre of Excellence
7 CHABLANI, MADHAV Head-Information Security 41 1679646 BE. 19 0'/05/06  NilT Technologies/ 2003
Practice Leader, Sr.Proj Manager
8 CHATTERJEE. Senior Manager- 35 927488 BA.DLL,MPM. 12 01/08/02 Xansa lIndia) Limited / 2000
JOYEETA LASKAR Human Resources Manager-HR
9 CHOPRA,SANJAY Senior Manager- 32 456995 D.CE n 01/11/04  Sapient Corporation, Gurgaon/ 2004
Research Information Senior Software Engineer
10 DEKA, SIVANI SARMA Group BrandManager- 3 224,408 B.Sc,P.GDBA. 8 26/09/03  Nicholas Piramal{llLtd/ 1798
Super Spacialties BDO
1 DESHPANDE,S.P. Senior Manager-Production 47 379,356 M.PHARM. 24 22/01/92 BAIF Labs. Ltd./Prod.Fxec. 1988
12 GADI, JAGDISH KUMAR Director-Internal Audit 5% 589,534 B.COM.[H),C A 31 01/03/04 Walker, Chandiok & Company / 1787
Sr.Audit Manager
13 GAIND, V.K. General Manager- 58 4333863 BbSc. 38 15/04/74  Hypine Carbons Limited / 1970
Manufacturing Production Foreman/
ShiftIncharge
14 GUPTA, AMITABH Vice President- 44 3609128 B.COM.H), 20 03/G4/06 TeleTechIndia [jt.Venture 2003
M&A and Business Analysis CA,ILCWA. between Bharti Group and
TeleTech of US]/
Chiet Finance Officer
15 GUPTA,NARESH Senior Manager- 43 889,662 P.GME.,AM.IE. 23 30/08/91 Herc Honda Motors Limited / 1985
Information Systems Engineer Purchase
16 KANT, JOYDEEP [Or.) Vice President- 49 8,060,504 MSc. PhD. 18 10/04/06  Bristol Myers Squibb/ 2004
Chemical Research Site Director
7 KAPUR, VIVEK Group Leader 3 1,051,889 M.PHARM. 13 0°/08/36 JKPharmaceuticals/ 1996
Assistant Consultant
18 KHERA,BRLJ(Dr) Director-Intellectual Property 48 1,855,831 M.Sc,MPHIL PRD. 22 12/38/84  Naone -
19 KSHIRSAGAR, VIJAY U. Director- 50 1952,541 M.Sc.,D.BM. 32 19/02/01  Sun Pharmaceuticals Limited / 1997
Quality Assurance [Pharmal Head-Quality
20 LAHIRI, SASWATA [Or.] Group Leader 38 589,213 MSc.PhD, 8 16/04/07  Lupin Laboratories Limited / 200
Scientist
21 MADAN, SAMEER General Manager-Finance 41 1858635 B.COM.[H),CA. 14 09/10/95 Empire Finance Company Limited/ 1995
ManagerM.B.D
22 MALHOTRA, ATUL Presdent - North America 51 9728168 B.TECH. 30 16/04/01  Hindustan LeverLimited/ W%
Category Development Manager
23 MANCHANDAAC. General Manager- 53 2316979 M.TECH. DIF 27 07/05/%6  Lupin Chemicals Limited/ 1992
Manufacturing SeniorManager-Production
24 MEHTA, KAMAL Group Leader 3% 842,954 MPHARM. 12 25/09/01  Orchid Healthcare/ %
Aszstt Manager-Formulations
25 MISRA, CHANAKYA Senior Manager- 32 1261769 B.PHARM.MBA 9 13/03/00 Glaxoindia Limited/ w7
Marketing & Sales|l.ifeCare] Praduct Manager
2 MITRA, MOLOY Associate Directar- 45 1727242 M ScICHEM.] 21 03/03/85 None -
Analytcal Research
27 MITTAL.PX Senior Manager-Warehouse 58 1,332,852 DIP.INME. 37 05/07/88 H.P.Labellette [India) Pvt.Ltd./ 1987
Factory Suprintendent
28 MOITRA, RAJARSHIM. Manager-Human Resources 27 228,243 B.Sc.MA.(TISS] 3 02/06/03 None -
29 NAGAPRASAD,V. Associate Director- ¥ 981456 M.PHARM. 14 05/06/00 Dr Reddy's Laboratories Limited/ 1997
PharmaResearch Assistant Manager
30 NAIR,B.S.{Dr) Head-Medical Services 46 1539362 MBBS. 7 01/29/02  Croslands/GM-Medicat Services 1999
31 NATARAJAN, M. General Manager- 50 1462473 B.COM. ol 14/01/86  ZuanAgroChemicals Ltd./ 1974

Business Solutions

Accounts Asstt.& Supply and
Distribution Supvervisor




Sl Name Designation Age Gross Quatifications Experi- Date of Last Employment/ Last
No. [Nature of Dutiesl IYearsi Remune- ence Appoint- Cesignation Held Employment
ration  [Rs.] [Years) ment Since
32 NATRAJAN, SREEVATSAG. GeneralManager- 3 905.316 M.5c, B.PHARM. 7 11/09/06  Vertex Pharmaceuticals, 2006
Project Management ' Cambndge /Senior Program
Manager
33 PANT.NEERAJ General Manager- 39 2476271 MPHARM, 14 18/08/03  Plizer Lirited / Manager- 2002
Regulatory Affairs Regulatory Affairs
34 PANT, NEETI Group Leader 35 47,519 MPHARM. 9 0107497  Mone -
35 PRAKASH,SM. Senior Manager- 3% 435258 MSc. MBA. 10 25/08/03 Royallndian Ra (Indial 2003
Project Management Enterprises Pvt Ltd/
Manager-Bus.Devp.
35 PURI,SANDEEP General Manager- 44 2,347,268 B.COM.,CA. 16 D1/62/97  Jupster Investments Pyt Ltd. / 1990
Accounts and Commercial Officer Trainee
37 RAJURKAR,ANIRUDDHAP. Serior Manager- 35 411976 M.PHARM. M.BA. i 20/04/04  Atembic Limited f Ltesd
Therapy Marketing Marketing Manager
38 RAMADURALG, Manager-Infarmation Systems 44 476,187 B.AIECO.) 22 05/06/85 Complete Export/Assistant 1984
39 RAMESH BHARATHI Group Leader 39 261442 MSc 16 26/12/04  Dr.Reddy's Labs Ltd/Manager 2004
40 RAMESH,R. General Manager- 42 850,630 B.COM,DIPINTTR 22 16/01/89  N.T.P.C. Limited/ Steno Typist 1985
Glohal Sourcing
41 RAVILHV. General Manager-Sales 42 248953 BSc. 22 01/01/05 Craslands Res.Labs. Ltd/ 1985
Head-Sales
42 SABNIS, MANISH GeneralManager, Sales 37 17,549 BEMMS. 16 16/08/04  BritaniaIndustres Ltd/ 28002
Nattonal Sales Manager
[Dairy Products|
43 SAWHNEY, GIRISH{Dr.] Group Leader a3 702,576 MB.BS, MO, 8 0&/01/05 Bexterindia Ltd./ 2002
D.NB. Clinical Specialist
44 SENGUPTA, RUMA Senior Manager- 32 728,786 MA.IENG.) 13 13/02/02 ORG-MARG Research Limited/ 2000
Consumer Insight Marketing Manager
45 SETHI, AMITABH Senior Manager-F nance as 825,099 B.COM.[H],CA. 12 23/04/01 Batarpurndustnes Limied/ 123
Manager-Internal Audit
46 SHARMA, MOHAN Director-Human Resources 50 2,515,577 B.Sc.,LLB, 2 30/04/04  Lupin Ltd, Mumbas/VP-HR 1981
[Global Manufacturingl Dipun T&D, M.P.M.
47 SINGH, PRAMODK. Senior Manager-Production 41 381,743 M.PHARM. 16 2512/89  None -
48 SINGH,VIJENDER Regional Sales Manager [North) 39 758,023 B.Sc.MBA. 18 09/07/02 Bausch & Lomb (] Limited/ 2000
{Part-Timel AreaManager
49 SINGLA, SANDEEP Category Manager-VYMS5, 37 452,403 BE.[Elect) 12 08/11/06 DaburlndiaLtd/ 1998
Consumer Healthcare India PGOD.BM, Categery Manger VMS '
50 SOMANIS, MANOHARC. Group Leader 42 870963 M.S¢. [ORG.CHEM.) 19 09/01/96  Lupin Laboratones Ltd/ L) i
Senior Analytical
Devetopment Executive
51 SONI,RAJEEV(Dr.) Assoclate Director- 39 649989 B.Sc., 1 01/07/02 Naval Research Labaratory, 2001
Molecular Biology [INDDR| M.S. [Bictechnologyl. Washington, OC, USA/
Ph.D. Research Assistant Professor
52 SRIRAM,B. Director-Internatianal 45 2,020,723 M.Sc,MMM. 2 12/10/%%  Theris Chermicals Limited / 1985
Marketing Development . Marketing Manager
53 SRIVASTAVA, Senior Manager-Projects 42 374,501 B.Sc.,B.TECH. 17 24/01/94  Hindustan Antibiotics Limited / 968
SAURABH KR. Process Engineer
54 SUBRAMANI,G. GeneralManager- 43 937903 MSc.MAM. 21 19/01/04 Dabur Pharma/General Manager- 2003
Project Crusoe Supply Chain & Procurement
55 SURILSK GeneralManager- 50 1,734,675 BSc. Fa 0310/77  None -
Contract Manufactuning
5 VENKATESH K. Strategic Business 44 1.083,324 BSc. 24 19/06/03  Glenmark /GM- 2002
Unit Head-Rexcel Sales & Marketing
57 VENUGOPAL,MGIRIDHAR AreaDirector-Rest of LATAM e, 2,592,276 M.M, MPHARM. 14 15/04/98 KnollPharma/ L)
Group Product Manager
58 VIJAN,TARUN(Dr) Director-Pharma Jesearch 43 1,508,420 M.PHARM. PhO. 20 28/06/04 Morepen Laboratones Lid/ 20m
VP-Praduct Business Devp.
59 VIJAYARAHAVAN,B.IDr)  Orrector-IntellectuzlProperty 43 3,328,886 MSc.,PhD. 15 27/08/90  Nore -
60 WALIA, SUNEET Director-Research Information 40 3,468,420 B.COM.,CA,CPA, 18 0i/11/05 Ranbaxy Inc,, US/Exec.Director-IS 1%
*  Employees working overseas [remuneration paid converted into Indian Rupees)
# Employees separatedon 31.12.06 )
Motes: 1. The nature of errployment in all cases is contractual. I
2. GrossRemuneration excludes contribution to Gratuity Fund.
3. None of the employees is related to any of the Directors of the Company except Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh, who s related te Mr. Harpal Singh & Mr. Shivinder Mehan

Singh, Directers of the Company.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1954

ITEMNOS. 6 &7

Mr. Atul Sabti, Chief Operating Officer, was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company pursuant to Section 2460 of the
Companies Act, 1956, and the Articles of Assaciation of the Company [the Artictes] effective January 18, 2007, and holds office
upto the date of this Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice alongwith requisite fee from a member under
Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, proposing his candidature as a Director of the Company.

The Board appmnted Mr. Sobti as Whole-time Director of the Company effective January 18, 2007, for a period of five years onthe
terms as set out in the Resolution.

Aged about 52 years, heis an atumnus of the [ndian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad and is an Honors Graduate in Economics
from Delhi University. He joined the Company in October 2005, as the President-India, Middle East, Asia Pacific and Glabal
Consumer Healthcare business. Prior to joining Ranbaxy, he was the Executive Director, Sales, Marketing, Finance and HR at
Here Honda Lid. He has notched up many successes during his career over 30 years, spanning diverse industries such as
Durabtes, Information Technolagy and Autornebiles, He has a meritorious track record, and experience of managing large business
operations.

in terms of the Articles, he being 2 Whole-time Director will not be subject ta retirement by rotation.

The remuneration as set out in the Resolution is in accordance with the provisions of Schedule X1l to the Companies Act, 1954,
He is not holding Directorship in any other company.

He holds 1100 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each of the Company as on the date of this Notice.

Nature of expertise in specific functional area - Generat Management.

The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of members.

Mr. Sobti 1s interested in the propoced Resolution. None of the other Directors are interested or concerned in the proposed
Resotution.

This should be considered as an abstract of the terms of appointment and payment of remuneration to
Mr. Sobti as Whole-time Director and a memorandum as to the nature of the concern or irterest of the Director as required
under section 302 of the Companies Act, 1954.

ITEM NO. 8

Members at the Annual General Meeting held on June 28, 2006, approved the appointment and terms thereof including

remuneration payable te Mr, Malvinder Mohan Singh as the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director of the Company for a

tenure of five years effective January 18, 2006.

The ceilings of ramuneration for Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh are proposed to be revised keeping in view the following:

¢ Ranbaxy’s business operations spanning over 125 countries, an expanding international portfolio of subsidiaries, jeint ventures
and alliances, ground operations in 49 countries, manufacturing operations in 9 countries and international markets
comprising 79% of total revenues.

* Onerous responsibilities and multitude of challenges in overseeing and managing growth |both organic and inorganic) and in
synergizing complex operations in increasingly dynamic and competitive environment in diverse markets across the globe.

« Providing leadership at the helm of a global organization with pecple from 51 divergent nationalities and cultures.

» Current and emerging remuneration practices and trends for similar positions in the corporate sector in India and in the
Pharmaceutical Industry globally.

The Board has been authorized to fix actual remuneration within the ceilings specified in the Resolution. The proposed ceilings

would be applicabte for the remaining tenure of appointment of Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh. All other terms and conditions of his

appointrent remain unchanged. The revised ceilings on remuneration as proposed are within the applicable limit under Schedule

XIH to the Companies Act, 1956.

The Board recornmends the Resolution for approval of members.

Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh is interested in the proposed Resolution. Mr. Harpal Singh and Mr. Shivinder Mohan Singh, being

related to him, may be deerned to be interested in the proposed Reseclution, None of the other Directors are interested or concerned

in the proposed Resolution.

The Notice read with the Explanatory Statement may be treated as an abstract of the variation in the terms of remuneration to

Mr, Malvinder Mohan Singh as required to be circulated under Section 302 of the Companies Act, 1956.

By Order of the Board

Place : Gurgaon S.K. PATAWARI
Dated : April 10, 2007 Company Secretary




Brief Résumé and other information in respect of Nor -Executive Directors seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting :
Mr. Vivek Bharat Ram

Mr. Vivek Bharat Ramn aged about §3 years, holds a E.S. Industrial Engineering degree from the University of Michigan, Ann Arbor,
Michigan, USA. He hails from a reputed industrialist family and is currently Chairman of Shriram Global Enterprises Ltd, and New
Horizons India Ltd. He joined the Board cf Directors of the Company in the year 1992,

He is a member of the following committees of the Foard of Directors of the Company :

1. Management Commitiee

2. Compensation Committee

3. Science Committee

4. Sharehélders’/ Investors’ Grievance and Share Transfer Committee

5. ESOPs Allotment Committee

He is a Director and member of Committees of the E oards of the following other companies:

Directorship Member of Committees of the Boards
Shriram Global Enterprises Limited } Chairman MNaw Horizons India Ltd.

New Horizons India Limited - Audit Committee - Chairman

DCM Services Limited

DCM Anubhavi Marketings Private Limited

Jamnua Finance Private Limited

Beas Farms Private Limited

Achal Finance Private Limited

He does not hold any shares of the Cornpany.

Nature of expertise in specific functional area - Corporate business and commercial '

Dr. P. S. Joshi

Dr. P. S, Joshi aged about 59 years, holds an MBBS degree from Medical College, Amritsar and an M} degree in Medicine &
Cardiology from Maulana Azad Medical College, Delhi. He is a Fellow of The Royal College of Physicians, UK, The American
College of Cardiolagy, Royal College of Physicians [Edinburgh] and Cardiology Society of India. He has over 36 years of experience
in medical profession in India and abroad. He joined 1he Board of Directors of the Company in the year 19959,

He is an eminent Cardiologist and is Director of Maharaj Sawan Singh Charitable Hospital, Beas [Punjabl.
He is Chairman of the Science Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company:
He is a Director and member of Committees of the Baards of the following other companies :

Directorship Member of Committees of the Boards
Fortis Healthcare Limited Fortis Healthcare Ltd.

Escorts Heart and Super Speciality - Audit Committee

Hospital Limited - Rermuneration Committee

Escorts Heart Centre Limited Escorts Heart and Super Speciality
Escorts Hospital and Research Centre Limited Hospitai Ltd.

Fortis Financial Services Limited - Audit Committee

- Rermuneration Committee
He does not hold any shares of the Company.

Nature of expertise in specific functional area - Cardiology.

Mr. Vivek Mehra

Mr. Vivek Mehra aged about 52 years, holds a B.Com [Hons.) degree from Shriram College of Commerce, Delhi University and is
a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, in practice for the last 28 years. He is Executive Director of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Pvt. Ltd. In the past he has een a Director on the Boards of Union Bank cf India for 6 years and Punjab
& Sind Bank for 4 years.

He is a member of the Audit Committee of the Board >f Directcrs of the Company,
He is a Directar on the Boards of the following other companies :

Directorship

PricewaterhouseCoopers Pvt. Ltd.

Coopers & Lybrand Pvt. Ltd.

Coopers & Lybrand (India) Pvt. Ltd.

Support Services Management (India) Pvt. Ltd.
He does not hold any shares of the Company.

Nature of expertise in specific functional area - International taxation, joint venture
consultancy and regulatory matters
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Dear Shareholders,

| am happy to report that your Company has shown a

significantly improved performance during 2006. Your
; Company recorded global sales of US $ 1339 Mn, with 3 net
| profit of US $ 114 Mn. The Company realigned its strategies to
! combat the pressure on margins i its key markets and also
; embarked on major cost-reduction initiatives across all
i functions, which have had a positive impact on the
? performance of the Company.

As will be seen in the messages from the Chief Executive
? Officer & Managing Director, and the Chief Operating Officer,
' which follow this message, the Company's top ling and
- hottorn line have both shown substantial improvement in
. 2004, relative to the preceding year. Important markets,
natably India, US, Eastern Europe, Russia, Africa and South
East Asia, have recorded encouraging performances. ome
markets however, experienced pricing pressures due to
changing dynamics witnessed by the giobal healthcare
industry.

During the year, the R&D function has showr distinct
improvernent in terms of productivity and cost efficienzy, as
well as the development of generic equivalents of new
molecules which will be coming off patent. More focused
effort is also underway, vis-a-vis New Drug Discovery
Research [NDDR). inclusion of the Oncology segment n the
NDDR agenda of your Comgany. reflects a desire to be
present in a very important and fast-growing therapeutic
segment. Seeking synergies from discovery alliances w th

por:unities. In this challenging environment,
sanbaxy is enhancing its reach and leveraging its
competitive advantages to become a top global

o]
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other leading pharmaceutical research organizations,
refiects your Company's growing co mrmtment towards drug
discovery.

The Campany is focusing on nurturing its human reseurces
eptimally. Thus, attention is being gven to not only the
cevelopment of high performers, butalso to the career needs
znd aspirations of every single person working in the
Cormpany, irrespective of their hierarchical position. We
aelieve, onty when a person perceives that the Company
wants to specificatly promote his or her welfare by providing
appropriate guidance, training and growth opportunities, in
Jine with that parson’s potential, will a sense of deeper staff
zammitment to the Company ensue

Your Company is engaged in prometing & caring and
receptive culture of open cornmunicatior, that encourages
sharing of ideas and constructive criticism to bring about
innovation and positive change.

Asa Corperate leader aiming at becorning a respected player
ir the global pharmaceutical space, based on its vertically
irtegrated production and research competencies, your
Company constantly strives towards benchmarking its
internal work processes against global best practices. This
will have to be & continuing effort, since the global
benchmarks tend to beceme more stringent with
+echnological advances, on the ore hand, and increase in
rransparency and reporting reguirements, on the ather.
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Board of Directors

Standing fle fo rght] Mr Ramesh Adige, Mr Vinay K Kaul, Mr Raw Mehrolra, Dr Brian W Tempest, Mr Vivek Bharat Ram,
DrPS Joshy, Mralvnder M Singh, Mr Surendra Daulet-Singh, Mr Shivnder M Singh, MrAtul Sobli

Sitng fiefrtorght) MrNimesh Kampam, Mr Harpal Singh, Mr Tejendra Khanna, Mr Vivek Mehra, MrGurcharan Das

I'wish to thank Ranbaxy staff at all levels, from the shop-floor
Lvp to the top management for their value-hased
commitment to duty and the proper and diligent discharge of
their assigned furctions, which have contributed collectively
to the Company's substantially improved performance in
2006. | offer thern my best wishes for their continued, ethical,

Q

Your Company is engaged in
promoting a caring and receptive
culture of open communication that
encourages sharing of ideas and
constructive criticism, to bring about
innovation and positive change.

energetic and diligent application to their duties, while
maintzaining a happy and nealthywork-life balance.

| would tike to take tnis opportunity to also thank all
stakeholders, including financiat institutions, institutional
and retail investors and other stakeholders, for supporting
the Company through both good and difficult times. { have no
doubt that their confidence and support will be well
redeemed by the Company's Management, in the years
ahead.

Q/L,L_...MM.__

TejendraKhanna
Chairman™

March 29,2007

* Mr. Tejendra Khanna has been appointed as the Lt Governor of Dethi findial As a
consequence, he stepped down from the position of the Chairman and Director on the
Haardofthe CompanyanAprit 8, 2007,




BUSINESS

EYOND
BENCHMARKS

“Our unwavering determination to achieve excellence

* leads us to new global benchmarks. Our continued

_; “endezvor <o deliver value coupled with our

compelhng arnbition to be a global leader propels us
onthe path of leveraging innovation each day.

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2006 has teen animportant milestone in the steady
progress of cur Company towards global leadership. We tock
significant strides towards accentuating our cornpetitive
position as a leading generic pharmaceuticats company. We
have successfully executed a balanced and optimized growih
strateqy by capitalizing on a mix cf organic and inorganic
opportunities. Simultaneously, we are investing and focusirg
on all aspects of mnnavatien, delivery and costs, so as to
sharpen our fundamental strengths to lend further
momentum to the growth of the businesses inthe future

The environment of the global generics business remained
dynamic, puncluated equally by opportunities and challenges
across the globe. The Company, in 2006, witnessed a slrang
all-round performance across geographies. It was an
exciting period for us as our concerted efforts resuitsd in
global sales in excess of US $ 1.3 Bn, reflecting a growth of
17%. We met expectations set out at the beginning of the year
and the profitability of our business rebcunded strongly over

C
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2005, with an 8% expansion in operating margins, and a
doubling of the Profit after Tax for the year. Our business has
progressed well with R&D delivering & strong pipeline,
erabling future growth. We have znsured that our costs
ramained flat after absorbing the sales expansion. The nine
M&A deals we concluded since the beginning of 2004,
encompassing the front and back ends of the business, have
Felped to accentuate our strategic and operating
advantages. During the course of the year, a significant
growth mementum has been built into our operations across
allfacets of the organization.

Global Generics Market

The market growth over the last year has been driven by a
aurnber of key patent expiries of a sizable vaiue. At the same time
Tany markets remained dynamic on account of changing
nealthcare regulations and policies.

Looking ahead in the medium term, the outlook on generics

Lefttoright : Mr Atul Sabti, Chigf Operating Gfficer; Mr Ramesh Adige,
Executive Director, Corporate Affairs & Global Corporate
Communications; Mr Pushpinder Bindra, President & Chief
Technical Officer; Mr Peter Burema, President, Gicbal
Pharmaceutical Business; Mr Dipak Chattaraj, President,
Corporate Development
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remains positive and strong. The gznerics segment in the top
eight pharma markets, is expected to witness double digit
growth, well supported by the pip:tine of products going off
patent. Also, we expect the emerting markets to assume a
targerrote inthe overall growth of harmaceuticals, driven by
growing per capita income, bette- availability of healthcare
and the need for treatment assaciated with chronic and
lifestyle diseases.

These trends augur well for us. W th critical business size in
the developed markets, our Company is well poised to
harness the existing market potential. Simultaneously, our
strong presence and greater focus on the emerging markets
enables us to leverage the upcorring growth prospects in
these markets. '

Consolidation Drive

The hectic pace of M&A activity witnessed aver the last two
years has cleariy been the most significant trend shaping the
pharmaceuticalsindustry, includir g generics. We have taken

sales.

Dosage Form sales constitute 91%
of global sales. The overseas
markets constitute 79% of the total

“hese
$ (\ﬂ%\"faym a4 ore'takbie

g

-—Q

2006

Emerging 49.1% -

Glokal Markets Mix

Europe® .
32.3%

Growth Contribution
sincluding CIS

this opportunity to strategically drive our inorganic growth
plans and strengthen atl aspects of business. We concluded
nine M&A deals amounting to a value close to US $ 450 Mn,
Our consistent endeavor across all our inorganic activities
through financially vial:le and EPS accretive opportunities
are aimed at enhascing shareholder value. These
acquisitions have significantly expanded our presence in
emerging and profitab.e markets, such as Romania and
South Africa. We have supplemented our organic growth
plans inupcoming markets, such as Spain, italy and Belgium,
through the acquisition of product baskets and created an
avenue in the high potential therapy segments of Oncology

' =
e S
¢

Leit to nght : Mr Ram S Ramasundar, President & CFO; Or Himadn
Sen, President. R&D [Generics & NDDSL: Mr Jay Deshmukh,
Sr Vice President, Intellectual Property; Or Pradip Bhatnagar,
5r Vice President, New Drug Discovery Research;
Mr Satish Chawla, Vice President, Global Internal Audit;
Mr Bhagwat Yagnik, Vice President, Global Human Resources




\ Our people have consistently risen above all challenges,
maximized opportunities and positioned Ranbaxy as a leader

in the global generics industry.

™

Yt

and Bio-generics. We have further strengthened cur vertical
integration capabilities and our fermentation capacities
through the acquisiticn of Cardinal Drugs and a strategic
stake in Krebs Biochemicals, both in India. We also invested
in a specialized delivery technotogy, during the year.

Strengthening Innovation

Innovation is the life
force that drives our
organization, its pursuit
is enshrined in our
mission and is
fundamentat to value
generation and growth
in our business. Our
effortsonthisfront have
been targeted at
extending the
productivity of our innovation cycle, while optimizing ¢ost
structures. Thus, during the year, we ensured a robust
product flow into our key markets and lowered R&D costs by
20% over last year. We continued to work towards hew
alliances with big pharma companies to expand and leverage
our New Drug Discovery Research [NDOR| program. Ta this
effect, we entered into a new multiyear R&D agreement with
GSK, which provides Ranbaxy expanded drug-devetcprment
responsibilities and the prospects of significant finarcial
returns, interms of milestones and royalties, going forwa d,

Responsible Corporate Citizen

We remain cognizant of the increasing burden of neglected
diseases and are committed to reducing their impaci on
mankind. We have worked tirelessly to create greater access
to affordahte and new generation HIV / AIDS drugs, and  ave
developed and filed the first set of medicines for pediatric use.
Today, Ranbaxy is providing to patients in over 50 countries
across the warld, a wde range of generic ARVs, at tne-
hundredth the cost at which branded medicines were
available less than 10 years ago. Our Anti-malaria motecule
under development is alse progressing well in Phage |l
clinicaltrials.

Human Capital

Our people have been our most enduring strength. As a result
of their dedication, determination and passion, our Company
has consistently risen above all challenges, maxim zed
opportunities and positioned itself as a leader in the global

cengrics industry. Over the years we have grown into a farily
cf over 11,000 employees, across 49 countries, representing
£1nationslities and multipte cultures, We have ensured that
cur ethos flows consistently and seamlessly across
koundaries and diversity, te bind us together as one. During
tne year we infused fresh vigor in our efforts towards
engaging with our people, undertaking activities aimed at
epp-eciating, recognizing and metivating them, and creating
e vibrant environment that promotes tearning, development
gndoverall growth.

Going forward, the operating environment will becorme more
complex and therefore recruiting, retaining and nurturing the
best talent will become even more challenging. We will be
facusing on developing managers with global competencies
znd .eaders with the vision and mettle to take us beyond our
2sprrations for tomorrow.

An important development during the year was the
intreduction of the position of the Chief Operating Officer, as
the head of global operations. This position is intended to
consolidate and synergize the entire operating structure, to
ens.re greater interaction and seamless interface amongst
zll facets of the value chain, starting from the lab right down
to the market place. A well-integrated and streamlined
operating setup should enable us to optimize our resources
and costs, and improve the overall 'speed to market’ of the
bus:ness.

l.ooking Ahead

| would like to share with you my strong sense of confidence
ard axcitement as | look at our future over the next five years.
We a-e pursuing a well strategized plan to strengthen and
develop our businéss. Several initiatives aligned to our
objectives are currently under way. We have ensured that the
imperatives for organic growth - robust and guality product
flow, and a strong market position - are well in place across
rnarkets. We are moving towards a well-balanced mix of
reverues from developed and emerging markets, and will be
wel_positioned to maxirmize and leverage their varied growth
potertial. We will continue to actlvely pursue our inarganic
gtrategy in order to . ;
accentuate our
presence and
corr pehitiveness on
the front and back end
of our business. We
will continue to

0
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evaluate all opportunities with a view to add strategic,
synergistic and vatue-accretive assets to our organization.

Our focus eninnovation, delivery a vd cost will become higher
than ever, as we endeavor ta reinforce and strengthen our
position of global leadership in the generics industry. Our
efforts will be directed at speeding up innovation, achieving
excelience indeliveryand enhancing productivity of costs and
people across our business.

New Opportunities

Anumber of special projects in hic h-potential segments and
therapies are underway and are expected to be the key
grawth drivers in the future. The Oncology therapy having
crossed US $ 30 Bn* in worldwide sales in 2006, is expected
to become the derminant segment in the pharmaceuticals
market by 2010. Ranbaxy has recently initiated itself into this
segment through a partnership with Zenotech in india, and is
actively pursuing its plans for praduct filings. Through this
partnership, we have also cornm tted ourselves to ancther
high potential segment - Bio-generics. The Bio-tech markat
stands at US $ 50-60 Bn” in terms of global sales and is
expected to cross US § 108 Bn® by 2010. We are also
progressing well towards realiz ng our First-to-Launch’
position in complex and specialty injectibles, such as
Penems, Limuses, etc., products with a market potential of
overUS$3Bn.*

* Source TMS, Sales at mnovator prices
* Source - Ernst & Yourg, Sales al innevator prices

11,000
Employe

Multiple
Culture

multiple cultures.

Over the years we have grown
into a family of over 11,000
employees, across 49 countries,
representing 51 nationalities and

Annual Report 2006 CEQ & MD’s Message

Given that our operaling environment in the future wilt
progressively becorne comgplex and dynamic, our success
critically depends on our ability to constantly re-invent
ourselves, pre-empt competition and proactively address
opportunities.

[ would like to close by reiterating that our Company today is
well positioned and {ully-geared to strive towards its
aspirations for 2012. Cur actions and decistons will continue
to be most centrally guided by the objective of value creation
forour shareholders.

I thank ail my colieagues in Ranbaxy for their commendable
effort over the past year. In addition, t thank you, our
Sharehelders, for your constant suppert and commitment to
Ranbaxy, and fwish you atl the best for the future.

Makictn Mias 0
M TR

Malvinder M, Singh
CEQ & Managing Director

March 29, 2007
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2004 has been a good growth year. We have achieved
revenues of over US $ 1.3 Bn [over Rs. 6600 crores), and a net
profit of US & 114 Mn {over Rs. 500 crores]. Our Glebal
Pharmaceuticat Business performed admirably in many
key markets. We achieved market leadership in India for the
first time - a landmark achievernent. The US team ensired
an effective Simvastatin 80 mg launch, and an aggressive
market share; CIS lesp. Russia and Likraine] continued with
its very consistent, high growth performance; in Asia [outsice
india}, the business grew remarkably well, with a steady
growth in Japan; and our Australia operations were
launched. We, however, continue to be chaltenged in scme
key European Union {EU] markets.

Our Global Consumer Healthcare business continuei to
scale up, registering sales of US $ 35 Mn globally; white the
business garnered sales of US $ 19 Mn in India, it clocked in
US $ 16 Mn internationally. Revital, cur power brand,
achieved exemplary growth [45%), and becarme a dormir ant
product inits category.

We successfully pursued our strategy of leveraging growth
even through inorganic means - and concluded nine
strategic acquisitions since the beginning of 2006. This very
effectively complemented cur organic growth achieved
across markets. Specific reference must be made to the
acquisition of Terapia in Romania; and towards the year-end,
a move towards acquisition of Be-Tabs Pharma in Scuth
Africa. In Romania, in a very short time, we have put in place
various cross-functional initiatives to harness the immense
potential of 'Terapia Ranbaxy.” With good lccal

Weé have grown well, and set ourselves up for a

: global play. The early mover advantage, and the

home base, needs to be consistently leveraged,

¥ - poth for ~evenues, and cost competitiveness. We

«¢an also never lose sight of opportunities and
“alliances in this dynamic industry. Specially as a
kely generics global player.

‘good operatmg -
performance /

LO BAL PACE

COQ's MESSAGE

manufacturing potential, the entity offers a strategic
advantage fer us to service the EU market efficiently, and
cost-effectively. Romania has entered the EU in January
2007,

The Company's global reach extends to over 125 Countries,
where we sell our products through multiole channels. 49
countres across the world house Ranbaxy offices, which are
manned by a diverse cross-cultural workiorce. The
Company's world-class manufacturing facilities are spread
across nine countries. Qur R&D setyp in India is the best-in-
class, where over 1100 scientists are engaged in path-
break:ng research and development. Our range of products
covers a wide band of therapies, with a total of over 5,000
54iJs* globally. Propelled by our performance, we would
continue to effectively leverage our wdth of reach and
products inthe future.

Encashing many spportunities efficiently, cur Global Supply
Chain supported our business very well. The SAP APO
[Advance Planner and Optimizer] system was installed, to
manage theincreasingly complex Supply Chain.

Ir arder to derive a more effective cost base, as well as o
develop on the unigue mid-term Active Pharmaceutical
Irgredients [APIs] opportunities, we created an API Global
Business Unit comgrising APl Research, Manufacturing and
Business.

QOur emphasis on and strength in Research and
Development is the manifestation of our belief in innovation,
and our commitment to expeditiously help reduce the impact

* Sicck Keeping Units,

: oplnmfzmg
’coqts 3
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of disease in the world. We thus constantly endeavor to
accelerale research, and consistently add value, to bring
afferdable drugs to the market.

During the year, we achieved 618 filings worldwide,
comprising various drug formutations across mulliple
iherapies: In addition, we have filed 171 Drug Master Files
{DMFg] for 46 APls. In 2005, we made 28 ANDA¥ Filings
(including 1 PEPFAR* ANDA] in tte US; and 27 Natienal
Filings in the EUJ. We also made arn effective entry into the
Oncology segment. Our future plan s to get into many mare
complex therapeutic segments.

Our Glebal Manufacturing plants across the globe have
heen the pioneers of high guality s:andards for years. Our
Globat Quality Assurance team continually and pro-actively
ensures that the manufacturing prozesses across locations
are sound and effective. There cannct be any compromise an
guality. The introduction of two mare productsinio Japan has
given us the added confidence in supsiying to one of the mast
highly regulated, quality conscious, and complex markets.

Having achieved near fotal capacity « tilization at some of our
existing units, and in line with our growth strategy, numerous
rnadernizatron and expanston plans were set rolling. A new
creenfietd projec’ at Bata Mandi, near Paonta Sahib faciityin
India, was commissioned. Asterle fa-ility at Dewas, and non-
sterile facilities at Dewas anc Toansa were also

* JS Presigent’s Emergen y Plan For AIDS Relef tabhroviated New Drug Applcation
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canmissioned during this period. The
czpacities for 14 key API products were
improved. in order to enhance our AP}
sL te in the most cost-effective manner,
in a relatively shorter time frame,
Ranhaxy also acquired Cardinal Drugs,
ar APl Manufacturer, at Malanpur, near
Gwalior, in India.

We do believe that there s a very good
cppertunity in partnerships. During the
year, we forged key business and
technology atliances. Qur alliance with
Zenolech, in the Oncology segment, is a
good axample.

Ou-relentiess focus on optimizing costs

nsured a goad operating performance
in 2006. We made eificient use of the
Excise Free Zone, for India products. Global Material
Sourcing opened up svurcing from China. With e-Sourcing
initiatives gathering momentum, the cost focus would clearfy
be taken forward with increased urgency. We also need to
relentlessly work on our cash positien; cur working capital
management has to become best-in-class.

Finally, it is all about Human Resources — peopte. To nurture
the inngvative and entrapreneurial spirit of our people, we
enhanced gur endeavors to provide anenvironment of growth
and development. We undertock some important structural
interventions, to ensure a more effective and integrated
glebal operating structure. Yarieus initiatives were taken by
Global HR to recognize and reward performance and
potential of indwiduals and teams. And to retain and engage
the vast globat tatent poel.

We wish all our stakeho.ders a happy and prosperous 2007.
Team Ranbaxy aims to deliver even betterthisyear.

Atul Sobti

Chief Operating Officer
March 29,2007

Juring the year, we achieved 618
‘ilings worldwide, comprising
various drug formulations across
multiple therapies.
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BUILDING

i Accelerating the momentum towards our cherished
sambition of being amongst the top five generic
¢omparies by 2012, Ranbaxy strengthened its
siness, recording robust global sales of
er US $ 1.3 Bn during 2006. Driven by our vision to
become a global leader, we continue to reinvent
ourselves to achieve sustained growth and leadership.

-
KEY MARKETS REVIEW
| O
g Our performance during the year was led by key markels of performance was led by Sotret {isotretinoin Capsules, USP}.
; Nerth America clocking in sales of US $ 391 Mn, reflecting a T-e success of Sotret 30 mg, led to growth in the overall
i growth of 18%, Asia garnering US $ 361 Mn with a growth of p-escription marketshare for the product, from 21.7% to
19%, and Europe registering US $ 332 Mn reflecting a grewth 2% 5%. The Company's overall marketshare in its
of 23%. White Rest of the World centributed US $133 Mn to represented segment increased frorn 13.9% to 15.4% in the
the overalt formulations business atU$ $1223 Mn. last quarter of 2006, over the corresponding period last year,

. s gnifying the Company's growing distribution muscle.
North America Anying pary sgrowing toution
Chm Laboratories Inc. (Ohm] continued to participate in the

North America, a highly dynamic and compefitive market, is private label market and introduced anti-diarrheal tablets
Ranb;xys largest m?{kﬁ‘ Both U_SA and Canada [North Loperamide + Simethicone on 180-days exclusivity basis, in
Am_erx;a]cffera 5|gn_|f|cantopportunetyfor Ranbaxy, based an November 2006, Gearing up to meet future demand, Ohm
their size and potential expanded its team and added 190,000 sq.ft. to the facility.
During 2006, our consolidated sates for US and Car.ada Ranbaxy's largest solid dosage form manufacturing outside
increased by 18% over 2005. Sales from the US market s 0od india, Ohm received the prastigious Amerisource Bergen
at US $ 379 Mn, representing a 15% increase over 2105. ward as the Private Labet Supplier of the Year.

Ranbaxy in Canada, ranked 9th in terms of sales and market A5 of December 2006, Ranbaxy holds US FOA approvals for
share, with sales of US $ 12 M during our first full year of 12° ANDAs. We have made cumulative filings for 197 ANDAs

operations. with 76 pending approvals. During 2006, Ranbaxy received 10
USA approvais, adding depth and breadth to its product offerings,

and filed 28 ANDAs lincluding t PEPFAR ANDA), for approval
During the year, the Company launched 10 by the US FDA. Of the 76 ANDAs pending approval, based on

new products in the U5 market.
Simvastatin 80 mg, 3 "blockbuster”
anti-cholesteremic agent, was the
key contributor to Ranbaxy's US
growth, bringing in ~ US $ 60 Mn by
capturing a 56% market share
during the 180-days exclusivity
period. Post the exclusivity period, the
Company also launched 5,10, 20, 40 mg
strengths of Simvastatin. Ranbaxy's branded divsion

@ Abgve . M Peter Burema, President,

Global Pharmaceutical Business
Below : Mr K Venkatachalam, Vice President
& Regional Director, North America

o.Jr own analysis of publicly available US FDA data, we believe
we were the 'First to File’ on 20 of these applications, which
azcording 10 IMS relate to brand name drugs, having an
aggregate sales inthe US of approximately US $268n.

[n March 2006, Ranbaxy entered into an agreement with
Senetek PLC, to purchase patents, trademarks and
actomated manufacturing equipment for proprietary
disposatle autoinjector tachnology. We also announced
strategic ailiances with Zenotech and IPCA Laborateries fora
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number of preducts that support our expansion plan for USA.

Canada

Ranbaxy completed its first year of commercial presence in
Canada tn 2006. Our product basket comprising 10 products
marketed under the Ranbaxy label rade a significant impact.
With sales of US $ 12 Mn, we were ranked at No. § amongst
the generic pharma companies, intzrms of sales and market
share.

During 2006, Ranbaxy markete:d multiple products to
pharmacies throughout Canada. This enabled the Company
to achieve the No. 1 position in Ciprofloxacin ang Fentanyl
sales, No. 2 for Risperidane and ho. 3 for Zopictone in the
Canadian market.

india

Growing ahead of the market ard
competition, Ranbaxy achieved and
maintairted the Ne. 1 position in the
Indian market, from the middle of

the year f[source : ORG-IMS MAT,
November 2006]. We clocked sales cf
US$ 260 Mn, recording a 17% increz se
over the previous year. Our market share
has increased from 5.0% in 2005, to 5.1% in 2006, with ¢
brandsinthe Top 100 list (against & last year), 21 brandsin the
Top 300 list (against 20 last year} and 3 new products in the
Top 30. The Company's brand bu lding efforts have been
gaining momentum,

Efforts at closely aligning dormestic ¢ perations with customer
groups, and investments in high growth segments, resulted
n the strengthening of our chronic franchise [Lifestyle-led)
and reinforced ourleading positionin the acute segrment. Our
~ankings amongst specialists, viz Urologists, Diabetotogists,
Jdermatologists. Nephrologists, ENT and Consulting
Physicians, have atso improved.

With the implementation of the Patent regime, Ranbaxy has
identified Novel Drug Delivery System [NDDS) and in-
licensing, as strategic facus areas. We continued our quest to
remain the largest NDDS marketing company, with a 7.9%
rarket share. NDDS coniributed 9% te the turnover of the
India business. Key new products introduced through in-
licensing were, Synasma [Ooxorhyiline] and Trambax
fTramadot Flash Tabs].

Growing ahead of the market and
compelition, Ranbaxy maintained
the Nc. 1 position in the Indian
market, fromthe middle of the year

Ranbaxy's ‘firsts’ in the Indian Pharma market, included
Gembax [Gemifioxacin! and Cefditran Tablets (Cefditoren] in
the Anti-infective segment, Efflora Cream [Effiorinthine/,
Speelac Face Wash [Salicylic Acid] in Aesthetic Dermatology,
and Soliten [Sclifenacin} for the management of Urinary
incontinence. Osonide pMDI (Ciclesonide/ and Avessa pMDI
& DPi [Fluticasone+Formeterol] rnetered dose, environment
friendly inhalers, were launched for the first time in the
country by Ranbaxy.

We also introduced products in the Anti-depressants
segments and Selzic 0D {Oxcarbazeping an NDDS product,
was launched for the management of Epilepsy.

Citanem Injection [imigenem+Cilastatin} continued to hotd the
lion's share of the Penems market. Our Cardiovascular and
Diabetes products registered double the segment growth
and our marketshare ir the Dermatolegy segment improved
to 6.9% in 2006, from 6.7% in 2005. Zanocin (Oftoxacin}
continued to increase its share, despite the entry of low
priced brands.

It is estimated, that anly one third of the total Indian
population has access to healthcare and modern systems of
medicine. Ranbaxy has therefore undertaken a special
project to expand its reach across the semi-urban and rurat
areas. With a focused approach, we have grown ahead of the
market at 50.5% in rura.areas and 21.4%in metro cities.

EuropeanUnion

In the year gone by, Ranbaxy ctocked in
sales of U5 $ 194 Mnin £U, showinga
marginat decline of 5%, due to a
challenging market environment

in the key markets of Western
Europe, UK, France anc Germany.

Rest of Europe recorded sales of

US § 62 Mn, with a growth of 13%,

led by performances in ltaly, Spain
and Poland.

We surged ahead to re-balance our business presence and
portfelio, increasing our direct presence in high-potentiat
markets, and strengthening our porticlio through a strong
wave of new regulatory submissions. Three important
acquisitions were successfully concluded in taly, Spain and
Belgium.
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Above : Mr Sanjeev Dani, 5r Vice President & Regional
Director, Asia & CIS

Below : Mr Nick Haggar, Regional Director, Europe

e et ) e e ———,

—




1

New products were introduced in the world’s most
stringent pharma market — Japan.

In 2006, the UK generics market was characterized by severe
pricing competition, ieading to the Company's marginal
declineinrevenues to US $ 35 Mn.

During the year, we launched 6 new products including a
Day-1 launch of Ondansetron and other in-licensed
products, that made important contributions to our UK
business. We achieved a 2.7% share of the UK generics
market (TNS September 2008).

The branded respiratory business grew strongly, following
the launch of Easyhaler Budesonide, enabling the
Easyhaler range to become a competling propositior to
primary care trusts across the UK. Sales of Visclair .and
Distaclor continued to grow steadily.

France

We registered sales of US $ 69 Mn, after absorbing a "5%
price cut experienced in the market at the beginning of the
year, impacting sales wnich were lower by 7%. The busiress
turned positive at the operating margins {EBIDTA] level, led
by the manufacturing switch program, invaiving cost
advantages in resaurcing products from Ranbaxy in india. We
expanded our portfolo in France through 76 Ma- ket
Authorisation {MA} filings and obtaining 37 new ma ket
authorizations. During the year, 23 SKUs were introduced,
including seven Day-tlaunches.

Germany

In Germany, sales at US $ 29 Mn were impacted by the
changing market conditions. Due to reforms in the German
healthcare system, the market grew at 1.5% in value terms.
Most targe pharrna companies in Germany lowered their
prices pro-actively, and all smalter companies followed.
Ranbaxy launched five impertant products, narely
Cefaxetil, Gabapentin, Omperazole, Ondansetron and
Lisinopril HCTZ, all of which contributed positively to the
growing strength of Basics in Garmany.

Italy
ltaly's generic pharma market valued at US $ 550 M, is

growing much stronger as the ltalian government attempts
to tackle its healthcare spend by encourag ng wider use of
generics.

Rar.baxy's acquisitien of Allen, GSK's non-branded product
por-folio, covering close to 20 products, provided an ideal
hase for fast tracking the Company's presence in this ma~ket.
The Atlen portfolio was augmented vath the introduction of
Ranbaxy-labeled Sertraline and Co-Amoxyclav. Ranbaxy
recorded sales of U5 $ 5 Mn. ttis currently ranked as the 9th-
largest generics company by sales IMS MAT November 2006].

Spain

Qursales in Spainat US$ 10 Mn grew by 146%in 2006, and we
achieved a 2% marketshare in the fast growing generics
segment. With the acquisition of Mundogen, the generics
business of GlaxoSmithKline, we expanded our preduct
basket to 40 products.

Ranbaxy in Spain achieved eight new product iaunches in
2006 - sourced from partnerships and Ranbaxy's own
pipaline.

Poland

Driven by our products in the Cardiovascular and Anti-
irfectives segment in Poland, Ranbaxy grew ahead of the
market with a growth of 50% at sales of U5 $ 16 Mn The
Cornpany also faunched Ceroxim Suspension [Cefuroxime
Axetil], the first generic on the market, and Melobax
[Meloxicam], which allowed us to successfully enter the
Rhaumatology therapeutic segment. Ranbaxy is further
s:rengthening its position in the cardiovascular and hospital
segments, through partnerships with other pharma
campanies.

Romania

Tha Company's largest acquisiticn so far, Terapia in
Rarnania, has been successfully integrated during the year
and rechristened as ‘Terapia Ranbaxy.” The entity recorded
combined sales of US $ 73 Mn. The Company is ranked at
Me. &, withamarket share of 5.6% invalue terms and 10.2%in
volume. The Company grew by approximately 45% over
2005, thus consalidating its position as the No. 1 generics

The C@I“Paﬂy s iargest acqmsmon
Usofar; Tgsrap:amRemania hasheen
successfully integrated during the
year and rechristensd as Terapia”
Ranbaxy, recording combmed sales
j?owsﬁ?SMn '
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company. At nearly double the market growth, Ranbaxy
became the fastest-growing company amongst the top 10
players.

The Company manufactures and markets over 150 products
and launched 10 new products during the year. We doubled
our field force after the integration, thus becorning the No. 1
company in terins of {ield force, calung an more than 3,700
physicians every day.

‘Terapia Ranbaxy’ employs a proprietary distribution
company, making more than 400 deliveries per day, serving a
pool of 5000 retail pharmacies and 400 hospitals.

Russia (including Ukraine)

Ranbaxy in Russia and Ukraine achieved sales of US $ 65 Mn,
reflecting a growth of 22%. Ranbaxy in Russia is currently
ranked 13th amongst all generic companies {source - IMS
MAT QI ‘06).

During the year, we received regulatory approvals for four
products and launched Revital - Czlci D3 and Adliv - for liver
disordersinthe 3TC segrment.

Japan

The Japanese pharma marke: with a low generic
penetrationvalued at US$ 3 Bn, represents 5% of the overalt
pharma marke! During the year, our 50:50 Jeint Venture,
Nihon Pharmaceutical Industry company Ltd [with Nippon
Chemiphar], clocked in sales of US $ 24 Mn. Also, two
products, Clarithromycin Tablets and Terbinafine Tablets,
were successfully introduced in the world's most stringent
pharma market, manufactured by Ranbaxy in India and
marketed by the JV in Japan. Voglibose and Clarithromycin
enjoy an IMS ranking amongst the 2 top-selling generic
brands.

Africa

Afnicasales at LS $ 85 Mn grew at 24%
i 2004. The re-registration of the
Anti-retroviral range of products by
WHO, enabled the Company ic
regain s market share in thic
segment. The Company, with its
presence in 43 African countries,
three subsidiaries and five

PO
-/*",\,--1 DN Ranbaxy has ane of the largest
é;, g Fy marketing and selling networks
LA 4 acrass 43 African countries,

five representative offices.
ACROSS

43 AFRICAN
COQUNTRIES

I
L

thrcugh its three subsidiaries and

representative offices, has established one of the largest
marketing and selling 1etworks in Africa.

South Africa, the Comgany's largest market in the continent,
recorded sales of US $ 24 Mn, simular to last year. During the
year, the acquisition of Be-Tabs, the fifth-largest generic
pharma company i South Africa, with a turnover just under
US $ 30 Mn, has clearly positioned Ranbaxy amongst the top
5 generics companies, and made 1t a significant player in
South Africa.

Latin America

The Company's business in Latin America ciocked in sales of
US $ 48 Mn, growing over 21%. Key markets of Brazil and
Mexico, together contributed 78% to regional sales.

Global Consumer Kealthcare Business

The Company's Global Consumer Healthcare business
recorded sates of US $ 1% Mn in India, registering a 19%
growth during the yea~, while the business in international
markets registered buoyant growth. Revital, the flagship
brand, continued to rmaintain leadership in its category in
India, by growing at 45%%, with a market share of 76% on MAT
basis.

LeveragingIT for business

Driven by its maxim to "Deliver Value Everyday,” the 1T
organization focused on alignment with the Company's
bustiness strategy. To this end, the top three priorities for iT
are to 'Accelerate Prcduct Time to Market,” 'Enabte Supply
Chain Excellence’ and Deliver Business Intelligence.’

The successful impiementation of Electronic ANDA
Submissions solution for the US market, expansion of the
imptementation of Advanced Planner & Optimizer [SAP's
APO) system across multiple markets and achieving the
status of the first Indian pharma Company to receive IS0
27081 certification and BS 7799 certification for Information
security practices a. the corporate data center, bear
testimony to our commilment to enhance business
performance byleveraging T across the globe.

Above : Mr Ranjan Chakravarls, Vice President
& Regional Director, Africa & Latin America
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Ranbaxy's diverse procuct basket of over 5000 SK.Js
available in over 125 countries worldwide, encompasses a
wide therapeutic mix covering a majority of the chronic and
acute segments. Healthcare trends project that the chronic
treatment segments will outpace the acute treatment
segments, primarily driven by a growing aging population
and dominance of lifestyle diseases. Our robust performarce
in Cardiovascutars, Central Nervous System, Respiratory,
Dermatology, Orthopedics, Nutritionals and Urolagy
segments, clearly indicates that the Company has
strengthened its presence in the fast-growing chronic and
lifestyle disease segments. Ranbaxy's tep 20 products,
ranging from Anti-infectives to Dermatotegicals, account ‘or
revenues of overUS$600Mn.

The Company has aisc undertaken significant investments to
grow organically in key areas like ‘Penems’ and ‘Limusis’
providing unique competitive advantages. Licensing
agreements and an alliance model have been used
successfully to gain a strong foothold into new therapies like
Oncology and Bio-similars, which are poised to grow
significaptlyin the future.

Our progress in some of the key segments during the year,
highlights our endeavor towards augmenting our therapeutic
presence across multiple markets.

Anti-infectives

The Anti-infectives (All segment remamed the leading
therapeutic segment for the Company, contributing up to
44% of global dosage form sales, which also reflects an
uptrend on the chronic segment contribution to the overall

FOCUSING ON

'SPEED) TQO

MARKET

Driven by innovation and speed to market

we

focus on delivering world-class

genarics. An ever-expanding basket of
niche products and successful Day-1
launches enable us to stay ahead of the
Industry.

0

THERAPY FOCUS

sales during the year. The Al segment is expected to offer
lucrative apportunities, resulting from patent expiries of
several leading global preducts. Ranbaxy is welt positioned to
capitalize on these opportunities. During 2006, the Faronem
[Faropenem] taunch in India met with good success, with the
product entering the top 38 new products of the industry.

Cardiovasculars

The Cardiovasculars segment posted a healthy growth of
60%. This performance was propelled by the US launch of
Simvastatin, with its 80 mg strength garnering over 50%
marxet share in USA, during the 180-cays exclusivity period.
The Campany also launched the first generic Atarvastatin,
underthe brand name Starvas, in Malaysia.

Respiratory

Thz Asthma / COPD segment dominates the global
Raspiratory therapeutic category, with a share in excess of
50%. The incidence of Asthma is increasing worldwide, and
CCPD montalityis expected toincrease dramatically.

The Company registered a healthy double-digit growth of
29% in this segment. The Company ntroduced numerous
new products, with many amongst them featuring as ‘first
time' launches in the Indian pharmaceutical market. The
Company launched HF A [Hydroxy Fluoro Atkane: the prepellant]
bazed pressurized metered dose inhalers, being strongly
recommended worldwide by regulatory agencies to address
growing concerns regarding CFC {Chlorofluorocarbons| based
intalers. The Company is thus welt positioned to provide
respiratory preducts in both formulations - "Dry Powder

" The Cardisvasquiars ‘seqmbe
posteda heatthy grawthof 60%. -
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Inhalers’ and "Metered Dose
inhalers,” using the most
advanced formulations.

The 'Systemic
Antihistamines’ represents
another key segment for the |
Company, with several
leading innovator products
under generic threat. Many
products in this segment will
shift to the Over-the-Counter
{OTC] category in the US,
post patent expiry. Ranbaxy's
OTC presence in the US
market puts itin astrong positionto address such trends.

Central Nervous System (CNS)

The population with CNS disorders worldwide is rising
steadily, driven by an aging popula:ion, improved diagnestic
techniques, increased physician and patient awareness, and
a gradual shift away from the sociat stigma traditionally
attached to many psychiatric canditions. The CNS
therapeutic segment emerged as the second-fastest
growing segment for the Company, recoerding a growth of
36%. The Company entered into strategic licensing and
supply agreements for Canada and US, which helped to
bolsterits performance in this segment,

Gastrointestinals

The ‘Proton Pump Inhibitors' represent the largest sub-class
within the gastrointestinal segment, with a share in excess of
80%, and are currently driving the global gastrointestinat
segment. The next decade will witness patent expiries of key
products from the 'Proton Purmrp Inhibitors’ sub-class,
representing attractive opportunitizs for the Company. The
Company registered a healthy growth rate of 24% in the
gastrointestinals segment.

Musculoskeletal

The demand for prescription pair management products
continues to grow, due to favorable demographics,
increasing incidence of chrenic pain conditions, and
increasing physician recognition of he need to treat patients’
pain. The Rheumatology and Musculoskeletal drugs
category for the Campany. registered a healthy growth of
19%.

recording a growth of 36%.

The CNS therapeutic segment
ernerged as the second-fastest
growing segment for the Company,
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Anti-retrovirals

The Company made
g notable achieverments In
. the Anti-retrovirals (ARVs)
segment in 2006. The
World Health
Orgamization, Geneva
{WHDI, ncluded four
additional ARV products of
the Company in its pre-
qualification list,
comprising different
. strengths of Efavirenz
and Stavudine, taking the

Company’s total pre-qualification list to 12 ARVs.

The Company also received approval to manufacture and
market Triviro-LNS kid and Trivirg-LNS kid DS, both triple
ARV dispersible tablets for children, in India. The Company
also became the 'First to File” such a pediatric product with
WHO, Geneva, for pre-quatification.

Otherimportantmilestones

Oncology sales are expected to witness the highest growth
rate in the next decade, and the main reasons for this include
the aging pepulation. trends in prevalence of smoking and an
increase in unhealthy lifestyles. This presents a significant
oppertunity across the entire cancer market. This includes
generic products also, as global Oncology sales are expected
to rise in line with ircreasing incidence of the disease.
Ranbaxy has entered into an agreement with Zenotech
Laboratories Limited i~ India, for 11 Oncology products to be
marketed as generic formulatiens in the US and Canada
under the Ranbaxy lab:1. The Company has thus undertaken
efforts to enter fast-growing segments and develop a
cormpetitive advantage

On another occasion, Ranbaxy respanded quickly to the
growng cancerns of the Avian Flu virus spread, by offering to
supply Osettamivir witrin a short period of time. During the
year, the Company fulfilled the need of the Malaysian
government, by manufacturing and supplying the generic
Oseltamavir under the brand name Flubalt in Malaysia, thus
becoming the first company to recewe approvals to market
the generic Oseltamvir nithe country.

Q




New Drug Discovery Research

On the New Drug Disccvery front, the Company cortin ed
with its focus on select therapeutic segments of infectius
Diseases, Metabolic Diseases and Inflammatory /
Respiratory Diseases. During the year, the Company aiso
initiated target-based research in the area of Oncolagy.

During the year, the Company received approval on s
Investigational New Drug (INDJ applicaticn from the Drugs
Controlter General of India, to initiate Phase | Clinieal studies
on RBx 10558, a potential drug candidate for Dyslipidenva,
The molecule has peen aut-licensed to Pharmaceutical
Product Development Inc. {PPD), a leating global Contract
Research Organization for clinical development.

The Company is also profiling DPP-IV Inhibitors {Di-Peptidy!
Peplidase IV Inhibitors] for Type-2-diabetes, a selec ve
Phosphodiesterase 4-binhibitor for COPD and Asthma, arda
novel antibiotic antibacterial for Community Acgui-ed
Respiratory TractInfection,

Arterolane, our potential Anti-malarial candidate 15
currentty undergoing Phase Il studies (dose range finding
studies) in Africa, Thailand and India.

The Company continves to forge ahead with its various
research alliances, in order to expedite its Drug Discovery
activity.

Signficant progress has been made on two resea~ch
programs, one each in the Anti-infectve and Respiratory
segments, that are being pursued with GlaxeSmithKine
[GSKI. Consequently, Ranbaxy and GSK have expanded the
onginal agreement and Ranbaxy now has the responsib lity
for advancing the selected cormpounds to ‘proof of concep.”in
man, whereby total milestone payments, excluding royalt es,
could exceed over US § 130 Mn. Recently the joint steering

Abeve, left to nght . Or Pradip Bhatnagar, Sr Vice Prestdent,
New Drug Discovery Research;

Dr Himadn Sen, Presudent, R&D [Generics & NDDS):

Dr Vijay Batra, 5r Vice Presudent, Drug Development

E lPANDING
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THE

OWLEDGE
HORIZON

Our pledge to enhance access to
affordable medicines stimulates
~our research and development
ir - endeavors. A committed team is
& consantly innovating to deliver on
promise.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

cemmettee of the two companies approved a Respiratory
in".ammation ccmpound for further development through
prechir-cal studies by Ranbaxy, to sug port the applecation of
ar. Investigational New Drug (IND). Ranbaxy will also be
resporsble for conducting Phase | and Phase It clinical
st.dies *hrough to ‘proof of concept.” GSK will then have the
opien to conduct further development up to the final
cc Tmercialization stage.

Urcler an alliance with Anna Unwversity, India, a number of
medicinal plants are being evaluated as potential sources for
novel pnarmaceutical agents. The Company atse has a
c¢ laborative research project with NIPER, Mehali, in the
arca of Respiratory disease and another one with NCL, Pune,
in‘he area of Infectious disease,

Durng the year, the drug discovery team filed 34 patent
applicatonsinindiaand 2 in USA.

Novel Drug Delivery System [NODS - Oral Controlted
Drug Delivery Systems|

Jurngthe year, the Company filed 4 NODS products with the
J5-FDAand introduced 3 NDDS prod.acts [Ofloxacin OD 600
rq, Metformin SR 500 mg + Pioglitazone 15 mg +
G.itnipiride 1 g, and Oxcarbazepine 0D 900 mgl in the
dorest cmarket,

The Company has a number of oral controtled release
praducts in advanced stages of development and has filed
saven patents inlndia.

Pharmaceutical Research {lmmediate Release and
Velue-added Drug Delivery Systems)

A-art from 3 NDDS products that were introduced through

During the year, the Company
received appraval to initiate Phase |
Clinical studi2s on RBx 18558, a
potential drug candidate for
Dyslipidemia.
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| iﬂfﬂ . In USA, apart from filing 4 NDDS products, the
\3=27 Company submitted an additional 24 ANDAs.

F F Y
b Nt
in-house R&D efforts, the Compary also launched 56 new
products and lire extensions in the domestic market - of @ _
these 25 were developed in-house and 31 were out-sourced / Global Regulatory Filings & Approvals [Dosage Forms]
in-licensed. Countries Jan-Dec 2006  °
. Approvals Filings*
In USA, apart from‘ f_lllng 4 NDDS products_, thg Company USA 10 78"
submitted an additional 24 ANDAs, which included 1 Eurcpean Umon 32 33
PEPFAR-ANDA and 5 ANDAs on out- r l - Natonal 58 art
s onout-sourced P oducts - Mutual Recagnition Procedure [MRP) 786 03+
In the European Union, the Company made 33 filings for 26 S Centralized Proced.re tocr) a L
products, comprising 27 National Fitin_g_s for 20 products in —Brazi 10 05
10 EU Referencez Member States, 3 fitings for 3 products - Russta (including CIS) 15 53
under Mutual Recognition Procedure in 23 EU Concerned e - "
Member States, and 3 fitings for another 3 products under - South Africa 12 17
De-Centralized Procedure in 26 EU Concerned Member Rest of the World 474 462
States Total 587 518
) 3 Approvalsior 25produc s n 7 Reference Member States
In emerging markets comprising the BRICS [Brazil, Russia, %3 MRP licenses for 7 pruducts n 4 Reference Momoer States and 28
India, China & South Africa) Countries, a total of 95 filings Concernad Membar St s nctude appraval for ! But-sourced product]
' . i’ " ¢ includes fresh / new wngs only, nciudes OTC and ARV products, .50
were undertaken. These included & for Brazil, 53 for Russia include 17fngs onaut- sourced products
linct. CIS), 17 for India, 3 for China and 17 for South Africa. it ANDARungunder PEPFAR

***  Filngsfor 20 products # 10 Retererce Member States

**** Filings for 3 products in 23 Concerned Member States under MRP

Chemical and Fermentation Research [ACtiVe ***** Filngs for 3 products i 26 Concerned Member States under DCP
Pharmaceutical ingredients)

Duringtheyear, the tearn fited 30 patentsinIndia.

During the yea-, scale-up and technology transfer was

completed for 11 new APls. The ernphasis throughout had
been on developing novel [patentabte], safe and
05 15

environmental-friendly processes far the production of APls USA

meeting international quality spec fications. The Company Europe irak 00
also filed 171 Drug Master Files, comprising 46 APls across Brazl 0& 0
. . . Russia linel. Ukraine} 03 04
various countries, and 46 patents in India. China . -
South Afnica 03 05

Herbal Drug Research Rest of the Warld 22 42
Tatal 154 i

The Company continued with its focus on developing safe and © Dossrl iciude re-regietabon and outsourced products
effective herbal drugs complying with international quality ** Incl approvals of 5 APls under MRP

standards, Stringent quality measur es including heavy metal DMF Brug Master e

analysis, aflatoxins and pesticide residue evaluation are
carried out an every herbal preduct that is developed by the
Company. Currently, the Cormnpary has several niche OTC
products under different phases of development,

. Patent Applications Filings / Approvals in (Jan-Dec 2006]
Filings™* Accepted / Granted /
Published Patents**

The Company is also exploring herbal extracts as potential

therapeutic_ intervent;ons_ for multi-genic complex diseases, Area Inda UsA Total  Inda  USA  Total
such as diabetes and inflammaton. The Company has APIs 6 - b o 02 gg
: . . . SH - Synthetic 43 - 43 01 02
identified seve_rat_herbal extracts, for which further profiling  Formentaton . m g N ;
and characterization isongoing. Dosage Farms v - W 3 - 03

i . Herbal 03 - 03 - - -
During the year, the Company also developed guality NDDS 7 - 07 - - -
standards for 5 medicinal plants for their inclusion in the NODR 36 02 28 o0z 03

. . . .. Packaging 05 - 05 - - -
Indian Pharmacopoeia. Quahty stendards of 10 n}edlcmal Analytical Developrment .. . . .
piants that were developed during Z005, have been included Total 12502 127 0504 08
inthe addendum of the Indian Pharmacepoeia in 2004, * These are first time [frish) filings, not snternational or national { iings

. . . of earbier applications “led i indha

The Companyfiled three patents in this sagment, ** These are unioue patents - means any equwvalent patents granted in

other countries or pub ished under Patert Cooperation Treaty [PCTI
have not been counted.

%:

y The Company is also exploring

— herbal extracts as potential
- w3 therapeutic interventions for multi-
: I - genic complex diseases, such as

diabetes and inflammation.
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Ranbaxy recorded a strong performance in 2006,
with consolidated global sales at US $ 1339 Mn,
reflecting a growth of 17%. This reflects a significant
“expansion in EBIDTAat US$ 207 Mn. Profitafter Tax
shot up to US $114 Mn, from US $ 60 Mn last year...
. figures that reflect all round robust performance in
\ # severe| marketsacrosstheglobe.

During 2006, the financial performance of your Company
witnessed an uptrend with a good all-round growth in sales
and profits. The Cempany also made significant investments
duning the year, which have further strengthened our
competitive advantages, enhanced our presence in profitable
emerging markets and expanded our therapeutic width, thus
securing future growth mormentum.

{Global Sales for the year were US $ 1,339 Mn, agrowth of 17%
on a Uke-to-like basis* excluding sales in 2005 from
discontinued businesses. This was led by a robust
performance in our key markets - US, India and CIS. A key
h:ghlight during the year was the launch of Simvastatir 80
mg in the US market, with a 180-Days marketing exclusivty:
the product garnering over 50% market share during such
period.

Earnings before Interest, Depreciation, Tax & Amortization
(EBIDTA] was at 1% to sales, as compared to 7% i the
previous year, Profits after Tax & Minarity Interests stood at
Rs. 5103 Mn, an increase of 95% over the previous yzar.
Besides the mix of sales, the improved financial performance
was atse a result of focused efforts on improving productivity
and cptimizing our cost structure, The ongoing efforts and
actions on these two critical parameters would continus to
further strengthen the Company's business fundamentats,

Tofund the severalinorganic growth initiatives, the Comgany
during March 2004, raised US $ 440 Mn through a Fereign
Currency Convertibie Bond [FCCBI offering. This is by far the
targest fund raising exarcise in the Indian Pharmaceutical
sector. A large part of these proceeds were utibized for
financing the acquisitions of Terapia S Ain Rormania, bes des
sirategic acquisitions m Spain, ltaly and Belgium. Towards

Key Parameters Gonsolidated

Particulars 20046 2005 2004

EBIOTA to Sales % 15.5 72 204

PAT to Sales % 8,5 5.0 131

ROCE % 13.2 5.3 29.6

RONW % 203 10.6 300

Earnings Per Share

[Fully diluted) Rs. 13.2 6.9 18.7

EBIDTA - Earnings befare Interest, Depreciation, Tax and
Amortization

PAT - Prohtafter Tax

ROCE - Return on Capital Employed
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the year end, the Company also acquired the Sth-largest
branded generic company in South Africa, i.e. Be-Tabs, and
this transaction is likely to conctude in the second quarter of
2007. Gur M&A initiatives have and will continue tobe led by a
st-nng strategic fit and compeiling economic rationaie.

During 2006, the focus of cagital expenditure for
manufacturing has been towards se.ect speciality products
requiring niche technologies and dedicated facilities. To
fur:her supplement our cost-reduction efforts and augment
our existing product pigeline, the Company has entered into
various allisnces with select pharmaceutical companies,
irvolving seurcing of intermediates and raw materials and
marketing and distribution of finished dosage form products.

We continue o invest time and resources in enhancing the
controt and risk management environment across ithe
o-gamization. These efforts would make our system and
processes more robust and effective, which is a necessity
g venthe dynamics of the markets that we operatein.

Ta summarize, we believe that the Company today is well
paised to capitatize on the generics opportunity globatly. A
we.l spread geographical reach across the developed and
eTerging markets, a continuous product ariven R&D focus
and the India-centric cost advantages, will coatinue to
provide the necessary thrust for the Company's sustained
future growth,

$ .T\Mm%y

Ram5. Ramasundar
President & CFO

Wa-ch 29,2007

* Excluding discontiriued operat:ons iAthed Businesses)

15.5

7.2
W 2004
—_— .2005
EBIDTA to Sales (%]




GROWING THE

CARE

QUOTIENT
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At Ranbaxy, Corporate Social Responsibility and

concern for Environment Health and Safety are a part of
the corporate DNA. We are committed to linking
opportunity with responsibility and working towards a

sustainable future.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY &

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH & SAFETY

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As a global leader in pharmaceuticzls, we take pride not only
in providing products that enable people to live healthier and
fuller lives, but also in giving back to the society. Qur CSR
cammitment is a manifestation of our determination to
improve the guality of life for the community at large.

Through the Ranbaxy Community Healthcare Society
(RCHS] we pravide healthcare to the underserved section of
the society. With a small beginning in 1979, this initiative
gathered momentum in 1994, Seven well-equipped mobile
healthcare vans operating in Punjab, Haryana, Himachal
Pradesh and Madhya Pradesh, prov de integrated healthcare
services to over 200,030 people in about 100 remote rurat
and urban slum areas. A blend of preventive, and curative
services focusing on the areas oi maternal child heatth,
famity planning, reproductive health, adolescent heaith,
heaith education and AIDS awareness, are provided by
competent medical staff.

During the year, in the twitight areas [old areasl, RCHS
achieved reduct:on in the infant Mortality Rate, from 26.0 in
2005, to 24.2/1000 tive births in 2006 {Baseline 44.5) and a
Zero Maternal Mortality Rate in 2004, as comparedta 1.0 in
2605 {Baseline 4.5]. The Birth Rate recorded a significant
reduction from 23.0 in 1998 (Baseline} to 16.7 in 2004.
Intensive areas {new areas taken up between 1998-2004)

o

Rate declined from 43.9 in 2004 to 35/1000 live births in
2006.

These improvements i vitat indicators are a resuit of the
interaction of RCHS teams with local commumty-based
groups, to promate community mvolvement and self-
sustainability,
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promote self-sustainability.




/

___:]G

"+ On the road to achieving EHS excellence, Ranbaxy has ensured
that its environmental footprints are minimal.

Given the criticality of temale feticide, we designed a pilot
project to understand the factors that impinge upon the
survival of the girl chuld, and to reverse the declining sex ratio.

Ranbaxy also undertakes a number of welfare activities i
Mohali, Toansa, Poanta Sahib, Dewas and Gurgaen, amed at
improving the quality of tfe. We provide street lights, «afe
drinking water to the community and support to local
schools, {0 erhance the education infrastructure in these
areas. Ranbaxy alsc extends its support to government: led
infrastructure projects for communitywelfare, suchasoremn
Tagria Chhotta village, Dewas. Care for the elderly, orphans
and the underserved, form the focus of @ number of our
initiatives.

Being an nnovation-led Pharma Company, we encourage
scientific endeavors through Ranbaxy Science Foundalion
[RSF), that offers annua. Ranbaxy Research Awards aimed at
recognizing and rewarding excellence in original resezrch
work in the fields of Medical and Pharmaceutical Sciences by
indran scientists in India and abroad. This year, in addition to
selecting six scientists for the Ranbaxy Research Awa-ds,
RSF also presented & Special Award in Public Health to
Prof, Srinath Reddy, for his contritutions to prevention of
Cardiovascutar diseases. During 2006, the Foundation iisa
introduced ‘Ranbaxy Science Foundation Research
Scholarship Awards for Young Sciantists.”

Environment, Health & Safety [EHS)

On the road to achieving EHS excellence. Ranbaxy has
ensured that its environmentat footprints are mizrimal. Our
concern for envirenmental safety is superseded only by our
comemitment to enhance employee and community sa‘ety.
Benchmarking the EHS Management Systerm [EHSMS] t¢ the
best current global EHS practices, we integrated during the
year, the responsibilities of EHS management amongs: all
employees. In addition to the Corporate EHS Standa-ds,
Guidelines and Local EHS Procedures that support the full
implementation of Ranbaxy's EHS Policy. Guidelines on
important issues such as EHS Due Diligence, and Greenlield
Site Selection, were introduced. The process of iniegrating
overseas operations ino the EHSMS was initiated through
detailed EHS audits and training programs. The Corpo-ate
EHS Committes constituting Ranbaxy leadership, met
periodically during the year to provide consistent direction for
the imptemantation of EHS Poticy and CSR initiatives.

Environment

All manufacturing locations remained fully comgliant with
Ervironmenial Regulations. We launched new initiatives
targeted at reducing Greenhouse Gases [GHG), conservation

r
o

ol natural resources and energy. We also nitiated the
process for obtaining IS0 14001 Environmental Management
Systemn Certification for the Toansa and Mohall plants. This
it ative shall be extended in a phased manner to other
mr anufacturing locations.

Inline withthe increasing global focus on climate change and
introduction of voluntary carbon trading initiatives, wark was
it ated on Clean Development Mechanism [COM} projects
fccused on conservation of energy at Toansa, Mohali, Dawas
ard Paocnta Sahib. Some of these projects include
in‘roduction of highly energy-efficient Rietschle Vacuum
Pamps, Pervaporation system for recoveryand punfication of
Tetrahydrofuran, and installation of second stage Reverse
Osmosis (RO} system in effluent treatrrent. These projects
led to reduction in fossil fuel and e.ectric ty consumption,
th zreby reducing pollutants essociated with their usage.

Tre Hazardous Waste Incinerators were fully operational,
ard are meeting the stringent CFCB [Central Polition
Cortrol Board] Guidelines and norms issued for commmon
ir< neration facilities.

High ernphasis was placed on the productive use of raw
matariats, natural resources and energy, and on reducing
wastes. Various internal Task Forces and Cross-Functional
teams were constituted to explere and realize the potential
ava lable,

Occupaticnal Health and Safety

With no reportable injuries during the year, we are committed
to enhancing occupational health and safety. We launched a
nJmber of positive initiatives in this area, such as the concept
0° 74 % 369, EHS surveillance at Mohali, Toansa and Dewas.

Dur sa‘ety nbiatives at the APl Manufacturing locations,
ir z.uded putting in place nertizatien through prowvision of
Ntrogen blankating in solvent storage tanks and critical
equipment, ike centrifuges, besides reactors, to practicatly
e. rinate the fire hazard associated with ESD [Electro-static
Dischargel. The inertization process was successfully
val dated. This also helped in arresting the fugitive emissions
from sclvent storage tanks. The instatlation of Local Exhaust
Vantilation [LEV] systemns to contrct the concentration of
flammable vapors was extended to more areas at AP
manufacturing locations.

We believe that a sustainable organization can be built only
with the highest standards of performance on ecenomic,
social and environmentel parameters. Our commitment to
build a sustainable global organization forms the nucleus of
oJrfocus on CSRand EHS.

Qur concern far environmental
i safety is superseded only by our
commitment to enhance employee
and community safety.

O
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. THE COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF Name of the Director
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE )
In arder to ensure sustainable returns to all stakeholders
of the business, it is imperative, especially for large companies *
organizations, to adopt and fallow certain policies, Dr. Brian W. Tempest | Executive _ N
procedures and processes, which {ogether constitute a Chief Mentor and
"Code of Corporate Governance.’ It is important that such Executive Vice
a Code is institutionalized, to ensure transparency, Chairman
consistency and uniformity of decision making processes Mr. Matvinder Mohan | Executive " 7
and actions. Ranbaxy has always believed in such a Sin.gh (Promoter}
"Sound” Code of Corporate Gaovernance, as a tool for Chief Executive Officer
highest standards of management and business integrity and Managing Director
and as a result started implemerting a series of votuntary Mr. Ramesh L. Adige | Executive 1 1
initiatives as early as 1999. Whole-tirme Directar
Sorne of these measures includaed : Corporate Affairs &
- Composition of the Board of Directors (eg. Majority Global Corporate
Independent Directors). Communications
- Constitution of various Board Committees for ** Up to December 31, 2003, was a Whole-time Director of the
oversight and guidance conczrning key decisions and Company.
soundness of decision making processes connected . reated to promoters.
with the functioning of the Company. @ Excludes private, foreign companies and campanies registered
) . L VT under section 25 of the Comnparwes Act, 1956.
- Timely dissemination of information to shareholders. * Includes Membership of Audit and Sharehalders/Investors
- Code of Conduct. Grievance and Share Transfer Cammittees,
Z. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 3. BOARD MEETINGS

Composition as on December 31, 2004 Dates of Board meetings are fixed in advance and agenda
papers are circulated to Directors seven days before the

meeting.
Meetings and Attendance

During the year 2000, eight Board Meetings were held :
January 18, February 15, Apnil 7, April 19, June 28, July
20, October 19 and Novernber 14.

The Board comprises fourteen Directors including the
Non-Executive Independent Chairman and three
Executive Directors.

Name of the Director

Category

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings
and at the Annual General Meeting (AGM]

Eﬂr‘ ,Tejendra Khanna, Non.- 3 2 Name of the Director No. of Board| Whether
hairman Executive- Meetings | Attended the
Independent attended | AGM held on
Mr. Vivek Bharat Ram| - do - 3 1 June 28. 2006
Mr. Gurcharan Das -do- 5 _ Mr. T‘ejendra Khanna, Chairman 8 Yes
Dr P.S. Joshi - do - 5 2 Mr. Vivek Bharat Ram 8 Yes
Mr. Ni hN d 6 3 Mr. Gurcharan Das 5 Yes
Ko mder Dr. P. S. Joshi 8 Yes
ampani . ‘
M. Vivek Meh g Mr. Nimesh N. Kampai 4 Yes
r.Yiver Mehra 0 N Mr. V. K. Kaul 8 Yes
Mr. Surendra Daulet- -do- 1 1 Mr. Vivek Mehra 6 No
Singh ] Mr. Harpal Singh B Yes
Mr. Ravi Mehrotra -do- - - Mr. Ravi Mehrotra 5 Yes
Mr. V. K. Kaul ** NO”.‘ M 7 Mr. Shivinder Mohan Singh b Yes
Extla\;::r:we- Mr. Surendra Daulei-Singh 7 No
Independent Or. Brian W. Tempest A 5 Yes
Mr. Harpal Singh** -do- 8 Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh 8 Yes
i Mr. Shivinder Mohan |  Non- % Mr. Ramesh L. Adige 7 Yes
| Singh EX';-‘\IC;:'."E' 4. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Independent {i] Audit Committee
(Promoter] The Audit Committee has been constituted as per Section
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292 A of the Companies Act, 1956, and the guidzl nes set
out in the Listing Agreements with the Stock Excharges.
The terms of reference include -

» Overseeing financial reporting processes,

* Reviewing oeriodic financial results, financial
statements and adequacy of internal control s /stems.

* Approving internal audit ptans and reviewing efficacy
of the function.

s Discussion and review of periodic audit reports and

» Discussions with external auditors about thi scope
of audit including the observations of the auditors.

Minutes of meetings of the Audit Committee are cir culated
to members of the Committee and the Board is kept
apprised.

Composition and Attendance

During the year 2006, four meetings of the Audit
Committee were held ; January 18, April 18, July 19, and

October 18,
Name of the Member No. of Me
attende

Mr. Tejendra Khanna, Chairman 4

Mr. Nimesh N. Kampani 4
Mr. V. K. Kaul 3
Mr. Vivek Mehra 3
Mr. Ravi Mehrotra 3
Mr. Harpal Singh 4
Permanent Invitees
Dr. Brian W. Tempest 4
Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh 4
Members of the Audit Committee have requisite financial

and management expertise and have held or holil senior
positions in other reputed organizations.

The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditor and the Chief

Financiat Officer are invited to attend and particif ate at
meetings of the Committee

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the
Committee.

[ii} Management Committee

Terms of Reference of the Management Cor mittee
include -

s Review and approval of business strategies and
policies, merger and acquisition proposals, redium
term plans and annual budgets.

* Review operating performance for the global
organization.

« Approval of processes and practices retating to
human resources, succession planning for senior
management personnet.

* Review policies, processes and systems on
Environment. Safety and Ecolegy.

Minutes of meetings of the Management Committee are

circulated to members of the Committee and the Board

is kept apprised.

Composition and Attendance

During the year 2004, three meetings of the Management
Committee were hetd : January 17, July 19 and Qctober 18,

Name of the Member No. of Meetings
attended

Mr. Tejendra Khanna, Chairman 3
Mr. Vivek Bharat Ram
Mr. Gurcharan Das

Mr. Nimesh N.Xampani
Mr. Harpal Singh

Mr. Surendra Daules-Singh
Permanent {nvitees

W W N W W

[#]

Dr. Brian W. Ternpest
Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh 3

‘iiilCompensation Committee

Terms of Reference of the Compensation Committee
include :

= Administration and superintendence of Employees’
Stock Option Scheme {ESQSE.

e  Formutation of the detailed terms and conditions of
the ESOS.

* Grant of stock options.

* Recommendation for fixation and periodic revision of
compensation of the Managing Director and Executive
Directors to the Board for approval and

* Review and approve compansation policy {including
perfermance bonus, incentives, perquisites and
benefits] for senior management personnel.

Composition and Attendance

During the year 2006, four meetings of the Cornpensation

Committee were held : January 17, February 17, April 18
and October 18.

Name of the Member

No. of Meetings
attended

Mr. Tejendra Khanna, Chairman 4
Mr. Vivek Bharat Ram

Mr. Nimesh N.Kampani
Mr. V. K. Kaul

Mr. Harpal Singh

Mr. Surendra Daulet-Singh
Permanent Invitees

o W b

Dr. Brian W. Tempest
Mr._Malvinder Mohan Singh

(75 I %)

Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy of the Company for manageriat
personnel is primarily based on the following criteria :

»  Performance of the Company, its divisions and units.

* Track record, potential and performance of
individual managers and

»  External competitive environment,
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Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration of Executive Direclors is decided by the Board based an recommendations of the Compensation Committee
as per the remuneration poticy of the Campany, within the ceilings fixed by the shareholders. Remuneratian of the Executive
Directors for the year ended December 31, 2006, was as follows :

Executive Directors

Name of the Salary & | |Cemmission| Perquisites | Retiral
Director Allowanced Benefits* Optigns ** | Tenure Notice
Period

———— Rs.lacs
Dr. Brian W. 256.04 150.00 67.75 22.95 40,000 Up ta 12
Tempest 31.12.07 months
Mr. Malvinder 466.47 150.00 9.36 31.66 - Up to 12
Mahan Singh 17.00.1 months
Mr. Ramesh 25.1 20.00 0.62 3.00 10,000 Upto 12
L. Adige 17.01.10 manths
subject to super
annuation policy
of the Company.

Exclusive of provision for future liabilities in respect of retiral benefits [which are based on actuariat valuation done on
overall Company basis).

Each vested option is exercisable into one fully paid-up Egquity Share against payment of Rs.392 per share, Market price of
the share on January 16, 2006, was Rs. 391.15 per share; hence stock options vere not at a discount. The options granted
are exercisable till expiry of ten y=ars from the date of grant, Vesting period will cemm ence on the expiry of one year from
the date of grant of options and tne entitlement will be in the graduated scale over a period of five years as provided in the
Employees’ Stock Option Scheme of the Company.

Remuneration to Non-executive Directors Details of Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors as on
Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors comprises December 31, 2606 ‘
commission and sitting fees. Name of the Director No. of
Commission is paid on the basis of Shares held
a. Membership of the Board and Mr. Tejendra Khanna 1,200
b. The number of Committees of the Board that they Mr. Wivek Bharat Ram: -
serve as members. Mr. Gurcharan Das -
Non-Executive Directors Dr. P. 5. Joshi -
Name of the Director Commission|Sitting Fees Mr. Nimesh N.Kampani -
[Rs.Lacs) | (Rs.Lacs) Mr. V. K. Kaul 200
Mr. Tejendra Khanna 10.50 5.00 Mr. Ravi Mehrotra -
Mr. Vivek Bharat Ram 8.50 4.05 Mr. Vivek Mehra -
Mr. Gurcharan Das 650 1.60 Mr. Harpal Singh -
O p . Mr, Shivinder Mohan Singh 2,088,742
r.P. 5. Joshi 4.50 200 Mr. Surendra Daulet-Singh 9,348
Mr. Nimesh N.Kampani 8.50 2.60 -
liv)Science Committee
Mr. V. K. Kaul 8.50 415 Terms of Reference of Science Committee inctude -
Mr. Vivek Mehra 4.50 1.85 » Approval of focus areas of research, especially New
Mr. Harpal Singh 8.50 385 Drug Discovery Fesearch [NODR) and Novel Drug
- _ Delivery Systerms [NDDS], R&D organizatienal
Mr. Shivinder Mohan Singh 2.50 1.20 structure amd policies for the research and
Mr. Surendra Daulet-Singh 450 2 80 development function of the Company; and

+ Monitering progress of NODR and NDOS programs
and laying down a policy framework for cotlaborative
R&D pregrams.
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Composition and Attendance

During the year 2006, two meetings of the Science
Committee were held : April 17 and July 21.

Name of the Member

No. of Mdetings
attended
Dr. P.S. Joshi, Chairman 2

Mr. Tejendra ¥hanna 2
Or. Bnian W. Tempest 2
Mr. Vivek Bharat Ram ‘ 2
Mr. Gurcharan Das - .
Mr. V. K. Kaul

Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh
Permanent Invitee

f TE GOVERNANCE

Dr. Nityanand z

tvl Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance and Share

Transfer Committee
Composition and Attendance

During the year 2006, ten meetings of the Cornmittee
were held - January 25, March 6, 23, 3% May 17,
July 19, September 13, October 25, November 27, and
Decernper 29.

@

Name of the Member No. of Meetings

attended
Mr. Tejendra Khanna, Chairman 10
Mr. Vivek Bharat Ram g
Mr. V. K. Kaul 10

The Cormpany addresses all camplaints, suggestions and
grievances expeditiously and replies have been sent /
issues resolved usually within 15 days except in case of
dispute over facts or other legal constraints.

The Company received 79 shareholders’ complaints from
Stock Exchanges / SEBI / Cepartment of Company
Affairs / Registrar of Companies which inter-alia inciude
non-receipt of dividend, annugl report, split shares, etc.
The complaints were duly attended to and the Company
has furnished necessary documents / information to the
shareholders.

The Shareholders' / Investors™ Grievance and Share
Transfer Committee reviews complaints received and
appropriate action is taken.

No requests for share transfers are pending except those
that are disputed or sub-judice.

Mr.S. K. Patawari, Company Secretary, is the Compliance
Officer of the Company.

. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of the Annual General Meetings held in t1e last three years

2004 25-6-2004 11.00 A M,
Pharmaceutical Educaticn
& Research, Sector 67,
5.A S, Nagar, Punjab
2065 30-6-2005 | Thursday | 1LODAM. | —rveeemmms do ------me--
2006 28-6-2006 | Wednesday| 1.00AM. | --rommmmm- do ----------

Friday The National Institute of

Payment of commission to
Non-Executive Directars.

- Approval under Section 81{14
of the Companies Act, 1956

for issuance up to 40 lacs

stock options under Employees’
Stock Option Plan [ESOP)
Scheme of the Company.

- Sub-division of equity shares
from face vatue of Rs.10 each
to face value of Rs.5 each and
consequent amendments of
Memeorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company.

No Special Resolution passed.

4. CODE OF CONDUCT
The Code of Conduct for the Directors and Emp oyees of the Company is posted on the website of the Company.

Declaration as required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement

All Directors and Senior Managerfient personnel of the Company have affirmed comptiance with the provisions of the
Ranbaxy Code of Conduct for the financial year ended December 31, 2006.

Gurgaon, Haryana
March 29, 2007

Malvinder Mohan Singh
CEQ & Managing Director
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7. CEOQ / CFO Certificate

Certificate from CEQ & CFO for the financial year ended
Decernber 31, 2006, has been provided elsewhere in the
Annual Report.

8. DISCLOSURES
A. Related Party Transactions

The Company has not entered into any transaction of
material nature with the promoters, the Directors or
the management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc.,
that may have any potential conflict with the intarests
of the Company.

B. Compliances by the Company

During the last three years, no penalties or strictures
have been imposed en the Company by the Stock
Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authorities
on matters related to capital markets.

C. The Company has complied with all the mandatory

reguirements and has adapted nen-mandatory

requirements as per details given below :

(1) The Board
The Company maintains the Office of the Chairman
at its Corporate Office at Plot No. 90, Sector 32,
Gurgaon - 122 001 [Haryanal and also reimburses
the expenses incurred in performance of his
duties.

Thereis no fixed tenure {o- Independent Directors.

(2] Remuneration Commit'ee

The Company has constituted Compensation
Cemmittee as detaited in 4liii} hereinabove. The
Chairman of the Remunaration Committee was
present at the last Annual General Meeting.

Shareholders’ Rights

The quarterly financial results are published in the
newspapers as mentior ed under the heading
“Means of Communication” at Sl. No. 9
hereinbelow and atso displayed on the website of
the Comnpany. The results are not separately
circulated to the shareho.ders.

(4] Audit qualifications

{3

There are no audit qualifications in the Company's
financial statements for the year under reference.

{5) Training of Board Memoers

No specific training pregramme was arranged for
Board members. However, al the Board /
Committee meetings detailed presentations are
made by Professionals, Consultants as well as
Senior Executives of the Company on the business
related matters, risk assessment, strategy, effect
of the regulatory changes, etc.

(6] Mechanism foar evaluating Non-Executive
Board Members

The Campany has not adonted any mechanism far
evaluating individual performance of Non-
Executive Directors.

Whistle Blower Policy
The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct

[7

for all its employees across the organisation. The
Code of Conduct of the Company lays down that
the amployees shall promptly report any concern
or breach and suggests not to hesitate in reporting
a violation or -aising a policy concern to the Code
Compliance Cell or concerned superior. The Code
pravides that the Company shall support and
protect employees for deing so. The Code has
been rolled out across the Crganisation. Further,
during the year 2006, no employee was denied
access to the Audit Committee of the Company.

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

(2) The Company regularly intimates unaudited, as well
as audited financial resulis to the Stock Exchanges
immaediately after these are taken on record by the
Boarg. These financial results are normally pubtished
in the Business Standard / Financial Express, The
Tribune (Punjabi Edition) and are displayed on the
website of the Company www, ranbaxy.com and
simultaneously posted on the Electrenic Data
Infarmation Filing and Retrieval website namely
www.sebiedifar.n c.in. The website is alsc accessible
through a hyperlink 'EDIFAR’ from SEBI's officiat
website, www.sebi.gov.in.

The official news releases and the presentations made
to the investors/analysts are also displayed on the
Company’s website.

[b) Management Discussion and Analysis Report farms
part of the Reporl of the Directors.

10. SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meating

Date : May 31, 2007
Time : 100 AM.
Vanue . The National Institute of Pharmaceutical

Education and Research [NIPER]
Sector-67, S.A.S. Nagar
(Moha.!) - 160 062 [Punjab)

No Special resolution 1s proposed to be passed by Postal
ballot at the aforesaid Annual General Meeting.
Financial Catendar -

Adoption of Quarterly Results 3rd / 4th week of
for the quarter ending

June 3G, 2007 July 2007
September 30, 2007 October 2G07
Becember 31, 2007 January 2008
March 31, 2008 April 2008

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

The Equity Shares of the Cempany are listed on the
Bormbay Stock Exchange Ltd. and National Stock
Exchange of India at Mumbai. Global Depository Receipts
(GDRs) are listed on the Stock Exchange at Luxembouryg.
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds [FCCBs] have been
listed with the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited.

The Company confirms that it has paid annuat listing fees
due to the Stock Exchanges for the year 2006-2007.
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STOCK CODE

1. The Nationa. Stock
Exchange of India Lid. - Ranbaxy

2. Bomnbay Stock Exchange Ltd. - 359 [Physicall
500359 (Demat]

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

M/s Alankit Assignments Ltd. |Alankit], 2E/8, 1st Floor,
Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi-110 055 are the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for physica shares
of the Company. Alankit is also the depository interface
of the Company with both National Securities Depository
Ltd. [NSDL] and Central Depository Services [India) Ltd.
[CDSLI.

However, keeping in view the convenience of
sharehotders, documents relating to shares will continue
to be received by the Company at Corporate Office of the
Company at Plot No. 90, Sector 32, Gurgaon - 122 001
[Haryanal. Tel No. 91-124-4135069. Registered Gffice
at A-11, Industrial Area, Sahibzada Ajit Singh Nagar
[Mohali) - 160 055, (Punjabl, and Head Office at ¥2:h Floor,
Devika Tower, 6, Nehru Place, New Delhi -11G €9
email address: secretarjal@ranbaxy.com.

. Market Price Data [Rs.)

Bombay Stock ;| Nationall Stock
Exchange :
(BSE) (NSE)

Low
January 2006 404.00 | 363.00[ 403.50 F362.55

February 2006 465.00§ 381.10| 466.00| 38110

March 2006 460.80 ] 389.80| 460.05| 388.15
April 2006 507.45 | 405.00| 507.80 | 434.40
May 2006 530.00 | 395.00( 530.00 397.00
June 2006 435,00 | 339.30( 432.00 | 340.00
July 2006 379.95( 31710 380.45| 317.00

August 2006 41480 364.40| 422,80 | 365.35
September 2006 | 44150 | 394.08| 44110 34650
October 2006 439.00| 398.10( 452.00% 398.00
Novernber 2006 | 409.807 371.00| 412.007 365.55
December 2006 | 402.65| 350.55§ 402.80 | 342.60

Stack Price Performance - Ranbaxy Vs BSE Sensex
Year 2006
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SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

With a view to expedite the process of share transfers, the
Board of Directors of the Company has delegated the power
of share transfer to some of the Directors with appropriate
individual lirmnits. The delegated Directorls} attend(s] to the
share transfer formalities at least once in a fortnight. The
shares for transfers received in physical formare transferred
expeditiously, provided the documents are complete and the
shares under transfer are not unger any dispute. The share
certificates duly endorsed are returned immediately to
shareholders. Cenfirmation in respect of the requests for
dematerialization of shares is sent to the respective
depositories i.e. NSDL and CDSL expeditiously.

OEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

The shares of the Company are in compulsory demat
segment and are availabie for trading in the depository
systerns of both NSDL and CDSL. As on December 31, 2006,
359,697,389 Eguity Shares of the Company, forming #6.51%
of the Share Capitat of the Company, stand demateriatized.

International Securities ldentification Number -
INE015AD1028 fwith NSDL and CDSL)

Shareholding Pattern as on December 31, 2006

Category ) No. of Percentage of
Shares held [Shareholding (%)
Promoters 129,934,214 34.86
Mutual Funds & UT! 11,964,598 3.21
Banks, Financial 59,169,082 15.88
Institutions,
Insurance Companies
Flis 68,912,220 18.49
Private Corporate Bodies 5,790,475 1.55
indian Public 70,682,801 18.97
Foreign Nationals - -
NRls / OCBs 7,800,582 2.09
GDRs 18,430,992 4.95
Grand Total 372,686,964 100.00

Distribution of Shareholding as on December 31, 2006

No. of Shareholders No. of Shares

t-50 106,749 51.06 3,007,441 0.80
51-100 36,593 17.50{ 3,245,007 0.87
101 - 200 21,254 10.16 3,477,715  0.93

201 - 300 7,995 382| 2094898 0056
301- 400 6,740 3.22| 2376555 0.63
401 - 560 4,289 2.05 202474 054
H01- 400 2,944 1.4 1,653,455 D.44
401- 700 2,439 1.7 159244 Q.42
701 - 800 1,756 0.84 1,343,878 036
801 - %00 1,166 0.56 1001725 026

%01 - 1000 2,216 1.06 | 2145285 0.58
1001 - 2080 7,380 353 1076444 2.88
2601 - 3009 2,812 1.37| 7,086,378 1.50
3001 - 4000 1,513 0.72] 57220358 1.40
40&7 - 5000 786 0.38 | 3,560,987 096

5001 & above 2,413 115 | 322,119,943} 86.47

Total 209,107 | 100.00 [372,686,%64]100.00
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Liquidity of Shares Plant Locations of the Company

The Equity Shares of the Company have been included in the 1. A-8, A-9, A-10 & A-11, Industrial Area, Phase - 1Ii,
Sensex of the leading Stock Exchanies. Sahibzada Ajit Singh Nagar,

Outstanding Stock Options {Mohatil - 160 055 (Punjabl

Number of Stock Optiens outstanding 2. Village Toansa, P.0. Railmajra, Distt. Nawansahar
as on December 31, 20046 - 6,850,980+ [Puniabl, Pin 144 533

Qut of which 59,254 Stock Options exercised were pending 3. Industrial Area 3, AB. Road,

allotment. Dewas - 450 001, Madhya Pradesh

* Options granted up to October 3, 2002, are entitled for 4. Village & PO Ganguwala

additional shares {430,865 shares] on a proportionate basis Teh. Paonta Sahib 173 025, Distt. Sirmour [H.P.]
in view of issue of bonus shares by the Company in the ratio g Village Batamandi

of 3 for 5 in Octaber 2002. Tehsil Paonta Sahib - 173 625, Distt, Sirmour [H.P.)
There are no outstanding warrants as on Decernber 31,2006, 4 £.47/9, Okhla Industrial Area

The Company had raised US $ 440,000,000 in the year 2006, Phase-Il, Okhla, New Dethi - 110 020

through Zero C_oupon Convertib\g Bonds. The Bonds are 7 £ 5¢ E-3, MIDC, Jejuri, Distt. Pune - 412 303
convertible any time on or after April 27, 2006, up to March 8,

2011, by the holders into fully paid Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each 8. Plot No. B-2, Madka m Industrial Estate, Ponda, Goa
of the Company, which may subject to certain conditions, be 9. K-5, 6, 7, Ghirengi, Malanpur,

represented by Global Depository Shares (GDS) with each GOS Distt. Bhind - 477 114, [M.P.]

representing one share at a conversian price of Rs. 716,32 per

share, which is subject to adjustment ncertain circumstances, ~ Address for Correspondence

in caseif the Bonds are not converted nto shares, the Company Mr. S. K. Patawar:

will redeem each Bond at 126.765% of its principat amounton  Company Secretary

the maturity date, i.e. March 18, 2011 Ranbaxy Laboratories Lid.

18,430,992 GDRs representing 18.430.992 Equity Shares of  Plot No. 90, Sector 32, Gurgaon - 122 001, Haryana
Rs. 5 each constituting 4.95% of thi issued subscrived and ~ Tel. No.: 91-124-4185888, 4135000.

paid-up share capital of the Company, were outstanding as Fax No.: 91-124-410649C
on December 31, 2006. Email address : secretarial@ranbaxy.com

Auditors’ certificate on compliance with the conditions of
corporate governance under clause 49 of the listing agreements

To the members of
Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

We have examined the compliarce of conditions of corporate governance by Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited ["the
Company”] for the year ended o1 December 31, 2004, as stipulated in ctause 4% of the listing agreement of the
Company with the stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company, for ensuring the compliance of
the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression af opinion on the financial statements
of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the abovementioned listing
agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

Vinad Chandiok
Place : Gurgaon Partner
Dated : March 29, 2007 Membership No. 10093




CEO AND C

To the Beard of Directors of Ranbaxy Laboratories Ltd.
We, Malvinder Mohan Singh, CEQ & Managing Director, and Ram S. Ramasundar, President & CFO, certify that :

(al We have reviewed financial staternents and the cash flow statement for the year ended December 31, 2006, and
that to the best of our knowledge and belief

[} these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

lii] these statements together present a rrue and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

[b] There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year which are fraudutent, itlegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

[c] We accept responsibility for establishing 2nd maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal con:rol systems of the Company pertaining te financial reporting and
we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such
internal cortrals, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose tc take to rectify these
deficiencies.

{d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Cammittee that :

li) there has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year
under reference;

{i] there has not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in
the notes to the financial statements; and

fiit) there has not been any instances during the year of significant fraud of which we had become aware and
the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

Malvinder Mohan Singh Ram S. Ramasundar
CEQ & Managing Director President & CFO

Place : Gurgaon
Date : March 29, 2007
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this 46th An ual Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st December, 2004,

WORKING RESULTS

Rs. in Million
Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2006 2005
Net Sales 39720.51 34901.27
Profit from operations before Interest, Depreciation, Amo -tization and Impairment 6081.70 3i78.78
Interest 584.44 2641
Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment 1067.50 1013.33
Profit from operations
Continuing operations 4429.76 1731.48
Discontinued operations - 169.66
Profit from operations before exceptional items 4429.76 1901.34
Profit from sale of undertaking - 112.29
Profit befere Tax 442976 2013.43
Provision for Tax 624.33 [223.35)
Profit After Tax 3805.43 2236.98
Tax - earlier years 145.84 (116.56)
Balance as per last balance sheet 560.34 2270.05
Transfer from Fareign projects reserve 22.95 30.65
Balance avaitable for appropriation 4534.56 442112
Appropriations:
Dividend
Interim 3168.94 9311
Final - 2235.55
Tax on Dividend Li4.44 44412
Transfer to :
General Reserve 450.00 250.00
Surplus carried forward 471.18 560.34
4534.56 442112
CONSOLIDATED WQRKING RESULTS (UNDER INDIAN GAAP)
Net Sales 60652.24 51880.43
Profit before Interest, Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment 9389.54 3727.37
tnterest 10346.32 671,16
Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment 1842.88 1444.52
Profit from operations
Contiruing operations 6510.34 1371.22
Discontinued operaticns - 240.47
Profit from operations before exceptional items 6510.34 1611.69
Interest in Joint venture written off - (121.80}
Profit from sale of undertaking and a subsidiary - 454.95
Profit before Tax 6510.34 1944.84
Provision for tax 1356.74 [697.57]
Profit after Tax 5153.560 2642.41
Minority Interests 50.21 '25.35
Profit after Tax and Minority Interests 5103.39 2617.06
Tax - earlier years 148.06 {61.78)
Balance as per last balance sheet 1253.94 2532.50
Transfer from Foreign projects reserve 22.95 30.65
Balance available for appropriation 6528.34 a118.43
Appropriations:
Dividend
Interim 3158.94 g311
Final - 2235.55
Tax on Dividend L4464 447.83
Transfer to
General Reserve 450.00 250.00
Surplus carried forward 2464.96 1253.94
6528.34 5118.43
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consotidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, under Indian GAAP and US GAAP form part of the Annual
Report.

OPERATIONS

The year under review witnessed an improved performance of the Company on all parameters and as a resuli the Company's overall
financials rebounded significantly as compared to the previous year. Consolidated net sates at Rs. 40,652 Mn, recorded an increase of
17% while net profits at Rs. 5,154 Mn were up 95% over the previous year. The key contributors te this improved performance were the
180 days marketing exclusivity of Simvastatin 80 mg in USA, buoyant growth in the branded generics markets led by India, CIS and the
ASEAN countries and the acquisition of Terapia SA in Romania. In the domestic market, the Company continued to consolidate its
position with improvement in market s-are.

The Company’s international markets zccounted for 79% of the overall Company's revenues {76% in 2005, whereas the Dosage form
sales constituted 9°% of total revenues {86% in 20051,

During the year, the Company initiated 3 focused program to optimize the cost structure and these efforts yielded significant results.
R&D costs during the year were significantly lower than the previous year, without affecting the overalt R&D detiverables. Simitarly,
Selling, General & Admimstration (SG %Al expenditure recorded significant improvernent as & percentage to sales. However, the
performance for the year was impacted due to delay in new product launches in USA as a result of the warning letter issued by the US
FDAin June 2006, for our Ppanta Sahib “acility and also the difficult market conditions prevailing in some of the key Western Eurapean
markets such as UK, France and Germany,

In February 2007, Federal officials concucted a search at the New Jersey premises of the Company's US subsidiaries. The Company
is not aware of any wrongdeing and is ¢o-operating fully with the concerned authorities.

The Cornpany continued with its growtt strategy through a rmix of organic and inarganic initiatives. A robust product flow across key
markets coupled with a number of valuz enhancing and strategic acquisitions in the year is expected ta provide a sound platform for
the sustained growth in the caming years.

DIVIDEND

Interim Dividend of Rs, 2.50 per share was paid in November 2006. The Beard has now approved payment of secand interim dividend
of Rs. & per share, taking the total divide 1d to Rs. 8.50 per share of par vatue of Rs. 5 each for the year ended December 31, 2004 (2005
- total dividend Rs. 8.50 per share of par value of Rs. 5 eachl. No finat dividend has been recommended by the Board.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Issue of shares on exercise of Employees’ Stock Options

The Company allotted Equity Shares (on pari-passu basis) pursuant to exercise of Stock Options by the etigible employees, as
sunmarized betow

Date of Allotment No. of Shares
July 12, 2006 42,548
October 11, 2006 32,800
January 10, 2007 91,857
SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES
(Al Brazil

Brazil is amongst the largest ma-kets in Latin America region. During the year, the Campany increased its equity stake in
Ranbaxy Farmaceutica Lida. [RFL from 80% to 93.47%.

(Bl South Africa
The Company formed a Joint Veriture [JV] in South Africa under the name Sonke Pharmaceuticals [Proprietary] Ltd. with

Community Investrment Holdings - CIH [Pty for the growing Anti-retroviral business in South Africa. The Company owns 2
48.4% equity stake in the JV.

(C) Sweden

With a view to further expand its direct presence in the Nordic countries, the Company established a wholly owned subsidiary in
Sweden under the name of Ranbaxy Pharma AB. This subsidiary would manage operations in the territories of Sweden, Norway,
Denmark & Finland.

MERGER & ACQUISITIONS

The generic industry continued to witness a spate of M&A deals signifying the increasing consolidation in the industry. The dynamic
landscape is fueling inorganic growth apportunities whereby more and more companies are focusing on the need 1o gain size and
scale in large genenc markets, enhancing their presence across newer and mere complex therapeutic segments and broadening
their market presence in branded generics. Your Company was also active in M&A, having completed the following transactions
during the year :

() Terapia S.A. (Romania)

Post approval from the Romanian Zompetition Council, the acquisition of Terapia SA has been successfully concluded in June
2005,
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[2]  Ethimed (Belgium) and Allen [italy]

The acquisitions of Ethimed NV, a generics comgany in Belgiurn, ard of Allen SPA, the unbranded generics business of Glaxo
SmithKline in [taly, have been successfully comp eted.

i3] Be-Tabs Pharmaceuticals [Proprietary) Limited ['South Africal

Be-Tabs Pharmaceuticals (Proprietary) Limited (3e-Tabs} is the 5th-largest branded generics company 'n South Africa with a
turnover of US $ 29 Mn and with good profitabilitv. The Company has entered into an agreement far acquisition of 100% Equity
stake in Be-Tabs for a consideration of about US & 70 Mn. Be-Tabs is a good strategic fit for the Company in the largest Pharma
market of the African continent and will enable your Company o further strengthen its presence in tnis market. The Competition
Council of South Africa has approved the acquisition ang the transaction is expected to be completed sometime in secand
quarter of 2007,

[4)  Mundogen (Spain}

Mundogen S.p.A constituted the generics business of Glaxo SmithKune in Spain. The Company has an existing product basket
and a well established sales network with good coverage. This acquisition is expected to provide significant momentum for
growth in the Spanish market.

(51 (i) Zenotech Laboratories, {iil Krebs Biochemicals & Indus:ries & (ui) Cardinal Drugs (indial.
In order to enhance its manufaciuring competithveness, ycur Company acquired -

[l  6.94% Equity stake in M/s Zenotech Laboratories Limited, Hyderabad for a consideration of Rs 200 Mn. This strategic
stake would help the Company to gain access to the h gh growth therapeutic segment of Oncolagy for a number of markets.

fil  14.9% Eguity stake in M/s Krebs Biochemizals & Indus'nes Limited, Hyderabad, for a consideratian of Rs. 8¢ Mn. This
strategic stake would enable the Company to gain access to low cost manufacturing of fermantation based products.

(Wil Active pharmaceutical ingredients based manufactiring facility of M/s Cardinal Drugs Ltd., Gwalior. This would further
augment the vertical integration strengths and expand existing manufacturing capacities.

{6} The Company nas acquired Senetek PLC's propr etary tecinology to gain access to such niche patented technolagies. Senetek
PLC's proprietary disposable auteinjector technologyis for self-adm nistration of parenteral drugs used in emergency treatment
for anaphylactic shocks.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REF(IRT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as required under the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges, is enclosed at

Annexure "A’,

EMPLOYEES® STOCK OPTION SCHEME

information regarding the Employees’ Stock Option Scheme, 1s enclased at Annexure ‘B

LISTING AT STOCK EXCHANGE

The Equity Shares of the Company continue to be list:d on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. and The National Stock Exchange. Global
Depository Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange at Luxernbourg ard Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds are listed on the Singapore
Stack Exchange. The annual listing fees for the year 2306-2007 have been paid to these Exchanges.

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS

As required by the Companies (Disclosure of Particula~s in the Report of Beard of Directors) Rules 1988, the relevant informatien and
data is given at Annexure 'C.’

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has rot invited / received any fixed depcsits during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of provisions of Section 217(2AA] of the Companies Act, 1956 |Act], your Directors confirm that :

il Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accourting standards have been followed, along-with proper explanation
relating to material departures, wherever applicable.

{ii  The Directors have selected such accounting policies anc applied them cansistently and made judgernents and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent 5o as to give a true ad fair view of the s*ate of affairs of the Company, as at the end of the accounting
year and of the profit of the Company for that period.

lil The Directors have taken proper and sufficient cire for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Copany. and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

i) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a geing concern bass.

DIRECTORS

Mr. Atul Sobii, Chief Operating Officer of the Compan', was appointed as an Additional Girector of the Company effective January 18,
2007. The Boart also appointed Mr. Sobti as Whole-time Director effectve January 18. 2007 for a period of five years. The Company
has received a notice, along with the requisite fee, from a member under Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1954, proposing the
candidature of Mr. Sobti as a Director of the Company. Requisi-e approvat of shareholders for his appointment and payment of
remuneration is being sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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Zonsequent upon appointment of Mr. Tejendra Khanna as Lieutenant Governor of Delhi, he has resigned from the position of Chairman
and Director on the Board of the Company effective April 8, 2007. The Directors ptace on record their warm appreciation for valuable
contribution made by Mr. Khanna.

in accordance with the Articles of Asseociation of the Company, Mr. Vivek Bharat Ram, Dr, P, 5. Joshi and Mr. Vivek Mehra, retire by
rotation as Directors at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and are eligible for re-appointment.

CORPOGRATE GOVERNANCE

Report on Corporate Governance along-with the Certificate of the Auditors, M/s Watker, Chardick & Co., confirming compliance of
canditions of Corporate Governance s stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, forms part of the Annual Report.
COST AUDIT

The reparts of M/s R.J. Goel & Co., Cost Accountants, in respect of audit of the cost accounts of the pharmaceutical substances and
dosage forms units of the Company fo- the year ended December 31, 2004, witi be submitted to the Central Government in due course.
AUDITORS

M/s Walker, Chandiok & Co., Charte~ed Accountants, retire as Auditors of the Company at the conclusien of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and have confirmed their eligibitity and willingness to accept the office of the Auditors, if re-appointed. ‘
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As required under Sectien 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, and Rules framed thereunder, the names and other particulars of
employees receiving remuneration at ove the prescribed thresheld are set out in the annexure appended to this Repart.
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your Directors commend the continuing commitment and dedication of employees at all {evels. The Directors would also like to thank
atl other stakeholders, including bankers and other business associates, whe have extended their valuable sustained support and
encouragement. The members of the medical profession in India and abroad have demonstrated their continued confidence in the
guality and efficacy of your Company's sthical therapeutic products. This has, understandably, been critical for the Company’s success.
The Directors look forward to their continued support and understanding in the years to come,

On behalf of the Board of Directors
/s Matis b €0 -
e —

Gurgaon VIVEK BHARAT RAM MALVINDER MOHAN SINGH
April 10, 2007 DIRECTOR CEOD & MANAGING DIRECTOR
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ANNEXURE A

\

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS

The Global Pharmaceuticat market audited sales graw by 7% [at constant exchange rates] to reach US $ 408 Bn in 2006.
North America, Europe and Japan continued to rema n the key markets accounting for 87% of the worldwide pharmaceutical
sales in 2006. The buoyant growth recorded in the US pharmaceutical market, led by an increase in prescribing votume due to
Medicare Part D, and a strong growth in the oncology products g.obally, were the key contributars to market expanston.

The North American pharmaceutical sates grew by 8.0% to reach US $ 290 Bn, constituting 48% of the global sales in 2006.
Growth was fuelled by the Medicare Part D prescription benefit, the increased utilization of generics within new therapy classes
and the launch of drugs targeted at specific diseases, e.g. cancer and diabetes. Europe clocked sales of US $ 182 Bn, a growth
of 4.8%, and contributed 30% to total gtobal pharr aceutical sales. Japan, the world's second largest market, which has
historically posted stower growth rates, continued its weak performance with a de-growth of 0.7% at US $ 57 Bn, Sales in
Latin America grew by 12.9% to reach US $ 28 Bn, while Asia, Africa & Australia grew by 9.8% to US$ 52 Bn. Emerging
markets, including Turkey, Korea, Russia and india, all experienced double digit growth, outpacing global performance and
signaling important shifts in the market place. Witk these markets recording higher growth rates than markets in Narth
America and Western Europe, the geographic mix of growth has leaned towards these emerging economies.

The Top 10 products in the market contributed approximately 1% to Glabal Pharmaceutical Sales in 2006, with combined
sales of US $ 60 Bn. Atorvastatin (Lipitor US $ 14 I3n) followed by Esomeprazole (Nexium US $ 7 Bn) and Fluticasone -
Salmeterol combination [Seretide / Advair US § 6 Bn| were the 3 top-seiling products worldwide. Lipid Regulators, Oncologics
and Respiratory Agents held the top three positions in terms of therapeutic classes wortdwide. Lipid Regulators grew by 7.5%
to US $ 35 Bn, while Oncologics was the fastest growing therapeutic class al US $ 34 Bn, a growth of 20.5%. Respiratory
agents were the third largest therapy class with 10.4 % growth in sales to US $25Bn.

Generics

The Generic segment growth continued to outpace the global pharmaceutical market growth fuzlled by the fundamentai .
drivers of growth, that is, the increasing ageing popu.ation and government's efforts to reduce their healthcare expenditures.
Generic medicines are increasingly being prescribed by general practitioners as more affordable alternatives to higher-priced
originator brand-name drugs. In 2006, generics repr2sented more than half of the volume of pharmaceutical products sold in
7 key world markets viz. US, Canada, France, Spain, ltaly, Germany and the UK. While in 2004, the US witnessed significant
patent expiries for products with sales in excess of US $ 14 Br, ey markets in Western Europe saw government induced
healthcare reforms impacting growth in these markets. As with the global pharmaceutical market, the branded generic markets
in Emerging economies witnessed robust growth rales, indicatng a substantial change in the gengraphical mix of generic
market growth.

The year witnessed pricing pressure in certain key geographies, led by a mix of market factors and government led healthcare
policy changes. The pricing pressure in the US market continued, but was alleviated by the opportunity presented by the
number of high value praducts going off patent.

The trend tawards consolidation was a key highlight n the year with several mergers and acquisitions taking place across the
developed and emerging markets. Indian companies have active.y taken part in the consolidation drive, ted by a need to broad
base their presence, enhance their competitive advantages and widen their product portfolic.

The three largest markets for Ranbaxy are USA, Europe and India. The prevailing market environment in these geagraphies is
as discussed below :

United States : In 2005, the prescription volume of nbranded generics grew 13%. Although volurmes rese acrass a number
of therapeutic areas, the emergence of new generic forms of lipid regulators, anti-depressants and inhaled nasal steroids,
resulted in significant double digit growth for these cle sses of med-cations. Sales were up 22% in 200¢, driven by key blockbuster
products such as Simvastatin, Clopidegrel and Sertraline going off patent. Generics continue to play an increasingly
prominent role in the US healthcare market. According to IMS Health, generics [inctuding branded generics] accounted for
over 60% of all prescriptions dispensed and 20% of all grescription dollars spent in 2006.

According 1o the baseline forecast of iMS Health, the US genercs market is expected to deliver a CAGR in excess of 14% in
value terms, over the period from 2005 to 2010. Genarics will have a greater prescription market share compared to 2006, as
the market realizes the full impact of the US $ 14 Bn n branded products, that were genericized in the course of 2006. Further,
an additional US $ 12 Bn worth of branded products are expected to be genericized in 2007. The US market also witnessed the
introduction of two key generic pharma-related legislations, ene oy Waxman / Hatch on having a regulatory pathway for bio-
similars and the other by Rockefeller / Schumer / Leaihy propesing to prevent authorized generics during the 180 day exclusivity
period. Bath these, if enacted, would augur well for the generic industry.
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Europe : The key markets in Western Europe faced chaltenging conditions in 2006. The markets of UK, France and Germany
witnessed intense cornpelitive acticn, as well as state intervention, to reduce the cost of Medicare to the patients, necessitated
by spiraling healthcare cost spends. The marketsin Central, Eastern and Southern Europe, including the CIS belt continued to
experience higher levels of growth led by a higher per capita pharmaceutical expenditure and an increasing wtilization of
generic drugs.

India : The Indian industry is characterized by a highly competitive and fragmented marketplace with a presence of several
players, including small scale companies. The Domaestic formulation market for the year 2004, is valued around Rs. 273 Bn
(US$ 6 Bnl, having grown by 18% d uring the year. 2006 was a strong year for the industry, led by buoyant growth in both acute
and chronic therapy products, and anincreasing demand fer medicines from the rural ard semi-urban population. The Top 10
companias continued to have a dominant combined market share of 36.5% /[Source: ORG-IMS 554 Audit MAT Decemnber
2006/

Key developments in the Indian Pharmaceutical Sector are as under:

*  55%ofindustry growth was dr ven by the therapeutic areas of Anti-infectives, Cardio Vascular & Diabetes, Bastro-intestinal
& Orthopedics.

*  The rural segment is increasingly demanding access to western medicine and was a prominent growth driver in the
acute therapy segment. The growth rate of the Rural and Semi-Urban segment was at 23.2% [Town Class |l and belowl.

*  84% of the overall market growth was driven by votumes of existing products, 12% due to new product introductions and
4% due to pricing and other factors.

OUTLOOK ON OPPORTUNITIES

The fundamental growth drivers of generics remain strong. Ranbaxy today is amongst the top 10 global generic companies,
with an expanding global presence and a well spread marketing infrastructure. With its capabilities in verticat integration, a
robust product pipeline and an India centric lower cost manufacturing base, it is well placed to capitalize on the opportunities
in the generics space. The Company has a well balanced mix of revenues from the developed and emerging markets and is
present in 23 of the top 25 markets in the world.

In USA, our potential for revenue growth from generic products is closely related to cur pipeline of pending ANDAs, as well as
tentative approvals already granted As of December 31, 2006, we had 197 ANDAs filed with the US FDA, of which 121 have been
approved. Of the 76 ANDAs pending approval, based on our own analysis of publicly available US FDA data, we believe we are
the first to fite on 20 of these ANDA applications, which relate to brand-name drugs Faving aggregate sales in the United
States of more than US $ 25 Bn.

With high uptake of lower-cost therapies replacing branded products in classes such as lipid regulators, antidepressants,
respiratory agents, the increasingly active role of patients demanding greater access to lower cost products, and the large
value of branded drugs going off-patent, generics will assume a more important role going forward. Mounting efforts en the
part of insurers and employers to encourage use of generics to control heatthcare costs, will also be an important growth
driver for the segment.

We believe that Europe, including C S, would be a key growth driver for the Company. While countries in Western Europe, such
as Germany and France, were impzcted in 2006 due to regulatory changes, we expect that market conditions will be relatively
stable in 2007 and beyond. The under penetrated generic markets of Spain and Italy prov de a lucrative opportunity for growth
and the Company has been making, and will continue to make, organic and inorganic efforts to progress in these markets.
Today, the Company is present in 23 of the 27 EU countries, signifying its expanding footprint in EU. With the front end
nfrastructure in place, the Company is well geared to capitalize on the growing opportunities in the market,

The outlook on the Indian Pharma market continues to be positive, with volume consumption driving the market [onty 32% of
Indians as of now use allopathy medicines and drug consumption at US $ 7 per head is one of lowest in the world}. With india
pecoming a signatory to the WTO and introduction of the Patent Product regime, the Indian market will be an attractive option
for introduction of research-based products. Ranbaxy, the teading pharmaceutical company in India, is well set to become a
partner of choice in the Indian market. The Cornpany has a sirong reach in Metro cities, as well as extra urban areas, with its
wide distribution network. Ranbaxy has been successful in building new praduct concepts with the focused approach of its
specialty teams.

QUTLOOK ON THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS

The global generics business is becaming more competitive with the entry of newer playe-s from the emerging economies. On
the other hand, the government inc uced changes in select markets and the ongoing consolidation in the industry is bringing
‘orth new challenges in the marketp ace. The generic segment has inherent risks of patent litigations, product liability, increasing
regulations and compliance related issues, particularly in the developed markets,

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

Ranbaxy recorded global sales of US $ 1,339 Mn, a 17% growth over last year. Dosage form sales constituted 91% of global
sales. The sates in overseas market constituted 79% of the total sales of the Company, as compared to 76% last year.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

The internal control systems in the Company and its subsidiaries are robust. During the year 2006, the Company launched a
periodic self assessment survey of key manual centrols across major business units and business cycles under a web enabled
program titled "Control Manager.” This is designed 1o further enhance the control environment in the Company and bring
visibility on the existence and exercise of key conirols

The Internal Audit function at Ranbaxy, headed by a V ce President, reports directly to the CEO and the Audit Committee, The
department consists of a team of well qualified and experienced professienals that conduct regular audits covering the
Company's eperations in India and overseas, and comments on the same are periodically communicated to the CEO and the
Audit Committee. The Finance function of the Company is also adequately staffed with professionally qualified and experienced
personnal,

The Company's Global Internal Audit Department has been accredited with the 1SO 9001:2000 certificate. This certificate is
recognition of systematic identification and effective managerren: of processes, related to development, implementation and
maintenance of Internal Audit Services.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year, the Company recorded caonsolidated global sales of Rs. 60,652 Mn [US % 1,339 Mn), 17% higher than the prior
year. Profit before interest, depreciation and amortiza ion, and exceptional items was Rs. 9,390 Mn {US $ 207 Mnl, higher than
the prior year by 152%. Profit befere tax before extra-ordinasy iterns at Rs. 6,510 [US % 144 Mn) was higher by 304%, white
profit after tax was Rs. 5,154 Mn (US $ 114 Mn), 95% tigher than last year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Human resources management is a key focus area far the Ccmpany and there has been a constant endeavor to attract and
retain the best taleni. The Company invests in the t-aining and development needs of its employzes through tailor made
programs and extensive workshops.

Further, during the year the Cornpany embarked upen two global processes, i.e. the Appreciate Program and e-PMS, While
the fermer aims at recognizing exceptional contribulions made by individuals and teams, the latter is expected to result in
enhancing transparency and bring about unifermity in the performance management processes.

The total number of training man-days during 2006 viare 42,604, [2005 : 44,414], imparted in-house and at some of the best
institutes in India and overseas.
The tetal number of employees of the Company and its subsidiaries as on December 31, 2006, stood at 11,343.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statements in the "Management Discussion and Analysis” descrihing the Company’s objectives, estimates, expectations or
projections may be "forward looking statements™ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could
differ materially from those expressed or implied. Imp ortant factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations
include Government regulations, patent laws, tax reyimes, economic developments within India and countries in which the
Company conducts business, litigation and other allicd factors.
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ANNEXURE B

Information regarding the Employees’ Stock Option Scheme

[As on December 31, 2006}

5. No. Details Nos.
1. Options granted in the y2ar 2006 1,221,300
2. Options granted up to D2cember 31, 2006, including (1) above 5.963,645
3. No.of Dptions vested 2,969,991
4. No. of Options exercisec 429,803
5. No.of shares arising as a result of exercise of options 495924
6. No. of Options lapsed ar d forfeited 1,433,069
7. Variance in terms of op.ions N A
8. Money realized by exerc:se of options Rs. 423,520,820
2. Total No. of Options in force 6,850,980

Notes :

1. TheGrant/&xcercise and number of Stock Options outstanding s on June 30, 2005, have been proportionately adjusted in view
of the sub-division of equity shares of the Company from the face valve of Rs. 10 each into 2 equity shares of Rs. 5 each.

2. Options granted upto October 3, 2002, are entitled for additional shares keeping in view of bonus shares in the ratio of

Jiar 5,

Pricing formula: Closing price of the Equity Shares of the Company priar to the date of mesting of the Compensation Committee
[CClin which stock options are granted on the stock exchange on which the shares of the Company are tisted. The closing price
of the shares of the Company at the National Stock Exchange Limited on January 16, 2006, was Rs. 391.15 per share. Accardingly,
exercise price of the options gran'ed by the CC at the meeting held on January 17, 2004, was fixed at Rs. 392 per Share of Rs. 5

each.

lil  Options granted in the year 2004 to senior managerial personnel*:

Name

Dr. Brian W. Tempest
Mr. Ramesh L. Adige

Mr. Ram S. Ramasundar
Mr. Pushpinder Bindra
Mr. Dipax Chattaraj

Mr. Peter Burema

Or. Vijay Kumar Batra
Dr. Prad:p Kumar 8hatnaga-
Dr. Gowri Shankar

Mr. Ashok Kumar Rampal
Mr. Jay Deshmukh

Mr. Omesh Sethi

Mr. James Meehan

Mr. S.K. Chawla

Mr. Lalit Ahluwalia

Mr. Udai Upendra

Mr. Sanjeev Bani

Dr. Shyam Bishen

Mr. 5.C. Agrawal

Mr. Rahul Goswami

Mr. Vishal Malhotra

Mr. Ramesh Parekh

Dr. Naresh Kumar

Dr. Arun Purchit

* Excludes the Senior Managerial personnel who ceased to be in emplayment with the Company.

Designation (Present)

Chief Mentor and Executive Vice Chairman

Whole-time Directar Corporate Affairs &
Globat Corperate Communicatians

President & CFQ

President & Chief Technical Officer

President, Corporate Development

President, Global Business Operations

Head, Generics / NDDS / Drug Development

Vice President, New Drug Discovery Research
Vice President, Medical Affairs & Clinical Research
Vice President, Pharma Research & NDDS

Sr. Vice President, Intellectual Property

Vice President & Head, Global Finance

Vice President, Generic Sales and Marketing {Regian IV)
Vice President, Global Internal Audit

Vice President & CFO [Region v

Vice President, Global Human Resources

Sr. Vice President & Regional Director, Asia & CIS
Vice President, Corporate Development [Region V]
Vice President, Global Taxation

Vice President, Strategic Planning

Vice President, Fermentation and Engineering & Facilities

Vice President, Pharma Manufacturing

Sr. Vice President, APl Research Manufacturing & 3usiness

Vice President, International Marketing Development

No. of
Options granted
40,000

10,000
10,000
10,000
8.000
10,000
3.000
4,000
3,000
3.000
8,000
4,000
5,000
5,000
3.000
5.000
7,500
3.000
4,000
3.000
3,000
4,000
4,000
3,000



liv]

[v]

(v

[wvii)
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Employees who have been granted 5% of more
of the options granted during the year

Employees who have been granted options during
any one year equal to or exceeding 1% of the 1ssued
capital of the Company at the time of grant

Diluted earnings per share {EPS)

(a}  Method of catculation of employee
compensation cost

[b)  Difference between the employee cor pensation
cost so cornputed at (a) above and the :mployee
compensation cost that shall have been recognized
if it had used the fair value of the options

[¢)  Theimpact of this difference on profits and on
EPS of the Company

fal Weighted-average exercise price and
fair value of Stock Options granted :
{Post split adjusted pricel

Stock Options Weighte 1 average

granted on exercise price [in Rs.]
12.01.2001 335.50
03.12.200i 297.50
01.04.2002 372.50
07.02.2003 283.50
22.01.2004 495.00
17.01.2005 538.50
17.01.2006 392.00

Description of the method and
significant assumptions used during
the year to estimate the fair value of
the options, including the fotlowing
weighted average information :

Nil

Nil
Rs. 9.87

The Company has calculated the employee
compensation cost using the intrmsic value
of the stock options

Rs. 148.54 Mn [net of tax] lincrease]

Profit after tax Rs. 3,805.43 Mn
Less : additional

employee compensation

cost hased on fair value + Rs. 14856 Mn

{net of tax)
Adjusted PAT : Rs. 3,656.87 Mn
Adjusted EPS [diluted) : Rs, 9.50

Weighted average
Fair value (in Rs.)

Closing market price
at NSE on the date of

grant [in Rs.)
145.00 324615
188.50 369.48
226.00 449,48
132.50 317.45
212.50 503.10
21548 534.33
194.07 39115

The Black Scholes option pricing model was
developed for estimating fair value of traded
options that have no vesting restrictions and
are fully transferable. Since Option pricing
models require use of substantive
assumptions, changes therein can materially
affect fair value of Options. The option

pricing models do not necessarily provide a
reliable measure of fair value of options.

The main assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model during the year were as follows :
Risk free interest rate

Expected life of options from the datels) of grant
Expected volatility

Dividend yield

7.55%
10 years
40.55
217
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ANNEXURE C

Information pursuant to Companies {Disclosure of Particulars in Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, forming part
of the Report of the Directors

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AMD ITS IMPACT
Measures for Conservation of Energy Impact resuiting into

saving of Rs. in Million

Operational optimization of AC plants and Chilled water pumps through BM5

(Building Management Systern] at control room 2.30
Segregation of cocling water {20W) loads of 350 TR chillers and DG sets /

Air compressors by installing new COW pumps and headers 1.47
Operational optimization of 18 AHUs through BMS by instatling 2-way valves in

the CHW outlets 0.24
Fanless cooling tower for vacLum pump water circulation 0.98
Operationat controls on Liquid nitrogen consumption 1.24
Energy savings in cooling water pumps and chilled water pumnps using Honeywell systemn 112
Maintained unity power factor for PSEB supply throughout the year, thereby securing

discount from PSEB on billing 4.45
Condensate recovery improverment from 25% to 35% 0.58
Separation of -20°C and -10°C brine generation and distribution systems 1.22
Stoppage of ETP air compressor and hooking it to central air supply system 0.22
Switch over from Liquid Nitrogen to PSA Nitregen for blanketing of Hydrogenarators

and reactors in MP-1 plant 2.0t
Installation of energy efficient pumps for Brine supply system 0.33
Improved insulation of DI water distribution pipelines 0.27
Separaticn of Chilled water supply for MP-2 recovery 0.50
Improvement in MP-8 recovery by re-engineering of piping and using improved

version of vacuum condenser 0.33
Selvent recovery improvemenl in Doxy plant, by instatlation of booster pump and

vacuum condenser . 1.35
Replacement of 90 KW cooling tower motor with 55 KW motor for cooling tower at

A-10, Mohali 0.45
Stoppage of 55 KW cooling tov/er pump far A-10 and DG set utilities by

rationatization of operations & reducing operating pressures 0.40
Improvements in the operatiny efficiency of the boilers by usage of fuel additives. 0.40
Replacement of under-rated "capacitors’ 0.6
Replacement of low efficiency transformer # 3 with high efficiency transformer 0.08

2. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
Specific areas in which R&D is carried out

b

Develop technology for Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs), key drug intermediates and conventional & value added
innovative dosage forms - complying to international quatity and reguiatory norms

Develop "Platform Technologies™ and "Products” in the area of Novel Drug Delivery Systermns

Discovery and Development of new drug molecules in select areas : Infectious Diseases {anti-bacterials and anti-fungals),
Metabolic Diseases [type & diabetes, hyperlipidemial, Inflammatory / Respiratory Diseases lasthma, chronic pulmonary
cbstructive disease and rheumnatoid arthritis) and Oncology

Develop herbal drugs with rationale scientific backing, involving standardization of betanical Actives, foliowed by their
toxicity and clinical studies.

GLP / cGCP complying Bicavaitability / Bicequivalence, Toxicology and Clinical Studies (Phase - |, Il & IlI}

Innovation in packaging fo- improved patient convenience and compliance

Up-gradation of existing technologies / preducts on ongoing basis

Benefits derived as result of R&D activities

Technology to manufacturs APls and Dosage Forms

Oral Controlled Release Dosage Forms leading to better patient convenience and compliance

Generation of high quality <lata that comply with international regulatory requirements, for registration of APis and generic
dosage forms in India and abroad leading to speedy approvals

Improved productivity / process efficiencies

Internaticnzlly competitive prices and product quality

Safe and environment friendly processes
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- Generation of Intellectual wealth for the carnpany in key potential markets

~  Grant of process patents for Active Pharmaceutical Ingred-ents [AP|s} as well as dosage forms {both conventional & novel
drug delivery systems)

- Product patents in the areas of drug discovery research

- Self reliance and import substitution for conservation of Foreign Exchange

- Foreign exchange earnings / savings

- Speed to marketplace

- Enhanced business through Licensing arrangements / strategic alliances / custom synthesis

- Enhanced Glebal presence / visibility d

¢] Future plan of action

- Continue augmenting R&D capabilities & productivity through technological innovations, use of modern scientific and
technological tachniques, training and deve .opment, benchmarking and globat networking

- Greater thrust in the areas of Novel Brug D:livery Systemns and New Drug Discovery Research

- Continue emphasis on Custom Synthesis to draw a greater leverage on the built-in Chernical & Clinical Research
infrastructure & capabilities

- Continue developing innovative, commerualh}'wable crocess know-how for both Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs]
and dosage forms

- Continue strengihening the Clinical Research infrasiructure and capabilities complying international GLP / ¢GCP norms

- Continue improvements in packaging for sharmaceuticals to ensure shelf-tife / stability, quality and, better patent
convenience and compliance

- Enhance national and international researcy networking and strategic alliances

dl Expenditure on R&D Rs. in Million
Year ended Year ended
December 3%, December 31,
20046 2005
Capital 974.86 1,529.72
Revenue 3,863.34 4,863.60

. TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION ANE) INNOVATION

al Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption and innovaticn
- Asper2[al
b} Benefit derived as a result of the above efforts, «.g. product improvement, cost reduction, product development
- Asper 2[b] above
Future course of action
al To centinue developing innovative and commertially viable process know-how for APls and Dosage Farms{Conventional
and Novel Drug Delivery System}
b) information in case of imported technologylimparts during the {ast five year)
- Not applicable

. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO

a] Overseas sales [excluding sales to Nepal] were Rs. 27,126.23 Mn for the financial year December 31, 2006
- 01 product dossiers were filed with various international regulatory authoritiesand regulatory approvals were received
for 556 preduct dossiers
- Drug Master Files [DMFs) for APU were filed with the regulatory authorities in several markets

- Continued to receive incame by way of royalty, technical and management service fee and dividend from overseas
subsidiaries/affiliates

Rs. in Million
Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2006 2005
Earnings 27,558.67 25,577.40

Outge 10,813.50 13,243.75




Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy

A. Electricity and Fuel Consumption

1.

4.

Electricity
(al Purchased Units [KWH
Total Amount (Rs. Million)
Rate /Unit [Rs.)
[b] Own Generation
il Through Diesel Generator Unit ([KWH}
Unit per Ltr. of Dieset Oil
Cost / Unit
il Through Steam Turbine / Generator
Coal [Specify quality and whare used)
Furnace Oil Qty. (K. Ltrs))
Total Amount [Rs Miltion!
Average Rate [Rs. per Ltr)

Others / internal generation

B. Consumption per unit of prodiction

Units

Electricity

Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients  [kwh per kg}
Dosage Farms {kwh per
1000 packs)

Furnace Oil

Coat

Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients  [Ltrs per kg
Dosage Forms (K. Ltrs per
1000 packs)

Others

Standards
(if any)

No specific
standards -
consumption
per unit depends
on product mix

Current
Year 2006

106,937,832
428.26
Rs. 4.00

10,421,072
3.53

Rs. 8.42

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
14,903

274.36

Rs. 18.41

Not Applicable

Current
Year

54.19
83.94

8.03
0.01

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Previous
Year 2005

94,244,048
368.04
Rs. 3.91

14,487,613
3.63

Rs. 6.93

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
14,035

21.69

Rs. 15.08

Not Applicable

Pravious
Year

60.50
82.60

9.04
6.01

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

]



Rs. in Million

1997-98 1998 ** 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008
Results for the year N
Sales 13,3352 10,4405 15,598.3 17.36b.6 20.545.4 28,1979 353349 341434 353665 40,587.1
Index 1.0 11 12 13 1.5 21 2.6 27 27 3.0
Exports 5.956.9 4,414 73237 8.019.6 10,2908 '8,502.9 24.6746 245624 233711 27,175.7
Index 1.0 10 1.2 13 17 3.1 4.1 41 39 4.6
Gross Profit 2,387.% 1,592.1 2,5625 3170 3.9244 7.304.8 10,0614 T.21.7 AR 6,081.7
Index 1.0 0.9 1.t 13 1.6 3.1 4.2 3.0 13 2.5
Profit before Tax 2,015 1,240.4 2,103.8 1,945 4 27117 71338 95637 62834 20138 4,429.8
Index 1.0 o8 1.0 1.0 14 35 4.8 31 1.0 2.2
Profit after Tax 1,866.5 1,170.0 1,968.8 1,824.4 2,519.6 6,2358 7.947.8 5,784.7 22370 3,805.4
Index 1.0 08 1A 1.0 13 33 43 28 1.2 2.0
Equity Dividend 530.7 54601 84692 865.2 1,158.9 24340 % 33563 376246 31667 3.168.9
Index 16 1.1 16 16 22 44 59 6.0 6.0 6.0
Equity Dividend (%) 100 50 75 kL 100 150 170 170 170 170
Earning per share [Rs.| 34.74 13.46 *** 16.99 15.74 21.86 28.85 42.61 28.2% 5.68 * 9.87 4
Year-end Position
Gross Block+ 7,347.2 8.045.¢ 86759 92415 §.2782 104488 1247062 1646694 223214 24,354.5
Index 1.0 1.1 12 '3 13 1.4 1.7 23 3.0 3.3
Net Block 57424 6,135.5 63190 64407 61305 67519 B.0178% N4174 163281 17,359.1
Index 10 11 1.1 11 1 12 1.4 20 2.8 3.0
Net Current Assets 9.032.8 8,320.5 81575 82577 74545 95844 1330289 9446682 11,2810 12,629.95
Index 1.0 0% 127 ce 08 1.1 15 1.0 12 1.4
Net Worth 12,866.3 14,008.3 14,979.3 15,82¢.5 16,069.7 188281 23,2178 250951 237730 23,500.1
Index 1.0 1.3 1.2 "2 12 15 18 2.0 18 1.8
Share Capital 537.2 1,158.9 ** 11589 1158.9 L1589 1.854.5 1,855.4 1,858.9 1,852.2 1,863.43
Reserve & Surplus 12,326.01 12,849.4 13.820.4 14,6674 14,9108 149736 213623 232362 219108 21,6367
Book value per share [Rs.) 239.44 1209 *** 129.25 1346.56 138 46 101.52 $% 12513 135.0 63.84 * 63.05 *
Neo. of Employees 5655 5449 5347 573¢ 6424 6297 6797 7195 N7 8020
Index : No. of umes
+ Includes Capital Work-in-Progress
v 9 months Apr-Dec. Indexation based en annualised figures for ¢ months ended 31.12.98
***  After 1:1 Bonus Issue and eonversion of outstandin j warrants.
% Includes Interim Dividend Rs. 5 per sharg, prior to ssue of bonuz shares and Final Dividend of Rs 10 per share

% Post issue of Bonus shares in the ratio of 3 for 5 in October, 2002,

After Share split

Sales are stated net of excise duty recovered from 2002 omvards
Earning per share are stated on fully diluted basis from 2002 onwards




To the Members of Ranbaxy Labcratories Limited

1.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited ("the Company”) as at December
31, 2006, and also the Profit and Loss account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on the date
annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards
require that we plan and perlorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatemen:. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made ty management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report] Order, 2063 as amended by the Companies (Auditor's Report]
(Amendment] Order, 2004 (tr e ‘Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A] of
Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 [the "Act’], we give in the Annexure ‘A’ statement on the matters specified
in paragraph 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comment in Annexure "A" referred to above, we report that :

al  We have obtained all th2 information and explanation, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpcse of our audit;

bl In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept oy the Company so far as appears
from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
staternents, read together with the notes thereon, comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-
section [3C) of Section 211 of the Act, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, in the case
of :

il the Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2006;
il the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
iiil  the Cash Flow Sta:ement, of the cash flow for the year ended on that date.

el On the basis of written representation received from the directors as on December 31, 2006, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors are disqualified as on Decerber 31,
2006 from being appoir ted as a director in terms of clause (g} of sub-section (1} of Section 274 of the Act.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

Vinod Chandiok
Partner
Membership No. 10093

Place : Gurgaon
Dated : March 29, 2007
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REPORT

ANNEXURE 'A’ TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure 'A’ to the auditors’ report of even date to the members of Ranbaxy Laboratories lelted on the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006

Based upon the audit procedures performed fo- the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
staternents and in terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by us
in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(il

il

(i)

{iv)

(v}

[vi}

{viil

{viii

(ix)

ta] The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b]  The Company's programme of physical verification of all its fixed assets over a period of three years, is
in our opinion, reasonable having regzrd to the size of the Company and the natue of its fixed assets. As
informed, no matenal discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

[} In our opinion, a substantial part of fixed assets have not been disposed off during the year.

la] inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification is reasonable.

[b] The precedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonabte and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

{c)  The Company is maintaining praper rzcords ¢f irventory and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification.

fal The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained uncer section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 4[iii)
(b), 4liii) [c] and &fiiil [d] of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(bl The Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured from comganies, firms or cther parties
covered in the register maintained uncer section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 4liii)
{fl and 4liii) {gl of the Order are not applicable tc the Company.

In our opinion, there are adequate internal control systems commensurate with the size of the Company and
the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventcry, fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services.
During the course of our audit, no major weakness has been noticed in the internal controts in respect of these
areas.

(a]  The particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Act, have been entered in
the register maintained under that section.

[b]  The transactions made in pursuance sf contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Act
are, in our opinion, at prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the
relevant time.

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year, Accardingly, the provisions of clause 4 (vl of the Order
are not applicable to the Company,

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit systerm commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of acccunt maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the
Central Government for the maintenance o’ cost records under clause [d} of sub-section [1] of section 209 of
the Companies Act, 1936, and are ol the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained.

(3] The Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor
education fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service-tax, customs duty,
excise duty, cess and other material statutory cues as applicable with the appropriate authorities. No
undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-tax, wealth-tax, service-tax, sales-tax. customs duty
and excise duty were outstanding, at the year end for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.
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()

{xi

ixiil

(xiii)

[xiv]

bxv)

[xvi]

Ixvii)

[b] There are no amounts in respect of sales-tax, income-tax, customs du<y. weatth-tax, service-tax, excise
duty and cess that have not been deposited with the appropriate authcrities on account of any dispute,
other than those menioned below:

Name of the statute Nature of the dues  Amount Period to Forum where
Rs. in Miltion which the dispute is pending
amount relates
Punjab General Sales-ta¢ Purchase tax, 219 1989-90 & Sales tax Tribunal
Act, 1948 : interest and penalty 1990-N
Punjab General Sales-tax Purchase tax 0.06 2005 Sales tax Tribunal
Act, 1948

The Company has no accuriulated losses at the end of the financiat year and it has not incurred cash losses
in the current and immedietely preceding financial year.

The Company has not defaLlted in repayment of dues to any financial institution, bank. The Company does not
have any debentures during the year.

The Company has not grarted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4 [xii] of the Order are not appticable to
the Company.

The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
4 [xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures ard other investrnents. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 4 [xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

There are no guarantees outstanding as at the year end that are given by the Company for loans taken by others
from the banks. The terms and conditions of guarantees given by the Company for loans taken, outstanding,
and repaid by others during the year, from banks are not prima facie prejudiciat to the interest of the Company.

The Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

Based on an overall examir ation of the balance sheet and cash flow statemment of the Company, we report that
no funds ratsed on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment.

Ixviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties ar companies covered in the register

“xix)

[xx]

(xxil

maintained under section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisians of clause 4 (xviii] of the Order are not
applicable to the Company

The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
4 [xix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
4 [xx] of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

We report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our
audit.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountanis

Vinod Chandiok
FPartner
Membership No. 10093

Place : Gurgaon
Dated : March 29, 2007




BALANCE SHEET
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006

Schedule
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share capital
Reserves and surplus 2
SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING ALLOTMENT
LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans 3
Unsecured loans 4
Deferred tax liability [Net) ' 5
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS &
Gross block
l.ess : Depreciation
Net block
Capital works-in-prog-ess
INVESTMENTS 7
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories 8
Sundry debtors 9
Cash and bank balances 10
Other current assets n
Loans and advances 12
Less:
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current liabitities 13
Provisions 14
NET CURRENT ASSETS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 25
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 24

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of ihe financial staterrents.
This is the balance sheei referred to in our report of even Jata.

2006

1,863.43
21,627.91

23,491.34

8.79

2,242.90
29,543.10

31.7856.00

1,502.38

56,788.51

21,335.74
6,995.43

14,340.31

3,018.79
26,799.45

7,549.12
10,137.45
711.51
780.85
3,911.01

25,089.94

7,233.30
5,226.68

12,459.98

12,629.96

54,788.51

Rs. in Million
2005

1.862.21
21,907.98
23,770.19

278

3.534.92
6,763.12
10,298.04
1,165.81
35.236.82

17,993.15
5.993.47
11,999.48
4,328.43
7.627.75

8,909.33
8,066.18
1,165.93
117916
3.383.08
22,703.68

7,282.80
4,139.92
a7
11,280.96
35,236.82

On behalf of the Bloard of Directors

For WALKER, CHANDIOK & CO TEJENDRA KHANNA DR BRIAN W. TEMPEST
Chartered Accountants Chairman Chief Mentor &

Executive Vice Chairman
VINOD CHANDIOK ATUL SOBTI RaM 5. RAMASUNDAR
Partner Chief Operating Officer & Fresident & CFO
Membership No. 10093 Whole-time Director

Place : Gurgacn
Dated : March 29, 2007

MALVINDER MOHAN SINGH
CEQ & Managing Director

SUSHIL K. PATAWARI

Secretary
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

INCOME
Operating income
Less : Excise duty
Other income

EXPENDITURE

Materials

Manufacturing

Personnel

Setling, general and administration
Research and developrent

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE INTEREST,
DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT
Interest
Dapreciation, amortization and impairrnent
Profit from operations
Continuing operations
D scontinued operatians
Profit from operations before exceptional items
P-ofit from sale of undertaking
Profit before tax
P-ovision for tax
Profit after tax
Tax - earlier years
Balance as per last balance sheet
Transfer from Foreign projects reserve
Balance available for appropriation
APPROPRIATIONS

Bividend

Interim

Final

Tax on dividend

Transfer to General reserve

Surplus carned forward

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Rs.)

Including discontinued operations and exceptional items
Basic
Diluted

Excluding discontinued operations anc exceptionat items
Basic
Diluted

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rs. in Million
Schedule 2006 2005
19 40,259.40 36,017.69
481,72 39,777.68 820.00  35,697.69
16 3 904.80
_40,159.59 36.602.49
17 16,323.82 15,048.92
18 1,9%97.09 1,752.91
19 3,310.85 3.016.52
20 8,582.78 B. 74176
21 _.3,863.35 4,863.60
34,077.89 33.423.7
6,081.70 3.178.78
bB4.44 2641
22 _].067.50 1.013.33
4,429.76 1.731.48
. - 169 .66
4,429.76 1,901.34
- 112.29
4,429.76 2.03.63
23 _ 624.33 (223.35)
3,805.43 2,236.98
145.84 [116.58)
560.34 2.270.05
22.95 30.65
4,534.56 o 44102
3,168.94 g31.1
- 2.235.55
L4464 .44 44412
450.00 250.00
471,18 960.34
4,534.56 442112
24 = =
10.460 5.70
9.87 5.68
10.60 514
9.87 5.12
25
26

The schedules referred to abave form an integral part of the financial statements
This is the profit and loss account refe-red te in our report of even date.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

For WALKER, CHANDIOK & CO TEJENDRA KHANNA
Chartered Accountants thairman
VINOD CHANDIOK ATUL S08TI

Partner

Mernbership No, 10093 Whole-time Director
Flace : Gurgaon

Cated : March 29, 2007

Ghief Operating Officer &

DR. BRIAN W. TEMPEST
Chief Mentor &
Executive Vice Chafrman

RAM 5. RAMASUNDAR
President & CFQ

MALVINDER MOHAN SINGH
CEQ & Managing Director

SUSHIL K. PATAWARI
Secretary




FINANCIAL STATE

RANBAX

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 Rs. in Mitlion
. 20056 2005
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before exceptional items 4,429.76 1,501.34
Adjustments for
Depreciation / Amortization 1,067.50 1,013.33
Assets written off 214 29.54
Deferred employees compensation 26.35 32.68
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (270.74) [221.54)
Dividend income [10.25) {30.91)
Profit on disposat of inwvestrnents (0.01) [424.50)
|Prafitl / Loss on sale of fixed assets [Net) 13.54] 29.29
Interest expense 584.44 264.11
Interest incorme (201.05) [139.7¢)
Amounts written off 18.156 163.27
Provision / [Reversall for doubtfut debts and advances 44.74 [225.08)
1,257.74 490.43
Operating profit before working capital changes 5,687.50 2.391.77
Adjustments for :
Inventories 1639.79] {278.31)
Sundry dentors / receivables (2,283.67) (170691
Loans and advances [451.01] 158.95
Frade / Other payables 122.66 (743.88)
Other current assets . 513.23 1544.61)
12,738.58) [1,540.54)
Net cash generated from operating activity 2,948.92 B851.23
Direct taxes paid [Net of refundsl 205.94 221.94
Net cash from operating activities 3,154.86 1,673.17
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets / capitat works-in-progress i2,158.19] [6,258.89}
Cans:deration receved for discontinued business - 78010
Sale proceeds of fixed assels 61.11 91.3%
Investment in Subsidiaries {202.00) (878.89}
Other iwestments (18,9469.70) [13.44)
Sale proceeds of investments 0.01 480,00
Shert term deposit / secured toans 16.35 5.68
Interest received 204.8% 135.73
Dandend recewed 10.25 30.9i
Net cash used in investing activities {21,037.36) [5.627.55]
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Praceeds from issue of capital lincluding premium) 43.32 135.53
Increase in bank borrawings . 2,153.73 9.101.29
Proceeds from FCCB 19.553.60 -
Increase { {Decrease] wn other borrawings 38.54 [5.14)
Interest paid [573.73] (26212
FCCB 1ssue expenses 1227.501 -
Dwdend paid 13,167.27) (3,164.26]
Tax on Dindeng (444.20) (443.80)
Net cash from financing activities 17,3%6.51 5,351.50
{NCREASE / {DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1485.99) 807.02
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 1.109.56 302.54
Cash and cash equivalents at the close 623.57 1.109.54
Notes :
Cash and cash equivalents include
Cash and cheques in hand and remittances n transit 80.48 204.93
With banks in -
Current accounts [Net of dividend accounts Rs. 87.0¢ Mn [Previous year Rs. 55.27 Mnl] 103.09 44,63
Depos:t accounts [Net of pledged Rs. 0.88 Mn [Previcus year Rs. 103 Mnl} 440.00 8460.00

623.57 3,109.56
This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date - -

On behalf of the Beard of Directers

For WALKER, CHANDIOK & CO TEJENDRA KHANNA ER. BRIAN W, TEMPEST MALYINDER MOHAN SINGH

Chartered Accountants Chairman Chief Mentor & CEC & Managing Director
Execuive Vice Chairman

VINOD CHANDIOK ATUL S08Ti RAM S. RAMASUNDAR SUSHIL K. PATAWARI

Partner Chref Operating Oficer & President & CFO Secretary

Membership No. 10093 Whole-time Direc’or

Ptace . Gurgaen
Dated : March 29, 2037
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 41, 2006

Rs. in Million
SCHEDULE 1 2006 2005
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
598.000.000 [Previous year 398,000,000)
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each 2,990.00 2,990.00
100,000 [Previous year 100,000 ]
Cumnutative preference skares of Rs, 100 each, . 10.00 10.00
3,000.00 3,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
372,686,964 [Previous year 572,642,190}
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid __1,863.43 1,862.21
1,863.43 1862.21
SCHEDULE 2
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Capital reserve 5.41 5.4
Amalgamation reserve 43.75 43,79
Securities premium account .
As per last balance sheet 6,235.31 6.054.54
Add : Received during the year * . 64.69 18077
6,300.00 6,235.31
Less : Expenses on issue of “CCB [Net of taxes) ’ 150.93 -
Less : Premiurn payable on redemption of FCCB [Net of taxes) 549.47 -
5,599.60 6.235.31
* Includes Rs. 8.59 million \previous year Rs. 23.03 million)
transferred from Ervployees’ Stock Options Outstanding
Foreign projects reserve
As per last balance sheet 85.67 116.32
Less: Transfer to profit and loss account . 22.95 30.65
62.72 85.67
General reserve
As per last balance shest 14,901.24 14,651.24
Add : Transfer from profit ar d loss account 450.00 250.00
15,351.24 14,901.24
Employees’ stock options
Employees’ stock options autstanding 127.96 15019
Less: Deferred employee compensation 33.95 73.93
94.01 76.26
Surplus in profit and loss accourt 47118 560.34
Total 21,627.91 21,907.98
SCHEDULE 3
SECURED £ DANS
Loans from banks 2,242.90 3534.92
Secured against stocks, hook dests and receivables,
both present and future. 2,242.90 3.934.92
SCHEDULE 4
UNSECURED LOANS
Short term lpans
Banks 7.611.62 5,128.%1
Long term loans
Zero coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBI 19,474.40 -
[Refer Note 19 on Sched:.le 26)
Banks 2,398.76 161445
Others 44.30 -
Deferred sales tax credit 14.02 19.76

29.543.10 6,763.12




SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 Rs. in Millien
SCHEDULE 5 2006 2005
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)
Deferred tax liability anising on account of :
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 2,622.37 2.552.88
N 2,622.37 2.552.88
Less: Deferred tax asset arising on account of :
Provision for:
Doubtiul debts and advances 199.63 184.57
Retirement benefits N 54.66 46.99
FCCR redemption prernium charged to secirities premium account 278.79 -
Tax losses carried forward 583.46 1,151.72
Others 3.45 3.79
1,119.99 1,387.07
1,502.38 1,165.81
SCHEDULE & i
FIXED ASSETS Rs. in Million
Accurnulated
Gross block Depreciation, Net Black
amortization
& impairment
Description 20065 Additions*® Deletions 2006 2004 2006 2005
Tangibles
Land 403.36 2204 351 421.89 - 421.89 403.36
Buldings 2,669.18 387.55% 130 3,065.43 514,23 2,541,20 22299
Plant and machtery 12,455.72 2,717.28 75.26  15,097.74 5,146.58 2.931.15 8,015.24
Furniture and fixtures 700.44 101.77 13.59 788.62 208.05 580.57 530.90
Yehicles 264.40 89.16 3158 321.98 64.43 257.55 21353
Intangibles
Product development 268.81 14.49 - 283.30 - 283.30 268.81
Patent, trade marks, designs and licences 631.24 23.62 - 654.86 607.25 47.61 107.42
Software 390.00 110.92 - 500.92 274.86 2246.06 140,51
Non-compete 210.00 1.00 - 211.00 160.03 50.97 70.00
Total 17.993.18 3,467.83 125.24 21,335.74 6,995.43 14,340.31  11,999.48
Previous Year 14,0278 457204 plie75 1759315 5.993.47 1199968 8.775.80
= Add.t.ons to fixed assets during the year include Rs. 974 8¢ mitlion [previous vear Rs. 1,529.72 rillion) used for research and development.
SCHEDULE 7 Rs. in Millien
INVESTMENTS 2004 2005
CURRENT
Trust securities
Other than trade - unquoted
41,089 USé4 Bonds of Rs, 100 each [6,75% Tax Freel of the Unit Trust o Inaia 4.11 4101
4.1 4.11
LONG TERM
Investments in shares of caompanies [fully paid)
Naturi: of Face Numbers
Trade : investment value 2006
Quoted
Zenotech Laboratories Limried Equity shares Fs. 10 2.000,000 - 20000 -
Other than trade : .
Quoted
Fartis Financial Sanvces Ltd. Equity shares Rs. 10 - 100 - *
The Great Eastern Shipping Company tid. Equity shares Fs 10 500 500 0.03 88%
Unquoted ] .
Fertis Healthcare Limited Equity shares fs. 10 14,097,660 14,097,660 140.98 140.98
Biotech Cansartium India Ltd. Equity shares £s. 10 50,000 50,0C0 0.50 0.50
Mirrbua Greenfield [Purjab) Limrited Equity shares ks 10 250,000 30,0C0 0.50
143.98 141.98
Subsidiary companies (Tradel
Domestic
Vidyut {nvestments Ltd, Equity shares Rs. 10 25,008,400 25,078,400 250.08 250.08
Ranbaxy Drugs Ltd. Equity shares Rs. 10 3,100,020 3,130,020 31.60 31.00
10% NiRP Rs. 10 250 250 * M
Ranbaxy Drugs and Chemicals Company Equity shares Rs. 10 3,100,000 3,100,000 17.25 "7.25
{A public company with unlimited liability]
Solus Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Equity shares Rs. 10 3,000,700 3,030,760 30,01 30.01
Rexcel Pharmaceuticals Lto. Equity shares Rs. 10 1,000,080 1,000,000 10.00 10.00
guﬁc Pharma Ltd. Equity shares Rs. 100 4,900 4,900 §35.22 535.22
verseas
Ranbaxy [Netheriands|BV., The Netherlands Shares EUR 1C0 3,939,716 459,863 21,919.1% 2.945.46
Ranbaxy [Hongkong] Ltd., Hongkon: Equity shares FK$1 2,400,000 2.402.0C0 9.84 9.84
Ranbaxy Pharmacie Genengues , France Equity shares €9 800,000 800,000 3,400.02 3.400.02
Ranbaxy [Guangzhou Chinal Ltd.. China Capital contribution LS $ 5,900,000 193.95 193.95
Ranbaxy [Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia Ordina y shares M1 3,189,248 3.189,248 36.56 3656
Ranbaxy [Nigarial le..NL?er;a Ordina y shares Naira 1 13,070,648 13,070,648 7.40 7.40
Renbaxy Unicherr Cg, t.4d,, Thailand Ordina y shares Bahts 100 208,470 206,670 21,20 21,20
226.46 g 759199

Less: Provision for dimimnution in value of long term investments

NOTES
1. * Rounded off to Nil

2. NCRP derotes Non convertibte redeemable preference shares
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Rs. in Million
SCHEDULE 8 2006 2005
INVENTORIES
{As certified by the managemen ]
Stores and spares 80.0% 82.38
Raw materials 3,835.11 3,664.20
Packaging materials 424,24 400.06
Finished goods
Own manufactured 3.098.49 2.704.77
Others 359.98 325.75
Work-in-process 1,751.21 1,732.17
9,549.12 8,909.33
SCHEDULE ¢ - -
SUNDRY DEBTORS
{Considered good except where provided for)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Secured 0.84 23.26
Unsecured 1,831.73 488.80
1,832.57 72.06
Other debts - -
Secured 23113 224,09
Unsecured 8,231.0% 7.243.56
8,462.14 7.467.65
10,294.7 8.179.71
tLess : Doubtfut and provided for 157.26 113.53
10,137.45 8,066.18
SCHEDULE 10
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and chegues in hand 19.00 18.25
Remittances in transit 61.48 186.68
With scheduled banks in:
Current accounts §7.01 5.88
Deposit accounts 440.88 861.05
Margin money accounts - 0.05
Unclaimed dividend accounts 87.06 55.27
With non-scheduled banks in:
Current accounts 36.08 37.75
711.51 1,165.93
SCHEDBULE 11
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
tUnsecured, considered good e «cept whare provided for)
Export incentives accrued 463.23 696.79
Exchange gain accrued on forward contracts 184.35 321.06
Insurance claims 77.48 144.84
Interest accrued 4.82 8.58
Gthers 80.89 37.81
810.77 1,209.08
Less : Doubtful and provided for 29.92 29.92
780.85 1.179.16
SCHEDULE 12
LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Considered good except where provided forl
Secured 57.34 73.69
Unsecured
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received 2,694.74 2,233.65
Due from subsidiary companies 394.68 404.57
MAT credit receivable 381.50 50.00
Prepaid income-tax 788.45 1,026.07
4,316.91 3,787.98
Less : Doubtful and provided for 405.90 404,90

3.911.0 3.383.08




FINANCIAL STATEM NT:S OF R
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Rs. in Million
SCHEDULE 13 2006 2005
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Acceptances 7.18 3013
Interest accrued but not due on loans 12.92 z.21
Sundry creditors 4,701.42 5.674.54
Unclaimed dividend * 87.06 55.27
Other liabilities 2,424.72 1,520.65
7,233.30 7.282.80
* Not due for deposit to tnvestor education & proteztion fund - -
SCHEDULE 14
PROVISIONS
Retirement benefits 1,174,18 1,004.16
income-tax 673.25 586.68
Premium payable on redemption of FCCB 828.26 -
[Refer note 19 on schedule 28]
Final dividend - 2,235.55
Interim dividend 2,237.22 -
Tax on dividend 313.77 313.53
5,226.68 4.139.92
SCHEDULE 15
OPERATING INCOME
SALES
Domestic 13,893.14 12.815.44
Export 27.175.65 23,371.10
41,068.79 36,186.54
Less : Trade discounts 1,348.28 1,285.27
39,720.91 34,901.27
OTHERS —
Royalty and technicat knaw-how 338.26 304.95
Export incentives 479.09 450.55
Exchange [Loss) / Gain [Net] (582.11) 537.45
Sundries 303.65 128.47
538.89 1,616.42
40,259.40 36,517.69
SCHEDULE 146
OTHER INCOME
Interest 201.05 139.76
Dividend 10.25 3091
Profit on sale of fixed assets 31.03 1.99
Profit on sale of long term investments 0.01 42450
Unclaimed balances / excess provisions written ba =k. 47.55 243.74
Miscellaneous 92.02 £3.90
381.91 904.80
SCHEDULE 17
MATERIALS
Raw materials consumed 12,274.26 11.054.91
Packaging materials consumed 1,703.97 1,461.43
Finished goads purchased - 2,792.58 284216
Increase in work in process and finished goods
Opening stock
Work-in-process 1,732.47 1,658.47
Finished goods
Own manufactured 2,704.77 2,228.83
Others 325.75 565.81
4,762.69 4,453
Less : - -
Closing stack
Work-in-process 1,751.21 173217
Finished goods
Own manufactured 3,098.49 2,704,777
Others ’ 359.98 325.75
5,209.68 £,762.69
tncrease [4456.99) 20958}

Materiats consumed ' 16,323.82 15,048.92
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 18
MANUFACTURING
Stores and spares consumed
Power and fuel
Repairs and maintenance
Factory buildings
Plant and machinery
Analytical charges
Processing charges
Excise duty

SCHEDULE 19
PERSONNEL
Sataries,wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and ot er funds
Workmen and staff welfare
Amortization of deferred employees compensation

SCHEDULE 20
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION
Rentals
Rates and taxes
Reguiatery filing fee
Printing and stationery
Electricity and water
Insurance
Communication
Legal and professional charges
Travel and conveyance
Running and maintenance of vehicles
Repairs and maintenance
Discounts
Claims paid
Freight, clearing and forwarding
Marketing and prorotion services
Advertising and sales promotion
Market research expenses
Conferences and meetings
Commission
Recruitrent and training
Assets written off
Less on sale of fixed assets
Amounts written off
Provision for doubtful debts anc advances
Others

2006

311.49
806.98

26.51
67.32
26,59
701.31
56.89

1,997.09

2,876.10
232.77
175.63

26.35

3,310.85

151.32
116.13
153.90
62.51
59.97
327.66
141.05
1,318.90
6465.45
59.77
177.48
51.1%9
826.54
1,438.73
87.58
1,487.10
572.70
81.20
423.53
71.94
2.14
10.23
17.30
44.74
23312

8,582.78

Rs. in Miilion
2605

317.09
695.51

23.92
51.86
2343
595.63
45.56

1,752.91

2,639.80
180.79
163.25

32.68
YY)

168.56
152.74
167.67
68.23
5547
249.94
150.60
1.620.77
529.76
51.21
164£.96
26.90
762.40
1.291.53
178.64
2,008.12

98.79
572.29
79.84
29.54
2116
163.27
{100.81)
23018

B8,741.76




SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Rs. in Million
2006 2005
SCHEDULE 2t
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Salanes, wages and bonus o 910.22 94191
Contribution to provident and other funds 51.84 43.57
Workmen and staff wetfare 56.38 44 5%
Raw materials consumed 1,078.87 1,277.85
Consumables 427.95 318.57
Power and fuel 159.41 12.72
Clinical trials 510.05 1.652.37
Rentals 61.85 §2.90
Printing and stationery 20.82 20.77
Insurance 26.88 2245
Communication 381 52.29
Legal and professional charges 74.59 12.89
Travel and conveyance 70.22 6B.81
Running and maintenance of vehicles 5.1 10.52
Analytical testing and processing charges 44.23 22.64
Repairs and maintenance
Machinery 36.58 15.55
Buildings 7.49 5.97
Others 56.77 £2.62
Recruitment and training 31.19 1415
Others 184.83 120.54
3,863.35 4,863.60
SCHEDULE 22
DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT
Depreciation
Buildings 79.16 59.07
Plant and machinery 772.82 639.86
Furniture and fixtures 44.5% 37.48
Vehicles 256.10 2380
918.67 760.21
Amortization - -
Patents, trademarks and designs 83.43 126.25
Software 45.17 4919
Non-compete 20.03 20.00
148.83 195.44
Impairment - -
Product licences - 57.68
1,067.50 1.013.33
SCHEDULE 23
PROVISION FOR TAX
Current income-tax 351.47 2691
MAT credit entitlement (331.50) (50.00}
Deferred tax* 527.61 [285.24}
Fringe benefit tax 76.75 85.00
624.33 (223.35)

* Deferred tax is net of deferred tax charge on FCCB issue expenses Rs. 76.58 million
{previous year Nil} adjusted from the Securities Prerrium Account
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 24

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net profit attributable to equily shareholders
inctuding discontinued operations
Profit after tax
Tax-earlier years
Net profit available

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
excluding discontinued operations

Net profit avaitable

Less:

Net profit from Discontinued operations [Net of taxes)

Exchange gain on Foreign Currency Convertible
Bonds [Net of taxes)

No. of weighted average equity shares
Basic
Effect of dilutive equity shares ecuivalent

- Stock options outstanding

- Foreign Currency Convert bte Bonds
Diluted

Nominal value of equity share IRs.)

EARNINGS PER SHARE [Rs.)

Including discontinued operations and exceptional item
Basic
Diluted

Excluding discontinued operatior ¢ and exceptional itemn
Basic
Dituted

2006

3,805.43
145.84

3,951.27

(52.54)

372,595,730

746,412
21,546,734

394,888,876

5.00
10.60
9.87

10.60
9.87

3,951.27

3897

Rs. in Million
2005

2.236.98
{118.58]

212042
212042

(208.99]

1911.52
372,216,805
1.089.479

373,306,284
5.00

5.70
5.68

5.14
5.12




FINANCIAL STATE
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 25
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

[a]

(b]

[c]

[d]

[e]

[f]

[g]

Basis of preparation

The financial staternents have been prepared to cornply with the mandatory Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India [1CAYE and the relevant provisicns of the Gompanies Act, 1956 (the *Act’). The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied
by the Campany unless otherwise stated.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciatior and impairment losses. Cast cornprises the purchase price and
any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisitio » or construction of fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial period of
time ta get ready for their intended use are capitelized.

Intangibles

Patents, Trademarks, Designs and licences

Cost incurred for acquiring patents, trademarks designs and iicences are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis
over a period of five years.

Computer software

Software which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is classified as an intangibie asset and is amortized over a period
of six years, being the estimated useful life.

Non-compete

Non-compete compensation is capitalized and arnortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the non-compete agreement.
Product Development

Cost incurred for acquiring rights for products under development are recognized as intangible assets and amortized on a
straight-line basis over a period of five years from the date of regutatory approval . Subsequent expenditures on development of
such products are also added to the cost of intanjibles.

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on strazght-tine metr od at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Act.
Premium paid on perpetual teasehold 1and is charged te ravenue on termination / renewal of lease agreements.

Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in tha Profit and Loss account on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.

investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intenc ed to be hetd for not mere than one year are classified as current investments.
All other investments are classified as long-term investments, Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value
determined on an individual investment basis. Leng-term investmenls are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in
value is made to recognise a deciine other than termporary in the value of the investments. -

Profit / loss on sale of investments is computed with reference to their average cost.

Inventories
Inventories are valued as follows:
Raw materials, stores and spares and packaging materials

Lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of finished goods are
not written down below cost if the products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be selc at or above cost. Cost is
determined on a weighted average hasis.

Finished goods

Lower of cost and net reaiizable value, Cost inciu des direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty.

Work-in-process

At cost up to estimated stage of process, Cost inc udes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion to make
the sale.
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 25
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)

(h]

i

(il

(k]

[

Where duty paid / indigenous materials are consumed, in manufacture of products exported prior to duty-free import of materials
under the Advance Licence Scheme, the estimated excess cost of such materials over that of duty-free materials is carried
forward and charged to revenue on consumption aof such duty-free materiats.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it can be reliably measured and is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company.

Sale of Goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the geoods are transferred to
the custemmer and is stated net of trade discounts, excise duty, sales returns and sales tax.

Royalties, Technical Know-how and Licensing income:

Revenue is recegnized on accural basis in accordance with the terms of the ralevent aggrement.

Interest:

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
Dividends: '

Revenue is recognized when the right to receive is established.

Research and development costs

Revenue expenditure incurred or research and development is charged to profit and loss account in the year it is incurred.
Capital expenditure is included in the respective heads under fixed assets and depreciation thereon is charged to depreciation
account.

Expenditure on regulatory app-ovals

Expenditure incurred for obtaining regulatory approvals and registration of products for averseas markets and preduct acquisitions
is charged to revenue.

Emplayee stock aption plan

The accounting vatue of stock optinns representing the excess of the market price on the date of grant aver the exercise price of
the shares granted under "Employees’ Stock Option Scheme” of the Company, is amortized as "Deferred employees
compensation” on 3 straight-line basis over the vesting pertod in accordance with the SEBI I[Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scherne) Guidelines, 1999.

Foreign currency translation

Investments in foreign entities are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of raking the investment. Transactions
in foreign currencies are recorded at the raies prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign
currency are restated at the rate jrevailing on the balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on tt e settlement of monetary iterns or on reporting ccmpany's monetary items at rates different
from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in the previous financial statements, are recognized
as incomne or expense in the year i which they arise, except for exchange differences arising on loans denominated n foreign
currencies utilised for acquisition of fixed assets from autside India, where the exchange ga.ns/iosses are adjusted ta the cost of
such assets.

The exchange differences arising on forward foreign currency contracts other than thoss entered into to hedge the foreign
currency risk of firm commitmen*s ar highly probable forecast transactions are recognized in the period in which they arise
based on the difference between il foreign currency amount of the contract translated at the exchange rate on the reporting date
and i} the same foreign currency ameunt translated at the later of the date of inception of the forward exchange contract or the
last reporting date.

The premium or discount arising al the inception of the forward fereign currency contracts is amortized as an expense ¢rincome
over the life of the contract.

Any profit or lass arising on cancellation or renewal of forward foreign exchange contracts is recognized as income or expense
for the year.

Representative offices

In translating the financiat statemznts of representative offices, the monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate
prevailing on the balance sheet date; non monetary assets and tiabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the date
of the transaction and income and expense items are converted at the respective monthty average rate.
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 25
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)] .

[m] Retirement benefits

[n]

fol

[p]

[q]

[rl

[s]

Provisions for liabilities in respect of gratuity, pension and leave encashment are made based on actuarial valuation made by an
independent actuary as at the balance sheet date,

Contributions in respect of provident fund, superannuatior and gratuity are made to the specific Trusts set up by the Company
and charged to the profit and loss account.

Taxes on income
Provision for tax comprises of current tax, deferr2d tax and fringe benefit tax.

The provision for current income tax is the aggregate of the batance tax for three months ended March 31, 2006 based on the
return of the income filed for the year ended Mzrch 31, 2004 and the estimated provision based on the taxable profit for the
remaining nine months up to December 31, 2006, the actual tax liability, for which, will be determined on the basis of the results
for the period April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007,

Deferred income tax reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income / losses and accounting
income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based an the tax rates and the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted as at thz balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
there is reasonable certainty that sufficient futurs taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can
be realized. in respect of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable incame witl be avaitable against which such lesses can be set off.

Export benefits / incentives

Export entitlements in respect of the exports made under the Duty Entitlement Pass Baok ["DEPB") Scheme are recognized in
the profit and loss account when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established,
Obligations / entitlernents under the Advance Licence Scheme for import of raw materials are accounted for on purchase of raw
materials / export sales.

Contingent liabilities

The Company makes a provision when there is & present obligation as a result of a past event where the outflow of economic
resaurces is probable and a reliable estimaté of the amount of obligation can be made. The disclesure is made for possible or
present obligations that may, but probably will no , require outflow of resources as contingent liability in the financial statements.

Use of estimates

In preparing Company's financial statements in conformity with accounting principies generally accepted in India, managernerit
is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reportad amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements a4d the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ fram those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized in the
period the same is determined.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dwiding the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares oufstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for events of bonus issue and share split.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss far the period attribatable to equity sharehotders
and the weighted average number of shares cu:standing during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Impairment of assets

The Company on an annual basis tests the carrying amount of assets for impairment 0 as to determine al The provision for
impairment toss, if any, or bl the reversal, if any required an account of impairment loss recognized in previous periods.




Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited Annual Report 2006 Schedules

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 26
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Share capital

al  Share capitalincludes :

(]  293.698.988 [Previous year 293.698,988) Equity shares of Rs, 5 each allotted as fully paid bonus shares by
capitalizaticn out of share premium and reserves.

[il 6,562,308 [Previous year 6,562,308] Equity shares of Rs. 5 each allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract
without payment being received in cash.

bl  Outstanding stock options for equity shares of the Company under the "Employees’ Stock Option ‘Scheme™ ;

Date of grant Exercise price 2004 2005
fis. Rs. Numbers Numbers

January 12, 2001* 336.50 {210.31] 101,397 162,235] 126,996 (203,194
December 3, 2001* 297.50 (185.94) 233,532 [373,651) 282,626 {452,202)
April 1, 2002* 372.50 (232.81] 383,180 [613,088) 455,142 (728,227
February 7, 2003 283.50 - 997,73¢% - 1167974 -
January 12, 2004 496.00 - 1,735,742 - 2,003,450 -
January 17, 2005 538.50 - 2,288,440 - 2,668,650 -
January 17, 2006 392.00 - 1,110,950 - - -

6,850,980 11,148,974 6,704,838 (1,383,623

* The figures in parenthesis represents adjusted exercise price in accordance with the Employees’ Stock Option Scheme
of the Company on account of issue of bonus shares in the ratio of 3:5 on Qcteber 11, 2002.
2.  Fixed assets
al  Land includes ;
[l costaf leasehold land Rs. 2067.92 million [Previous year Rs. 196.24 million}.
[} freehold land, valued at Rs. 12.24 million [Previous year Rs. 12.24 mitlion] purchased along with building etc.
[ii}  costof land Rs. 27 06 million [Previous year Rs. 27.65 miltion) pending registration in the name of the Company.

bl  Buitdings inctude Rs. 500 [Previous year Rs. 500] representing unquoted fully paid shares of Rs. 50 each in a cooperative
housing society.

c]  Capitat works-in progress includes:
[} advances Rs. 45.8¢ million [Previous year Rs. 114.16 million).
lil  pre-operative expenses Rs. 217.60 million (Previous year Rs. 156.79 million) as detailed betow :

Rs. in Miltion

Description 2006 2005

Opening balance 156.7% 70.75
Add : Addition during the vear

Salaries, wages and bonus 38.54 55.37

Contributions to provident and ether funds 3.03 5.75

Workmen and staff welfare 1.45 3.36

Raw materials 2.03 23.76

Power and fuel 37.23 S0.82

Rentals 0.14 0.51

Insurance 2.48 -

Others 12.97 43.99

254.66 25431

Less : Capitalized during the year 37.06 97.52

Balance 217.60 156.79
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 26
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Contd.)

3. Cash and bank balances :

[l includes deposit receipts of Rs. 0.88 millic n (Previous year Rs 1.05 miltion) pledged with Government Authorities.

lil  Balances with non-scheduled banks in current accounts :

Rs. in Million
2006 2005

AB Vilnius Bankas, Kaunas, Lithuania 7.97 6.40
ABN AMRO BANK, Bucharest, Romania 2.45 0.18
ABN AMRO BANK, Moscow, Russia 617 5.45
Bangue Internaticnale Pour Le

Cammerce Et L'industrie du

Cameroun, Doula, Camerocn 0.43 4,75
Barclays Bank of Kenya Ltd, Nairobi Kenya 1.32 1.40
Bank Handlowy W Warszawie SA,

Warsaw, Potand 0.42 0.42
Calyon Carperate, HO Chi Minh, Vietnam 2.68 9.20
Calyon Cerporate, Kiev, Ukraine 0.06 294
Citi Bank, Almaty, Kazakhstan 2.88 017
Citi Bank, Sofia, Bulgaria 1.02 194
Credit Du Maroc, Boutevard Mohammed V., 0.14 G.27

Casablanca, Morocco.

HSBC Bital, Mexico
Del Miguel Hidalgo, Mexico 1.97 144
Myanmar Investment and Commercial Bank
Yangon, Myanmar 2.08 293
Societe Generale De Banques Au Cameroun
Doula, fvory Coast 3.62 0.15
The Hongkeng & Shanghai Banking
Corporation, Singapore 1.65 125
Standbic Bark, Nairobi, Kenya 2.88 [1719)
Standbic Bank Zimbabwe Limited )
Causeway Zimbabwe, Harare 0.34 0.05
Total 36.08 37.75
@ Book overdraft
4. Amounts due from :

An officer of the Company 0.53 0.63
5. Investments

Quoted

Aggregate book value [Net of provision]
Market value

Unquoted
Aggregate book value [Net of provision]

6. interest accrued on investments

7. Sundry dehtors include debts due from
subsidiary companies

@

Maximum balance

Rs. in Millicn
2004 2005
15.02 16,49

.43 1.72
36.94 28.65
4.78 1217
1.34 397
7/
0.60 1512
6.69 16.75,
20.35 15.54
14.25 9.69
3.76 2.15
11.06 573
18.20 497
3.60 316
3.482 ¢ 86
12.13 g.45
6.31 1.30
0.5¢ 3.54
0.43 0.73

Rs. in Million

20056 2005
200.02 0.063
142.70 0.12

26,599.43 762772
0.04 0.02
6,128.38 3.7646.32
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SCHEDULE 26
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Contd.}

B.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.
15.

Loans and advances include -
Secured loans to employzes
Advances recoverable in zash or in ind or for value to
be received include dues from :
Employees
Supptiers
Security deposits vith government department

Loans due for repayment within one year

Sundry creditors include due to :
a]  Subsidiary companies
bl  Small scale industrial undertakings

Rs. in Miltion

2004 2095
57.34 73.69
83.34 73.75
148.87 57.36
55.76 54.77
7.615.53 5,134.51
188.53 9447
141.08 23593

Total outstanding dues of sma:l scale industrial undertakings have been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Campany. The parties to whom the Company owes amounts greater

than Rs. 100,000 outstanding far more than 30 days as at the balance sheet date are :

Aegis Ampoules & Vials Lid. Ammania Supply Ce. Ankur Drugs & Pharma Lid.
Askas Plastic P, Ltd. Auofits Best Laboratories Pvt. Ltd.
Bhasin Packwell Pvi. Ltd. ES>! Industries & Chemicals Everest Industrial Corporation
K.K.Alufoil Ka» Corporation Kejariwal Industries

Mayura Dffset Metakaps Engineering Co. NBZ Pharma Ltd.

Noble printing Press Or-ent Pack N Print Packs and Packaging

Pragati Pack (India) Pvt. Ltd. Pro Laboratories Pvt. Ltd. Rexcin Pharmaceuticals Pvt. Lto.
Shree Packers Sh-ee Sati Plastics & Chemicals Shrili Polymers {Indial P, Lid.
Scftesute Pvi, Ltd. Span Packers Pvi. Ltd. Themis Laboratories Pvt. Ltd.
Update Prints [Indial Vectra Pharmaceuticals Put. Ltd.

Interest income :

Interest on
Current investments - ot yer than trade
Incorne-tax refunds

Loans and deposits:
Shart term depos ts

Subsidiary companies
Employees’ loans
Others

Dividend :

Long term investments
Other than trade
Subsidiary companies

Tax deducted at source on :
Interest received
Dividend received

Interest paid on fixed period loans

Exchange gain on outstanding forward exchange
contracts to be recognized in the subsequent year

Arpit Plastics (P} Ltd.

Bharat Rubber Works

Glide Chemn Pvt. Ltd.

Maral Labs.

NEC Packaging Limited

Piam Corporation

Sadhna & Company [ P) Limited
Sigmak Laboratories (India} Put. Ltd.
Umedica Laboratorias Lid.

Rs. in Million
2006 2005
0.28 0.28
54.88 36.84

114.72 79.67
15.37 B.75
4.18 477
92.62 G.45
201.05 139.76
0.01 0.0%
10.24 30.89
10.25 30.90
24,29 20.86
0.42 0.09
£99.12 229.32
216.34 104.92
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SCHEDULE 26
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.}

16,

17.

18.

19.

20.

Rs. in Million
Payment to auditors 2006 2005
a]  Statutory auditors
Audit fee
Statutory 5.50 5.50
Tax 2.08 2.08
Other matters
Taxation 0.01 0.6%9
Certification 1.72 1.82
Travel and out of pocket 0.27 018
Service tax 1.24 0.96
10.82 10.63
b]  Cost auditors
Audit fee 0.45 0.45
Certification - 0.28
Travel and out of pocket 0.01 0.06
Service tax . 0.06 0.07
0.52 0.78
Taxes earlier years includes:
Current tax (310171 116.56
Deferred tax 164.33 -
[145.84) 116.56

Dividend
Interim / Final dividend includes Rs. 1.10 miilion on 183,714 shares Iprevious year Rs.G.90 million on 149,424 shares) atlotied
under the Employees’ Stock Option Scheme after the close of the year.

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

During the vear, the Company issued at par S-year Zero coupan Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) aggregating to
US $ 440 million [Rs. 19,553.60 miliion as on the date of the issue) for financing international acquisition, capital expenditure
and cthers. The Bond holders have the option to convert these into Common Shares or Global Depository Shares, at a price of
Rs. 716.32 per share {subject to adjustment, if ary} with a fixed exchange rate of Rs. 44.15 per US $ 1, at any time on or after
April 27, 2006 and but before March 9, 201%,

The Bonds may be redeemed, in whale, at the option: of the Company at any time on or after March 18, 2009, but before
February 4, 2011, subject to satisfaction of certain conditicns. The Bonds are redeemable on March 18, 2011, at a premium of
26.765 percent of their principal amount unless previously corverted, redeemed or purchased and cancelled.

The FCCB issue expenses totaling to Rs. 150.93 million [Net of taxes| and the premium payable on redemption Rs. 549.47
million [Net of taxes) being the pro-rata charge for the yea-, have been adjusted against the Securities Premium Account.

Rs. in Million
2006 2905
al  Directors’ remuneration*

Salaries and allowances 77.76 48.89
Contribution to provident and other funds 5.76 4.09
Directors’ fee 2N 2.37
Commission 38.90 16,50
Perquisites 7.77 7.76
133.10 # 79.52

Exclusive of provision for future liabilities in respect af retirement benefits iwhich are based on actuarial valuation dene
on overall Cempany basis) and amortizat on of de‘erred employees compensation on grant of stock options under
"Employees” Stock Option Scheme™ of the Company

Exclusive of pension paid / payable to a Nan-Executive Director for the services rendered in earlier years as a whole-time
Director / employee Rs. 2.29 Million {Previous year Rs. 2.29 Million).
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b]  Determination of net prefits in accordance with the provisions of section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956, and
commissicn payable to directors.
Rs. in Million
2006
Profit before tax as per pre fit and loss account 4,629.76
Less :
Profit on sale of fixed ausets 31.03
4,398.73
Add :
Directors’ reruneration (including commission) charged in accounts 13310 #
Other payments
Pension 2.29
Loss on sale of fixed assets 27.49
Assets writen off 2.14
165.02
Net Profit 4,563.75
Commissicn to Directors :
(As determined by the Board of Directors]
Whote-time 32.00
Others 6.90
38.90
Rs. in Million
2006 2005
21. Contingent liabilities
Claims not acknowtedged as detts * 1,145.38 1.028.46
Indirect taxes 216.45 20612
Guarantees to banks on account of :
Subsidiary companies - 180.25
Others - 20.00
* Includes Rs. 365.59 million [Pravious year Rs.311.70 million) deposited under protest.
Interest on certain claims may b payable as and when the outcome of the related claim
is determined and has not been included above.
22. Estimated amount of contracts r2maining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for, net of advances. 232.19 589.20
23. Leases
Operating Lease
The Company has leased facilities under non-cancellable operating leases.
The future lease payments in respect these leases as at December 31, 2004, are :
| Minimum lease payments :
i a. not later than one year 16.35 16.35
b. tater than one year but nol later than five years 77.26 70.97
c. later than five years 63.22 78.49

. 196.83 165 81
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SCHEDULE 26
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Contd.)

24. Related party disclosures
al Relationship :

il Subsidiary companies

Domestic

Ranbaxy Drugs and Chemicals Company Rexce | Pharmaceutica s Limited Ranbaxy Drugs L mited
{a public company with unbim:ted liabilityl Ran £ar Services Limited # Gufic Pharma Limsted
Solus Pharmaceuticats Lim:ted Vidyy Investrnents Lam ted

# Ceased to be 2 subsidiary during the year

Overseas

Ranbaxy INetherlands) B, The Netherlands  Ranb.axy NANV, The Natharands Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticais BV, The Netherlands *
Ranbaxy {Hong Kongl Limited, Hong Kong Ranb.ixy [Poland] 5. P. Zuo, Paland Ranbany treland Limited, Ireland

Ranbaxy Inc., USA Ranb.axy Nigeria Lirmsted, N:gena Ranbary {S.A| Praprietary Limited, South Africa
Ranbaxy Egypt (L.L.C.), Egypt Ranb sy Europe Limated, UK, Ranbaxy Holdings LUK] Ltd., UK

Ranbaxy {Guangzhou Chinal Lirited, China  Ranb.axy (UK] Uimited. U & Ranbaxy Do Brazil Lida, Braz!

Ranbaxy Farmaceutica Ltda, Brazil Basics GmbH | Ge-many | aboratarios Ranbaxy, S.L., Spain

Ranbaxy Signature, LLC. USA ZAD Ranbaxy, Russia Ranbaxy Vietnam Company Lig., Vielnam
Ranbaxy Panama 54, Panama Unick em Distributors Lte., Thattand * Ranbaxy Pharmacie Generiques SAS, France
Ranbaxy PRP [Perul 54C Dffice Pharmaceutigue Industriel et Hospitalier SARL  Ranbaxy Pharmarceuticals Canada Inc, Canada
Ranbaxy Australia Pty Ltd., Austral.a niek e Pharmaceutiza s Lid., Thailend * Sonke Pharmace atcals {Plyl Lid., South Africa
Lapharma GmbH, Germany # Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals, Inc., USA Bounty Holdings Company Limited, Thailand *
Ranbaxy Unichem Company Ltd., Thailand Ranb.xy Laboratories no, USA Ranbaxy Maxice S Ade CV.

Ranbaxy USA, inc. Ohm _aboratories Inc, USA Ranbary Portugal - Com E Desenvolv De Prod
Ranbaxy italia S.p.A Ranb.ixy Hungary KR Farmaceuticos Unipessoal Lda, Portugal
Ranbaxy {Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Mundagen Farma 5.4, Spain # Ranbaxy Beligrurn N.V.. Belgium #

Terapta S.A., Romania # Ranb.xy Pharma 2B, Swaden #

# New entities in 2004

* Under hiquidation during the year

i) Joint venture
Overseas
Mthon Pharmaceuticals Industry Co. Ltd., Japan

i} Key management Relatives* Entities over which significant
personnel inftuence is exercised
Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh Mrs. Nimmi Singh, mother Fortis Healthcare Ltd.
SRL Ranbaxy Ltd.

International Hospitals Ltd.
Religare Securities Ltd,

Fortis Clinical Research Lic.
{Formerly Oscar Research Ltd.)

Dr. Brian W. Tempest -
Mr. Ramesh L Adige -
Mr. Ram 5. Ramasundar -

* Relatives of key management personnel with whorn the Company had transactions during the year,
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SCHEDULES FORMING PARY OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 24
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM ZNTS {Conid )

b] The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business.
il  Subsidiary companies, joint ventures and associates. ‘

Rs. in Million
2006 2005
Subsidiary companies:
Purchase of materialsffinished goods 16.69 60.39
Sale of finished geeds 15,774.68 11,678.98
Services renderedfothzar receipts 26.20 15.45
Services availed and snaring of expenses 110.88 179.22
Market research experises 559.84 -
Business support expenses 303.87 1,035.71
Analytical testing charges 1.57 1611
Procurement cost of exhibit batches 127.86 14.77
Product quality claim 393.49 539.99
Loans / advances given 52.44 17.40
Interest received 16.37 B.75
Investments during the year 18,269.70 -
Royalty paid 0.24 0.24
Royalty and technical know-how fee received 127.60 197.94
Dividend received 10.24 30.89
Batance at the end of the year:
Loansfadvances given * 394.48 404.57
Other receivables 6,128.38 3.766.32
Payables 188.53 9447
Guarantees given - 180.25
* Includes provision fo- doubtful debts and advances 350.00 350.00
| il  Key management personnel and their relatives
! Remuneration to key i anagement personnel 147.26 85.50
: House rent allowance 2.40 2.40
| Pension 2.03 2.03
Medicat reimbursernert 0.02 *
Batance at the end of the year :
Security deposits received - 0.25
*(previous year Rs. 1,280 rounded off to nill.
iii] Entities over which s gnificant influence is exercised
Purchase of malerials/inished goods 1.1% -
Sale of finished goods 25.13 1.99
Sate of fixed assets - 1.00
Services availed and sharing of expenses , 159.14 22.27
Services rendered/Other receipts an -
Balance at the end of the year :
Receivables 10.95 1.52

Payables 7.80 0.06




FINANCIAL STATE ENT]S OF

'RANBAX

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 2é
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Centd.]

25. Additional information pursuant to paragraphs 3 & 4 of part H of schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.
[As certified by the management and accepted bty the auditors|

a] Particulars of installed capacities and actual production

2006 2005
Unit of Installed Actual fnstalled Actuat
measure capacity production capacity  production
Dosage Forms
Tablets Nos. / Millions 6,518.00 5,236.71 6,518.00 4,006.80
Capsules Nos. / Millions 2,540.00 1,970.14 2,380.00 1.314.20
Dry syrups / Powders ' Bottles / Millions 27.20 411 27.20 35.20
Ampoules Nos. / Millions 74.40 100.11 74.40 81.42
Vials Nos. / Millions 39.00 33.80 29.40 33.97
Liquids Kilolitres - 1,266.27 - 1,277.84
Drops Kilolitres - 40.60 - 29.37
Active pharmaceuticals ingredients
and drugs intermediates Tonnes 2,014.23 1,517.58 1,844.07 1,670.53
Ointments Tonnes * 327.48 * 296.21

* In different denominations than actual production

Notes :

1. Installed capacity being effective operatior al capacity has been calculated on a double shift basis for dosage forms facilities
and on a three shift basis for active pharmr aceuticals ingredients and drug intermediates.
2. Actual production includes production at | 3an licencees locations.

bl Stocks and sales of finished goods

Sales Opening stock Closing stock
Unit of Quantity@ Rs. in Quantity Rs.in Quantity Rs. in
measure Million Millien Million
Dosage Forms
Tablets Nos. / Millions ~ 6,421.75  18,619.60 549.44 784.89 741.94  1,030.98
529174 16,006.99 517.9% 720.37 54944 784,89
Capsules Nos. / Millions ~ 2,246.57 4,715.94 154.85 183.74 188.72 254.83
176134 211950 153.12 204,74 154,85 183.74
Dry syrups/Powders Bottles / Millions 49.02 2,883 5,36 76.09 4.15 80.81
£2.16 2.502.75 500 100.74 534 76.0%
Ampoules Nos. / Millions 94.25 709.51 8.58 43.15 17.76 47.78
20.80 3.509.09 13.87 47.03 858 4375
Vials Nos. / Millions 93.04 2,150.97 9.22 158.73 12.70 209.63
101.79 154335 12.64 136.74 922 158.73
Liquids Kilolitres 3,055.80 750.80 384.98 £9.74 495.16 77481
43324 94117 72216 7867 384.98 6974
Drops Kilolitres 40.33 59.23 4,04 3.80 5.12 4.93
33.06 39,87 3.84 £.04 4.04 3.80
Active pharmaceuticals
ingredients and
drugs intermediates Tennes 1980.34 12,396 140.10 1,616.21 126.57 1,664.18
205073 10,182 11 163.23 118382 14070 161621
Ointments Tonnes 882.23 1,121.93 99.95 52.41 139.27 67.24
824.05 915.44 96.98 4942 98.95 52.41
Others [Chemicals, etc.) 377.22 41.76 20,68
62232 268.17 £1.78
Inter unit transfers (4,546.43)
/4 30175/
TOTAL 39,238.79 3,030.52 3,658.47
_ 34,081, 27 279463 303052

@ Inclusive of physician samples.
Figures in italics are for 2005.
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SCHEDULE 26
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2006 2005
Unit of measure Quantity Rs. in Million Quantity  Rs. in Million
¢] Purchases of finished goods for resale
Tablets Nos. / Milliens 1,377.54 792.53 1.216.38 837.05
Capsules Nos./Millions 310.30 319.54 448.87 as2n
Dry Syrups / Powders Bottles / Mitlions 6.69 41.78 7.31 162.20
Ampoules Nos./Millions 3.32 12.41 4.0% 38.05
Vials Nos. / Millicns 62.72 403.33 64.40 341.59
Liquids Kilotitres 1,899.M 197.09 3.818.22 380.04
Drops Kilolitres 1.81 1.53 3.89 5.45
Bulk drugs / chemicals Tannes 449.23 789.17 357.07 567.78
Medical aids Nos. / Millions - - 0.08 224.69
Qintments Tonnes 594.07 192.73 530.81 183.16
Others 42.45 51.81
Total 2,792.58 3,174.53
* Inclusive of materials purchased and soid as part of sale of undertaking.
dl Consumption of raw malerials @

Erythromycin 'A'95 Metric tonnes 202.53 500.73 246.48 622.35
Compactin Metric tonnes 13.38 31719 10.37 2973
Penciltin G Potassium First Crystais Metric tonnes 59.95 31.08 384.66 22274
SAPA Metric tonnes 292.63 343.52 195.95 225.70
Pen V Potassium Metric tonnes - - 175.94 130.10
3-CI-7-ACCA Metric tonnes 65.98 T9.73 28.93 460.50
D-Alpha Phenyl Glycine and its Salts Metric tonnes 22113 13017 154.46 83.31
Others 11,310.71 10,290.75
Tetal 13,353.13 12,332.76

e] Consumption of raw maerials, components and spares @
Raw Components,

materials Spares &
Packaging

materials *
Indigenous Rs. in Miltion 5,985.05 2,038.90
As % of total 44.82% 83.44%
Imported Rs. in Million 7.3468.08 404,51
As % of total 55.18% 14.56%

* Inclusive of components and spares used for maintenance of plant and machinery.
@ Inclusive of raw materials consurned for research and development

fl  Imports on C. |. F. basis:
Raw materials
Components and spares
Capital goods

gl  Expenditure in foreign currencies
Interest
Royalty paid
Legat and professional charges
Others

h]  Dividend paid to non-resident shareholders
[in foreign currency |
Interim
No. of shareholders
No. of shares held
Dividend remitted {Rs. in Mdlion}
Year to which it relates
Final
No. of shareholders
No. of shares held
Dividend remitted [Rs. in M llion]
Year to which it relates

Raw  Components,

materials Spares &
Packaging
materials
5,590.02 1,770.73
45.33% B4.44%
§,742.74 326.25
54.67% 15.56%
Rs. in Million
2006 2005
5,212.37 5,382.14
82.33 93.58
343.18 1,041.18
92.30 13.38
2.34 3189
1,420.59 1,345.06
3,660.01 5,363.98
30 K1l
47,326 72,352
0.12 018
2006 2005
29 28
46,296 29,820
0.28 0.36
2005 2004

-
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SCHEDULE 24
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Contd.}

Rs. in Millien
2006 2005
il Earnings in foreign exchange
F.0.B. value of exports [exctuding Nepai) 25,891.78 22,243.38
Royalty / Technical consultancy fees 335.83 304.95
Dividends 10.24 4,49
Others [freight, insurance & others} 1,320.82 1,024.58

26. Information pursuant to ctause 32 of the listing agreements
with stock exchanges
Maximum balance

Rs. in Miltien Rs. in Million
2006 2005 2006 2005
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to :
Wholly-owned subsidiary companies with
no specified payment schedule

Vidyut Investments Limited 350.08 350.08 361.08 350.08
Ran Air Services Umited # - 51.45 51.45 5515
Ranbaxy Drugs Limited * 310 J.04 3.10 3.04
Ranbaxy Netherlands B.V., The Netherlancs* 41.50 - 41.50 -

* Interest free

# Ceased to be a subsidiary during the year
27. Previous year figures !
Previous year figures have been regrouped / recasted wherever considered necessary 1o make them comparable with those of the
current year

Signatories to schedules 110 26

On behalf of the Beard of Directors

For WALKER, CHANDIOK & CO TEJENDRA KHAN A DR. BRIAN W. TEMPEST MALVINDER MOHAN SINGH

Chartered Accountants Chairman Chief Mentor & CEO & Managing Director
Executive Vice Chairman

VINOD CHANDIOK ATUL SOBTI RAM S. RAMASUNDAR SUSHIL K. PATAWARI

Partner Chief Operating Oificer & President & CFO Secretary

Membership No, 100%3 Whole-time Director

Place : Gurgaon
Dated : March 29, 2007
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RANBAXY LABORATORIES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COOMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

REGISTRATION DETAILS :

Registration No. [T Tolol[3]7]4]7] stateCode:
Balance Sheet Date : [3T71] [112] [2]ofojfé]
Date Month Year

CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR (AMOUNT IN RS. THOUSANDS)

Public Issue - [ ] In[e[c] 1 | ] rightslssue: T Il T ]

Employees Stock Options : [T T 1 [1T2]2] 4] Bonustssue: CT TN T 1]

Private Placement : [ ‘ ]N| I | L’ l l I

POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS (AMOUNT IN RS. THOUSANDS}

Total Liabilities : [6]9]2]4al8]4]8] 5] TotatAssets: [6]9]2]4)8]4]8] 5]

Source of Funds

Paid-up-Capital - [ T1]e[e[3]4]3] 5] Reserves&Surplus:  [2[1[ e[ 2] 7] 9[ 1] i}
LI 1 T [sf7]8]s]"

Secured Loans : | |2|2|A[2|9|D|0J Unsecured Loans : r2]9|5!&13|0|9l 7|

Deferred tax liabiity : [ T1]s]ol2]3]e] a}

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets : |1I7I3|5|9‘D|9IAllnvestments: r2[6|7|91?lsﬁ|4‘7|

Net Current Assets : [112]6|2|9|9Ié! 1|Misc.ExpendEture: | | IN| I]Ll | | ]

Accumnulated Losses : (7 In[rfe] | | ]

* Share application money pendinc allotrent

PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY [AMOUNT IN RS. THOUSANDS)

Turnover : IS|9[7]2|0I5]0|6|TotalExpendEture: [3]5'7[2|9]8[2|9|
Profit / Loss before Tax - ﬁ'T]IA [4]2]9]7]5] 6] Profit/ Loss afrer tax: [T/l_ 3]s fo]5[«[2]8]
Earning Per Share in Rs. [ T T T T T Ti]1] ovidendRate(%l: [T 1T 1 [hl7fa]
GENERIC NAMES OF THREE PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS OF THE COMPANY

ltem Cade No, [279]4]1]9t0]

Product Description [C]E|F|A|C|L|O|Rl

itern Code No. [z]9]4f2]0]0]

Product Description [cTE]PTHTAIL]E[Xx] I]N]

ltern Cade No. [2]9]s4]1]1]0]

Product Description [aAfmTolx]ylc] il {N]

On behalf of the Board of Directors

TEJENDRA KHANNA DR. BRIAN W. TEMPEST MALVINDER MOHAN SINGH

Chairman Chief Mentor & CEC & Managing Director
Executive Vice Chairman

ATUL SOBTI RAM S. RAMASUNDAR SUSHIL K. PATAWARI

UChief Operating Officer & President & CFO Secrelary

Whole-time Director

Place : Gurgacn
Dated : March 29, 2007
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Statement Regarding Subsidiary Companies Pursuant to Section 212(3) and 212(5) of the Companies Act, 1954

Net agregate amount of subsidiary
company's profis after deducting s
lcsses or vice-versa, 5o far as it

Net aggregale amount
of Subsidiary Company's
prolit after deducting its

Holding
Company's
interest as at

Narne of Subsidiary Financial Holding Company's interest guncerns members of Hotding lasses or wice-versa, December 31, 2004
Company year to as at close of financial year of Campany which are not dealt within dealt within the incerporating
which subsidiary company the Comngany's account Company's account changes
accounts since close
relates i} Shareholding i Extent of For the For the For the Fer the of financial
Holling current previoys current previous year of
financial financial tinanciat financial Subsidiary
year years year years Company
Yoay & Rs, in Million Rs. in Million Rs. in Millian  Rs. in Million
Domestic :
Solus Pharmaceuticals | td, 2006 3,000,7DC Equity shares a0 2,83 (Lossl 412 (Loss] Nil Mit No change
of Rs, 10 each
Rexcel Pharmaceuticals Lid 2006 1,000,000 Equity shares iji] &34 ILossl 3317 IProfd) Nid Nil No change
of Rs. 10 each
Vidyut Investrents Ltd. 2004 25,008,400 Equity shares ‘00 18,68 [Profit] 75.47 [Profit} Nil 78.45 Na change
of Rs. 10 each
Ranbaxy Drugs and 2005 6,200,000 Equity shares ‘00 @ 2.24 [Profit) 130 [Profitl Nil Nil No change
Cherrucal Compary of Rs. 10 each
[& public company
with unlimited liability)
Ranbaxy Drugs Ltd. 2006 i1 300,020 Equity shares 00 0.1 (Lossl 0.38 lLoss) Nit Nil No change
of Rs. 16 each
il 250 10% Non-Cumulative
Redesmable Prefarance
shares of Rs. 10 each
Gufic Pharma Ltd. 2005 4900 Equity shares 9 0,85 [Profit] C.64 IProfal Nil Nit No change
of Rs. 100 each
Overseas :
Ranbaxy [Guangzhou Chinal 2006 Investment Certificate of B3 @ 16,28 {Loss) # 20090 iLoss) # NIt Nil No change
Ltd.. China 35 $4.225.000
Ranbaxy [Netharlands) BY., 2004 3.93%, 716 shares of 00 $ 739.38 (Profitl #  1,338.85 {ProM) # Nil Mt No changa
The Netharlands Euro 100 each
Ranbaxy Nigena Lid., 2006 33,956,284 Ordinary shres of 8489 @ 52.32 (Profit] # 85.03 {Profit] # 2.37 11.54 No change
Nigeria Naira 1 each
Ranbaxy [Hang Keongl Ltd., 2604 2,400,000 Equity shares of 130 1.71 [Loss) # 47.33 [Loss} # Nil Nit No change
|Consclidated} HK$ 1each
Heng Kong
Unichern Pharmaceuticals 2006 40,000 Ordinary shares of M5 @ 0.20 |Profit] # 5.06 [Lossi # Nil NiL Ng change
Limited, Baht 100 each
Thaiand
Ranbaxy {Malaysial Sdn. Bhd. 2006 5,444,865 Ordinary shares of 68,05 @ 79.4L |Profit) # 162.87 {Profitl # 6.03 143 No change
Malaysia RM 1 each
Bounty Holdings Company 2006 16, 000 shares, paid up at w3a@ 0.04 fLoss| # 681 Lossl # Nil Nil Ne change
Lirmited, Thailand Baht 550 per share
Ranbaxy Unichem Company 2006 885,570 Ordinary shares of  88.56 @ 37.14 [Profit] # 3780 [Profit] # 1.84 6.88 No change
Limited, Thatlang Baht 100 each
Ranbaxy Pharmacie 2005 827,600 Equity shares of 100 @ 78,49 [Loss] # 7.40 fLossl # Nil Nil Na change
Generiques 545 £urp P each
feonsclidated], France
@ Inclusive of shares held through wholly owned subsidiaries.
# Exchnage rates conversion as on the yesr end.
$ Previous year 439,843 shares of Euro 100 each
Previous year figures have been regrouped / recasted wherever considered nece isary.
On be alf of the Board of Directors
TEJENDRA KHANNA DR. BRIAN W. TEMPEST MALVINDER MOHAN SINGH
Chairman Chief Mentor & CEO & Managing Director
Executive Vice Chairman
ATUL SOBTI RAM S, RAMASUNDAR SUSHIL K. PATAWARI

Place : Gurgaon

Dated : March 29, 2007

Chief Operating Cificer &

Whote-time Director

Fresident & CFO

Secretary




Auditors’ report to the Board of Jirectors of Ranbaxy
Laboratories Limited.

We have audited the attached consol dated batance sheet of
Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited [“the Carmpany”] its subsidiaries
andjoint ventures (as per list appearing in Note 26 on Schedule
28] coltectively referred to as “the Ranbaxy Group” as at
December 31, 2006, and also the conselidated profit and loss
account and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
erded on the date annexed thereto. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Ranbaxy Group’s management and
have been prepared by the management on the basis of
separate financial staterments of the entities of the Group. Our
respansibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in India. Those stendards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material
m sstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disctosures in the
firancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our cpinion.

We did not audit the financial statements of some consolidated
entities, whose financial statements reflect total assets of
Re. 15,513.20 million as at December 31, 2004, total revenue
of Rs. 21,746.81 million and: cash flows amounting to
Rs. 946.99 million for the year then ended. These financial
statements and other financial infermation have been audited
by other auditors whose reports hav: been furnished to us
and our opinion in respect thereof is bz sed solely on the report
of such other auditors.

SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~

We report that the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared by Ranbaxy Group's managernent in accordance with
the requirements of Accounting Standard 21, Censclidated
Financial Statements and Accounting Standard 27, Financial
Reporting of Interests in Joint Venture, issued by the Institute
of Chariered Accountants of india.

Based on our audit and consideration of reports of other
auditors on separate finarcial staternents of the entities, and
to the bast of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we are of the op nion that the attached consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India; in case
of :

la]  the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs of
the Ranbaxy Group as at December 31, 2004;

(b}  the consolidated profit and loss account, of the profit
for the year ended on that date; and

le)  the consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

Vinod Chandiok
Partner
Membership No, 10093

Place : Gurgaon
Dated : March 29, 2007




CONSOLIDATED FINAN

|
CIAL STATEME

INDIAN|GAAP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006

SOURCES OF FUNDS i
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Share capital

Reserves and surplus

SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING ALLOTMENT
MINORITY INTERESTS
LOAN FUNDS

Secured loans
tUnsecured foans

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS

Gross block

Less : Depreciation

Net block

Capital works-in-progress
INVESTMENTS
DEFERRED TAX ASSET

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
tnventories

Sundry debtors

Cash and bank balances

Other current assets

Loans and advances

Less :

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current liabilities

Provisions

NET CURRENT ASSETS

SIGN!IFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule

—_

10
1
12

13
14

25
26

NTS -

Rs. in Million
2004 2005
1,863.43 1.862.21
23,986_ﬁ 22.605.03
25,849.91 24,467 24
8.79 278
334.43 165.91
3,369.62 6,078.6%
36,186.57 13.963.97
39.55(& 20,042.62
1,63@ 2.699.27
67,385.35 47,377.82
51,173.89 2992031
12,220.55 9,328.90
38.953.& 20,5791.41
3,580.98 5,595.49
3462.35 171.72
981.16 2,698.34
16,115.52 13,624.02
15,716.33 11,403.52
2,951.16 2,430.08
978.05 1.249.86
5.343.£ 4,621.30
41,104.09 33,328.78
12.127.86 10,599.94
5.46& 4,407.96
17,596.57 15.007.92
23,507.52 18,320.84

67,385.35 47.377.82

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the conso.idated financial statements.
This is the consolidated balance sheat referred to in our report of ever: date.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

For WALLKER, CHANDIOK & CO TEJENDRA KHAMNA,
Chartered Accouniants Chairman

VINOD CHANCIOK ATUL SCBT!

Faritner Chief Operating Officer &
Membership No. 10093 Whole-time Oirector

Ptace : Gurgaon
Dated : March 29, 2007

DR. BRIAN W. TEMPEST
Chief Mentar &
Executive Vice Chairman

RAM 5. RAMASUNDAR
President & CFO

MALVINDER MOHAN SINGH
CED & Managing Director

SUSHIL K. PATAWARI
Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Schedule 2006
INCOME
Operating income 15 61,915.78
Less excise duty 481.72 61,434.06
Dther income 14 __ 564.35
_51,998.41
EXPENDITURE
Materials 17 23,733.0%
Manufacturing 18 3,098.76
Personnel 19 7,955.29
Selling, general and administration 20 13,866.94
Research and development 21 3,954.79
_52,608.87
PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST, DEPRECIATION,

AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMEMNT 9,389.54
Interest 1,036.32
Depreciation, amortization and impairm ent 22 _1_,842.88
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Continuing operatians 6,510.34
Discontinued operations . -
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 6,510.34
Interest in Joint venture written off -
Profit from sale of undertaking and a sLbsidiary —_— -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6,510.34
Provision for tax 23 1,356.74
PROFIT AFTER TAX 5,153.60
Minority interests 5021
PROFIT AFTER TAX AND MINORITY INTERESTS 5,103.39
Tax - earlier years 148.06
Ba.ance as per last balance sheet 1,253.94

Transfer from Foreign projects reserve 22.95

BALANCE AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION ~ 6,528.34
APPROPRIATIONS
Dividend
Interim 3,148.94
Final (proposed] -
Tax en dividend L4444
Transfer to General reserve 450.00
Surplus carried forward 2,464.96
_ 6,628.34
EARNINGS PER SHARE [Rs.) 24 -
Including discontinued operations and exceptionat items
Basic 14.09
Diluted 13.17
Excluding discontinued operations and exceptional items
Basic 14.09
Diluted 13.17
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 25
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 26

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the consoclidated financial statements.
This is the consotlidated profit and loss account referred to in our repoert of even date.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

For WALKER, CHANDICK & €O TEJENORA KHANNA DR. BRIAN W. TEMPEST

Chartered Accountants Charrman Chief Mentor &
Executive Vice Chairman
VINOD CHANDIOK ATUL S50BT! RAM 5. RAMASUNDAR

Partner
Membership No. 10093

Chief Operating Officer & President & CFO

Whole-time Uirector

Plate : Gurgaon
Dated : March 29, 2007

Rs. in Mitlion
2005

53.676.83

860.96  52.815.87

616.28
53.432.15

222121
2.549.40
6,785.64
13.231.94
6925.07

49.704.78

3,727.37
671.16
1,444.52

1,.371.22
240.47
1,611.69
(121.80)
454,95
1,944.84
__les157)
2,642.41
25.35
2.617.04
161,78}
2,532.50
30.65

518.43

2311
2.235.55
447 83
250.00
1.253.94

5,118.43
6.87
6.84

5.70
5.69

MALVINDER MOHAN SINGH
CED & Managing Director

SUSHIL K. PATAWARI
Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 Rs. in Millien
2004 2005
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before exceptional items and minority interests 6510.34 1.611.70
Adjustments for :
Depreciation, amortization & impairment 1,842.88 1.444.52
Assets written off - 10.04 33.31
Deferred employees’ compensation 26.35 32.68
Unrealised exchange gain 1270.74) {221.54}
Dividend income (1.01) {0.26]
Profit on disposal of investments 112.89] -
[Profit] / Loss on sale of fixed assets [Nai) 41121 26.62
Provision for diminution 1n value of curtent investimen's 12.36] (1.07j
|nterest expense 1,034.32 67116
Interest Income (211.22) {180.62)
Amounts written off 60.48 82.07
Prowision for doubtful debts and advances 142.50 [223.09]
_2,579.23 — 1.653.78
Operating profit before working capital changes 7,089.57 3.265.48
Adjustrrents for :
fnventories [2,491.50) 504,23
Sundry debters / receivables {4,647.75] 342.82
Loans and advances (537.58] 1560.00
Trade / Other payables 150.07 {1,135.05)
Other current assets __3,055.00 __ ls18.18]
Net cash generated from operating activities belore exceptional items 4,597.81 2,519.30
Exceptional item : Interest in Joint venture written off - (121.80}
Direct taxes paid [Net of refundsl 49456 _1380.271
Net cash from operating activities after excepticnal items 5.292.37 2,032.23
B. CASH FLLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets / capital works-in-pragress 14,358.14) [9,274.60]
Consideration received from discontinued business - 1.236.10
Sale of fixed assets 154.18 192.73
Purchase of investments (202.76) -
Sale proceeds of investments 27.38 -
investrment in Subsidiary Company (15,784.01) 1622.70)
Investrent in Joint Ventures - {99.08)
Short term deposit / secured loans 16.35 5.48
interest recenved 213.08 175.92
Diwidend received 1.0% 0.2
Net cash used in investing activities [19,930.%1) {8.380.6%1
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from 1ssue of capitat unctuding preruumj 63.32 135.53
Minonity Interest 168.52 114,57}
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings (net) 217.90 1.622.30
Proceeds from FCCB 19,553.40 -
FCCB issue expenses (227.50) -
Interes: paid 1,036.32) (671.16]
Dividend paid (3.147.27) [3,164.26]
Tax on dividend (444.20) [447.52]
Net cash from financing activities 15,128.05 7.460.32
INCREASE / {DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EJUIVALENTS 48%.51 1.116.86
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 2,373.M 1,256.85
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 2,863.22 2,377
Notes : |
Cash and cash equivalents include : |
Cash and cheques in hand and remittances ir transit 170.04 31318
With banks in : i
Current accounts [Net of divdend accounts Rs. £7.06 million 1,122.48 809.91 |
tPrevious year Rs. 55.27 millionl] '
Deposit accounts [Net of pledged Rs. 11.88 mithon [Previous year Rs. 1.05 million]] 1,570.50 1,250.62 |
2,843.22 23731

This 1s the consolidated cash flow statement referred te in cur report of even date

On hehalf of t1e Board of Directors

For WALKER, CHANDIOK & CO TEJENDRA KHANNA DR. BRIAN W. TEMPEST MALVINDER MOHAN SINGH

Chartered Accountants Chairman Chief Mentor & CEQ & Managing Direclor
Executve Vice Chairman

VINOD CHANDIOK ATUL SCBTI RAM S. RAMASUNDAR SUSHIL K. PATAWARI

Partner Chief Operating Officer & President & CFQ Secretary

Membership No. 10393 © Whole-time Director

Place : Gurgaon
Dated : March 29, 2G07
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Rs. in Million
SCHEDULE 1t
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
598,000,000 (Previcus year 598,60C,000 ) Equit)[/ shares of Rs. 5 each 2,990.00 2,99¢.00
100,000 [Previous year 106,000) Curnutative preference shares of Rs. 100 each 10.00 10.00
3,000.00 3,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid ug - -
372,686,964 {Previous year 372,442,190) Equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid 1,863.43 1,862.21
1,8463.43 1.862.21
SCHEDULE 2 —_— —_—
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Capital reserve 66.58 56.58
Amalgamation reserve 43.75 4375
Revaluation reserve
As per last balance sheet 105.07 107.27
Add: Addition during the year 86.64 -
) 191.1 107.27
Less : Utilised during the year (2.20] [2.20
) 189.51 105.07
Securities premium account - -
As per last balance sheet 6,235.31 6,054.54
Add : Received during the year * b4.69 189.77
. 6,300.00 4,235.31
Less ; Expenses on issue of FCCB [Net of taxes) {150.93) -
Less : Premium payable on redemption of FCCB [Net of taxes] (549.47) -
) . 5,599.60 $,235.31
Foreign projects reserve - ——
As per last balance sheet 85.67 116.32
Less : Transfer to profit and loss account [22.95) [30.65}
62.72 85.67
Employee stack option cutstandin? —_— I
Employees stock options outstanding . 127.96 15019
tess : Deferred employee compensation [33.95) [73.93]
94.01 76.26
General reserve
As per last balance sheet 14,901.24 14,651.24
Add : Transfer from profit and lcss account __ 450.00 _250.00
15,351.24 14,901.24
Prefit & loss appropriation 2,464.96 1,253.95
Foreign currency translation reserve 14.11 162.80
i 23,986.48 22,605.03
* Includes Rs. 8.59 million {previous year Rs, 23.03 million} —_— _—
transferred from Employees Stock Options Outstanding
SCHEDULE 3
SECURED LOANS
Loans from banks 2,806.31 5,627.48
Deferred payment credits 563.31 65117
3,369.62 6,078.65
UNSECURED LOANS
Short term loans
Banks _2.939.74 1232976
9,939.74 12,329.76
Long term loans. - -
era coupen Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds [FCCB) 19,474.40 -
Banks 6,741 1614.45
Qthers 44,30 -
Deferred sales tax credit 1402 _197s
26,246.83 1,634.21
36,186.57 13,963.97
SCHEDULE 5
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY / ASSET
Deferred tax liability arising on acco unt of ;
Depreciation 2,554.52 2,699.27
2,654.52 2,699.27
Deferred tax assets arising on account of ; - —
Pravision for doubtful debts and advances 209.55 259.43
Retirement benefits 134.99 100.05
Carried forward tax losses 1,062.24 2,291.85
FCCB redemption premium charged to securities premium account 278.79 -
Others 214.08 47.01
1,899.45 2,698.34
Net liability 654.87 0.93
Aggregated of net deferred tax | abilities jurisdictions 1,636.03 2.699.27
Aggregated of net deferred tax essets jurisdictions 981.16 2.698.34

Net liability £54.87 0.93
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

.

SCHEDULE &
FIXED ASSETS Rs. in Million
Gross hlock* Accurnulated Net Block
Depreciation/
Amortization
Description 2005 Adotions  Deletions  Exchange 2006 2006 2006 2005
Intangibles
Goodwll 5,218.66  12.776,72 - £40.40 18,235.98 578.04 17,657.94  4.642.38
Trademarks, product licenses 2,142.81 108.15 - 115.67 2,966.63 1,818.42  1,148.21 731.18
Software 390.01 110.92 - - 500.93 274.86 226.07 160.52
intangible under development 248.81 14.49 - - 283.30 - 283.30 268.81
Non Compete Cornpensation 21060 .09 - - 211.00 160.03 50.97 70.00
Tangibies
Land 475.61 0183 3.51 181 992.04 - §92.04 475,61
Buildings 4,027.59 170511 ‘5.47 2694 5,742.17 894.66  4,847.51 335798
Plant and machinery 15,104.99  4.1520.97 148.83 76.82 19,553.95  7,650.71 11,903.24  9.293.44
Furniture and fixtures 1,051.68 187.36 17.3% $.35 1,231.08 441,20 789.88 704 91
Vehicles 346.00 39417 5822 13.44 698.39 218.13 480.26 255.05
Assets taken on ,ease
Plant and machinery 119 47.38 - 1.95 50.52 18.1% 32.33 0.98
Building 8625.74 40.84 - {12.59] &674.01 147.06 526.95 58 21
Equipments 43.07 0.24 38.74 0.22 4.79 £.35 0.44 33.56
Vehicles 1415 13.15 - 1.80 29.10 14.90 14.20 NI
Total 29,920.31 21,242.35 279.08 290.31 51,173.89 12,220.55 38,953.34 20,591.41
Previous year 23,1324 715,67 7L79 464,29 29.920.31 932890  20,591.41

* The above includes the following assets held for dispe sal, which are being carried at the lower of their book value and net realisable value :
- Land Rs, 259,10 million, Building Rs. 3464.58 million, Plant and machinery Rs. 220.79 million and Vehicles Rs. 0.88 million.

Rs. in Million
SCHEDULE 7 2006 2005
INVESTMENTS
CURRENT
Trust securities
Other than trade - unquoted
41,089 USé4 Bonds of Rs. 100 each 16.75% Tax Freel 4.1 4N
—4m_ 4n
LONG TERM
Other than trade - unquoted
Investments in shares of companies [fully paid]
Nature of Face Numbers
investrment value 2004 2005
Trade :
Unguated :
Sidmak Laboratories [India) Limited Equnty shares Rs. 1 14,733 16,733 10.54 10.54
Quoted
Autobacs Seven Co Ltd # Equity shares 1.62 152
Zenotech Laboratories Limited Equity shares Rs. 10 2,000,000 - 200.00 -
- 212.06 12.06
Other than trade :
Quoted
Fartis Financial Services Ltd. Equity shares Rs, 10 - 333,250 - 14.49
The Great Eastern Shipping Company Ltd. Equty shares Rs. 10 500 500 0.03 063
Sawal Pharmaceuticat Co. Ltd # Equity shares 124 0.48
Unquoted
Fertis Healthcare Limited Equity shares Rs. 10 14,097,660 14,097,660 140.98 140.98
Biotech Consortium India Ltd Equity shares Rs. 10 50,000 30,000 0.50 0.50
Nimbua Greenfield [Punjabj Limited Equity shares  Rs, 10 250,000 $0,000 2.50 0.50
Tomite Pharmaceutical Co,Lid # Equaty shares 144 144
146.69 158.42
362.84 174.59
Less - Provision for diminution in the value of long term investments 0.51 287
362.35 17172

# Held by Niton Pharmaceuticals Industry Co. Ltd., Japan
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Rs. in Million
SCHEDULE 8 2004 2005
INVENTORIES
Stores and spares 185.03 88.07
Raw materials 5,079.93 4,433.22
Packaging materials 725.38 405.46
Finished goods 7,915.91 6,509.92
Work-in-process 2,209.27 1,987.35
16,115.52 _13,624.02
SCHEDULE 9 - -
SUNDRY DEBTORS
{Considered goed except where provided for]
Secured 231.97 24751
Unsecured _15,837.94 _ 1136564
16,069.91 11,613.15
Less : Doubtful and provided for 353.58 209.63
15,716.33 1,403.52
SCHEDULE 10 - -
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and chegues in hand 83.65 27.16
Rernittances in transit 846.3% 286.02
Balances with banks:
Current accounts 1,209.74 845,18
Deposit accounts 1,671.38 1,251.67
Margin money accounts - 0.05
2,951.16 ~2,430.08
SCHEDULE 11 T -
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good except where provided for)
Export incentives accrued 463.23 694,79
Exchange gain accrued on forward contracts . 184.35 321.06
tnsurance claims 78.58 144.84
interest accrued 7.52 9.38
Others 277.33 1.7
1,011.01 1,283.78
Less : Doubtful and provided for 32.96 33.92
978.05  1.249.86
SCHEDULE 12 - T
LOANS AND ADVANCES
[Considered good except where provided for)
Secured 57.34 73.69
Unsecured
Advances recoverable in cash ar in kind
or for value to be receivad 3,941.51 3,403.71
Prepaid income-tax 1,757.21 1,657.52
5,756.16 5,034.92
Less : Doubtful and provided for 41313 413.62
5,343.03 4,621.30
SCHEDULE 13
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Acceptances 73.38 89.93
Sundry creditors 8,054.68 7,624.32
Other liabilities 3,999.80 2.885.71
12,127.86 10,599.96
SCHEDULE 14
PROVISIONS
Retirement benefits 1,276.75 1.693.42
Income-tax g12.1 765.46
Premium payable on redempticn of FCCB 828.24 -
Finat dividend - 2,235.55
Interim dividend 2,237.22 -
Tax on dividend M3.77 313.53

5,468.7 4,407.96
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Rs. in Million
SCHEDULE 15 2006 2005
OPERATING INCOME
Sales and services
Sales 60,652.24 51,880.43
Services 12.73 16.62
Others
Expert incentives 47914 450.64
Royalty and technical know-how 350.62 305.31
Exchange gain [net) 108.71 547.35
Sundries 312.34 276.48
_1.250.81 __17R78
61,915.78 53.676.83
SCHEDULE 16
OTHER INCOME :
Interest 211.22 180.62
Dividend - 1.01 0.26
Profit on sale of assets 72.12 7.89
Profit on sale of investments 12.89 -
Reversal of provision for diminution in the value >f investmer!s 2.36 1.07
Bad debts / advances recovered 0.07 33.07
Unclaimed balances and excess provisions 91.05 255.5t
Miscellaneous 173.63 127.86
564.35 5616.28
SCHEDULE 17
MATERIALS CONSUMED
Raw materials consumed 15,2291 12,494.57
Packaging materials consumed 2,620.96 2,123.21
Finished goods purchased 7.510.93 7.367.73
Increase in work-in-process and finished goods
Opening stock
Work-ir-process 1,987.35 1.919.5%
Finished goods 4,509.92 6.804.88
8,497.27 872447
Less : —
Closing stock
Work-in-process 2,209.27. 1,987.35
Finished goods 7.915.91 6.509.92
10,125.18 8,497.27
(Increase] / Decrease (1,627.91) 22720
Materials consumed 23,733.09 22,2121
SCHEDULE 18
MANUFACTURING
Power and fuel 850.47 722.88
Excise duty 56.89 45.57
Stores and spares consumed 510.92 410.62
Analytical charges 50.14 49.07
Processing charges 1,071 802.23
Royalty pard 389.07 378.66
Repairs and maintenance
Factory buildings 33N 27.80
Plant and machinery 135.45 1n2.57

3,098.76 2,549.40
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 01, 2006

Rs. in Miltion
SCHEDULE 19 2006 2005
PERSONNEL
Salaries, wages and bonus 6,812,585 5,838.42
Contribution to provident and othsr funds 618.83 443.22
Workmen and staff welfare 497.55 47.34
Amortization of deferred employees compensation 24.35 32.68
7,955.29 8,785.66
SCHEDULE 20
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADM NISTRATION
Rentals 452.87 429.85
Rates and taxes 272 27387
Regulatory filing fee 533.18 477.63
Printing and stationery 105.80 1571
Insurance 540.28 476.46
Communication 281.62 299.44
Legal and prefessional charges 1,733.21 1.912.36
Travel and conveyance 929.18 815.74
Discounts 209.55 232.39
Freight, clearing and forwarding 2,140.43 1,841.32
Advertising and sales promatien 2,824.49 3,747.0¢
Market research expenses 572.20 -
Repairs and maintenance 274.46 233.92
Running and maintenance of vehizles 197.461 155.41
Recruitment and training 123.03 12591
Conterences and meetings 143.22 174.81
Commission 1,008.07 953.56
Amounts written off 60.48 82.07
Assets written off 10.04 333
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 142.50 13.34
Loss on sale of fixed assets 13.73 24,39
Others 1,2946.08 811.32
13,866.94 13,231.94
SCHEDULE 21
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Salaries, wages and bonus 932.54 941.91
Contribution to provident and othe- funds 58.93 43.57
Workmen and staff welfare 57.10 44.51
Materials and consumnables 1.514.03 1,596.42
Power and fuel 159.92 na.72
Clinical trials & Bioequivalence studies 514.49 1,452.37
Rentals 1.9 6290
Repair and maintenance 88.59 54.69
Recruitment and training ) 31.84 14.15
Printing and stationery 20.82 20.77
Insurance 2717 22.45
Communication 38.54 52.29
Legal and professional charges 88.70 74.36
Travel and conveyance n.7m? 68.81
Others 286.42 163.15

 3,954.79 4,925.07




SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 22

DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT

Depreciation

Building

Ptant and machinery

Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles

Assets taken on lease
Plant and rmachinery
Building
Equipments
Vehicles

i ess : Transfer from revaluation reserves

Amortization
Trademarks, product licenses & sofiware
Non-compete Compensation

Impairment
Product licerce

SCHEDULE 23

PROVISION FOR TAX
Current Income-tax
Deferred tax

* Deferred tax is net of deferred tax charge on ["CCB issue expenses
Rs. 76.58 mitlion (previous year Nill adjusted ir the Securities Premium Account.

SCHEDULE 24

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
Profit after tax and minority intergsts
Tax-earlier years

1
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
before exceptional items
Profit from discontinued operations
Profit from sale of undertaking and a sussidiary
Interest in Joint venture written off
Exchange gain on Foreign Currency Cor vertible Bonds
Tax effect of above itemns

No. of weighted average equity shares
Basic
Effect of dilutive equity shares equivalert
- Stock options outstanding
- Foreign Currency Convertible Bands

Diluted

Nominal value of equity share IRs.]
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Rs.)
Including discontinued operations and exceptional items
Basic
Diluted
Excluding discontinued operations and exceptional iTems
Basic
Diluted

Rs. in Miltion
2006 2005
151.29 87.94
1,068.94 842.19
72.36 82.14
59.87 36.87
17.96 0.12
113.81 35.70
4.52 6.55
7.86 3.89
1,496.61 1.095.42
(2.20) (2.20)
1,494.41 1,093.22
328.44 273.62
20.03 20,00
348.47 293.62
- 57.48
1,842.88 1.444.52
5347 351.03
822.03 1,048.60)
1,356.74 (697.57)
5,103.39 2,617.06
148.06 [61.78]
5,251.45 2.555.28
- (240.47)
- (454.95)
- 121.80
(79.20] -
26.66 140.85
5198.91 2,122.51
372,595,730 372,216,805
746,412 1089.479
21,546,734 -
394,888,876 373.306.284
5.00 5.00
14.09 6.87
13.17 6.84
14.09 5.70
13.17 5.69
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SCHEDULE 25
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

Nature of operations

Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited ("Parent Company”). a public limited company, together with its Subsidiaries and Jaint
Ventures [hereinaiter collectively referred to as the "Group'} operates as an integrated international pharmaceutical
arganisation with businesses encompassing the entire value chain in the marketing, production and distribution of dasage
forms and active pharmaceutical -ngredients. The Group is also engaged in the business of consumer healthcare products.

The Group presently has manufacturing facilities in eight countries, namely India, the United States of America, Ireland,
China, Malays:a, Nigeria, Rornama and Vietnam. The Group’s major markets include the United States of America, India,
Europe, Russia / CIS, and South Africa. The United States of America is the larges: market and major products are
Simvastatin, Amoxycillin, Ciprofloxacin, isotretinon, Cephalexin and CoAmoxyclav. The research and development activities
of the Group are principally carrizd out at its facilities in Gurgaon, near New Delhi, India.

The Parent Company's shares are listed for trading on the National Stock Exchange and the Bombay Stock Exchange in
India and its Global Depository Receipts (cavering equity shares of the Parent Company] are listed on the Luxemnbourg
Stock Exchange and Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds are listed an Singapore Sioc« £xchange.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements have bezn prepared to comply with the mandatory Accounting Standards issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of india ['ICAI'} and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (the 'Act’). The financial
statements have been prepared wnder the historical cost convention on accrual basts. The accounting policies have been
consistently applied by the Comaany unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates

In preparing the Group's financial statements in conformity with accounting principtes generaily accepted in India, the
management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and the disctosure of cantingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financiat statements and the reperted amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulis coutd differ from those estimates. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognized in the period the same is determined.

Principles of consolidation

The censelidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company, its Subsidiaries and Joint
Ventures lcollectively referred to as "Group”].

The consolidated financial staterne nts have been combined on a line-by-line basis by add ng the book values of like items of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group balances / transactions and unrealized profits in full.
The amounts shown in respect of reserves comprise the amount of the relevant reserves as per the balance sheet of the
Parent Company and its share in t1e post-acquisiticn increase in the relevant reserves of the consolidated entities.

Proportionate share of interest in Joint Ventures has been accounted for by the proportionate consolidation method in
accordance with Accounting Standard - 27 - "Financial Reperting of Interests in Joint Ventures.”

The excess { deficit of cost ta the Parent Campany of its investment aver its partion of net warth in the consalidated entities
at the respective dates on which the investment in such entities was made is recognized in the financial statements as
goodwill / capital reserve. The Pa-ent Company's portion of net worth in such entities is determined on the basis of book
values of assets and liahilities as per the financial statements of the entities as on the date of investment and if not
available, the financial statemments for the immediately preceding period adjusted for the effects of significant changes.

Entities acquired during the year have been consoclidated from the respective dates of {1eir acquisition,

The consolidated financial statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as that adopted by the
Parent Company for its separate financial statements,

Fixed assets

Fixed assels are stated at cost less, accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase price
and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Borrowing costs directly attributaie to acquisition or construction of fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for thei~ intended use are capitalized.
Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is previded on straight line method over useful life estimatad by the management or an the
basis of depreciation rates prescribed under respective tocal laws.

Premium gaid on perpetual leasehold land is charged to revenue on termination / renewal of lease agreements,
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SCHEDULE 25
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conid ]

7.

10.

L
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

INDIAN | GAAP

Intangibles
Patents, Trademarks, Designs and Licences

Cost incurred for acquiring rights for patents trademarks, designs and licences, are capitalized and amortized on a
straight-line basis over a period of five years.

Computer software

Software which is not an integral part of the re-ated hardware, is classified as an intangible asset and is being amortized
over a period of six years, being the estimated Jseful life.

Non-compete

Non-compete compensation is capitalized and amorlized on a straight line basis over the life of the non-compete
agreement.

Goodwill

Goodwill reflects the excess of the purchase prite over the book value of net assets acquired. Goodwill arising on acguisition
of subsidiaries/businesses is being tested for impairment on an annual basis.

Product Development

Cost incurred for acquiring rights for products under development are recognized as intangible assets and amortized on
a straight-tine basis over a period of five years from the date of requlatory approval. Subsequent expenditures on
development of such products are also added to the cost cf intangibles.

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year are classified as current
iwestments. All other investments are classified as tonig-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of
cost and fair vatue determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However,
provision for diminution in the vatue of investments other than temporary is made.

Prafit / loss on sale of investments is computed with reference to their average cost.

Inventories
inventories are valued as follows:
Raw materials, stores and spares and packaging materials

Lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materizls and other items held for use in the production of finished
goods are not written down below cost if the products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or
above cost. Cost is determined on a waighted average basis.

Finished goods

Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on normat operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty, wherever applicable.

Work-in-process

At cost upté estimated stage of process. Cost includes direct materials and tabour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on normal operating capaciy.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and to make the sale.

Where duty paid imported materials / indigenous materials are consumed, in manufacture of products for export, prior to
receipt of duty-free materials under the Advance Licence Schemne, the estimated excess cost of such materials over that
of duty-free materials is carried forward and charged to revenue on consumption of such duty-free raterials.

Expenditure on regulatory approvals

Expenditure incurred for obtaining regulatory approvals and registration of products for overseas markets and product
acquisitions is charged to revenue.

. Employees stock option plan

The accounting value of stock options representing the excess of the market price on the date of grant over the exercise
price of the shares granted under "Emptoyees’ Stock Optior Scheme” of the Company, is amortized as “Deferred employees'
compensation” on straight-line basis over the vesting period in accordance with the SEBI [Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme] Guicelines, 1999,




Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited Annual Report 2006 Consolidated Schedules

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

SCHEDULE 25
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.]

12. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extant that it can be reliably measured and is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred
te the customer and is stated ne: of trade discounts, excise duty, sales returns and other levies.

Royalties, Technical Know-how and Licensing income

Revenue is recognized on accruzl basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Interest

Revenue is recognized an a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicabla,
Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the right to receive is established.

Chargebacks

In the United States, amongst Group’s large customers are the major wholesalers who resell products to third party
custorners like managed care or Janisations, drug store chains and pharmacies. A significant part of the gross revenues
from such wholesalers are subject to various forms of rébates and allowances |known as “Chargebacks”], which are
recorded as reductions from gross reverues. The computation of the estimate for expected chargebacks is complex and
involves significant judgment based on histerical exparience and estimated wholesaler inventory levels, as well as expacted
sell-through levels by the wholesalers te indirect customers. The primary factor considered in developing and avaluating
provision for chargbacks include the average historical chargeback credits and an estimate of the inventory held by such
wholesalers, based on internal analysis of wholesaler's historical purchases and cont-act sales.

13. Export benefits / incentive

Export entittements in respect of the exports made under the Duty Entitlernent Pass Book ["DEPB"] Scheme are recognized
in the profit and loss account when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established.

Obligation / entitlements under the Advance Licence Scheme for import of raw materials are accounted for on purchase
of raw materials / export sales.

14. Research and development
Revenue expenditure incurred on research and development is charged to profit and loss account in the year it isincurred.

Capiial expenditure is included in the respective heads under fixed assets and depreciation thereen is charged to
depreciation account,

15. Foreign exchange translations

Indian Rupee is the reporting currency for the Group. However, the local currencies of overseas Subsidiaries and Joint
Ventures are different from the reporting currency of the Group. The translaticn of local currencies into Indian Rupee is
perfarmed for assets and liabilitie s [excluding share capital, opening reserves and surp.us), using the exchange rate as at
the balance sheet date, for revenues, costs and expenses using weighted average exchange rate during the reporting
period, Share capital, opening resarves and surplus are carried at historical cost. Resultant currency translation exchange
gain / loss is carried as foreign currency translation reserve under reserves and surplus. Investments in foreign entities
are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of making the investment.

Income and expenditure items of integral foreign operatiens are translated at the monthly average exchange rate of their
respective foreign currencies. Mcnetary items at the balance sheet date are translated using the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets are recorded at the rates prevaiting on the cate of the transaction.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by the reporting entities in their local currency at the rates prevailing on
the date of the transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are restated at the rate prevailing on the
balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on ~he settiement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were initially recerded during the year, or reported in the previous financial statements,
are recognized as inceme or expanse in the year in which they arise, except for exchange differences arising on loans
denominated in foreign currencies utilised for acquisition of fixed assets from outside India, where the exchange gains /
losses are adjusted to the cost of such assets,
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20.
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The exchange differences arising on forward foreign currency contracts other than those entered into to hedge the foreign
currency risk of firm commitments or highly probable “orecast transactions are recognized in the period in which they
arise based on the difference between il foreign currency amount of the contract translated at the exchange rate on the
reporting date and ii) the same foreign currency amount t-anslated at the later of the date of inception of the forward
exchange contract or the last reporting date.

The premium or discount arising at the incepticn of the forward foreign currency contracts is amortized as an expense or
income over the life of the contract.

Any profit or loss arising on canceltation or renewal of lonward exchange contracts is recognized as income or expense
for the year.

Retirement benefits

Provisions for tiabilities in respect of gratuity, pension and leave encashment are made based on actuarial valuation made l
by an independent actuary as at the balance st eet date.

Contributions in respect of provident fund, superannuat on and gratuity etc., are made to the specific Trusts set up by the
Company and charged to the profit and loss account.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharebolders
by the weighted average number of equity shar s outstanding during the period. The weighted average numbers of eguity
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events of bonus issue and share split.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive poteniial equity shares.

Taxes on income

Provision for tax for the year comprises estirr ated current income-tax determined to be payable n respect of taxable
income and deferred tax being the tax effect of tempora-y timing differences representing the difference between taxable
and accounting income that eriginate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and is
calculated in accordance with the relevant dorr estic tax laws. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the batance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only ta the extent
that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realized.

Contingent liabilities

The Group creates a provision when there is a gresent obligation as a result of a past event where the out flow of economic
resources is probable and a reliable estimate o’ the ameunt of obligation can be made. The disclosure is made for possibie
or present obligaticns that may, but probably will not, require out flow of resources as contingent liabilities in the financial
statements.

impairment of assets

The Group on an annual basis tests the carryir g amount of assets for impairment so as to determine a) the provision for
impairment loss, if any, or b) the reversal, if ary, required on account of impairment loss recognized in previous periods.

Lease accounting

i} Assets acquired on lease where the Group has sutstantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Such assels are capitatized at the inception of the lease at the lower of fair value or the present value
of minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated
between the liability and the interest cost, so as -o obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding
liabitity for each period.

il Operating lease payments are recognizec as an expense in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over
the term of the lease.
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1. Share capital
al  Share capital includes:

{i} 293,698,988 [Previous year 293,698,988] Equity shares of Rs. 5 each allo:ted as fully paid bonus shares by

capitalization out of securities premium and reserves.

lil 6,562,308 [Previous year 6,562,308 Equity shares of Rs. 5 each allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without

payment being received in cash.

bl  Outstanding stock options or equity shares of the Parent Company under the "Employees’ Stock Option Scheme”™:

Date of grant Exercise price 2006 2005
Rs. Numbers Numbers

January 12, 2001* 336.50 (210.31) 101,397 (162,235) 126,994 {203,194}
December 3, 2001* 297.50 (185.94] 233,532 (373,451] 282,626 (452,202}
April 1, 2002* 372.50 {232.81) 383,180 (613,088] 455,142 {728,227)
February 7, 2003 283.50 - 997,739 - 1187974 -
January 12, 2004 496.00 - 1,735,742 - 2,003,450 -
January 17, 2005 538.50 - 2,288,440 - 2,668,650 -
January 17, 2004 392.00 - 1,110,950 - - -

4,850,980  [1,148,974) 6,704,838 (1,383,623

* Thef guresin parenthesis represents adjusted exercise price in accordance with the Employees’ Stock Option Scheme
of the Company on account of issue of bonus shares in the ratio of 3:5 on October 11, 2002,

2. Secured loans:

Loans under different categories are secured against certain assets, property, equipment and other immavable property,

inventories and receivable of the Parent Company or concerned subsidiary.

3.  Loans repayable within one year

4.  Fixed assets
Land includes:
a]  cost of leasehold land Rs. 213.43 million {Previous year Rs. 201,63 mitlion].

b)  cost of freehold land Rs. 66,03 mitlion {Previous year Rs. 45.15 million)
pending registratien in the rame of the Company.

5. Investments
Quoted
Aggregate book value [Net of provision)
Market value

Ungueted
Aggregate book value [Net of provision]

6. Exchange gain on outstanding “‘orward exchange rate
contracts to be recognized in the subsequent year

7. Deposit accounts with banks include pledged with Government Authorities and others

8. Remuneration to directors of Farent Company*

Salaries and altowances

Contribution to provident and other funds #
Directors’ fea

Commission

Perquisites

Rs. in Mitlion
2004 2005
13,991.24 13,390.78
202.78 13.65
145.46 16.65
159.57 158.07
216.34 104.92
0.88 1.05
77.76 48.89
5.76 4.00
2.91 2.37
38.90 16.50
7.77 7.76
133.10 79.52

* Exclusive of provision for future: liabilities in respect of retirement benefits fwhich are bazsed on actuariat valuation done on
overall Company basis] and arr ortization of deferred employees compensation on grant of stock options under "Employees’

Stock Option Scheme” of the Company.

Exclusive of pension paid / pay 3ble to a Non-Executive Director for the services rendered in earlier years as a Whole-time

Director / employee Rs. 2.29 mr.illion {Previous year Rs, 2.29 million],
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10.

1.

12,

13.

Rs. in Million

2005 2005
Contingent tiabilities
Claims not acknowledged as debts* 1,172.69 1.028.46
Indirect taxes” 216.45 206.12
Guarantees to banks on behalf of others 71.68 2490
*Rs. 365.59 million [Previous year 311.70 millior.] depositzd under protest.
Interest on certain claims may be payable as and when the oatcome of
the related claim is determined and has not been included above,
Estimated amount of contracts remaining t¢ be executed on
capital account, net of advances. 491.44 589.20
Tax earlier years includes:
Current-tax (312.39) 61.78
Deferred tax expense ) 164.33 -

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

During the year. the Company issued at par 5-vear Zera coupoen Foreign Currency Convertibte Bonds [FCCB] aggregating to
US $ 440 million {Rs. 19,553.60 million as on tt e date of the issuel for financing international acquisition, capitat expenditure
and others. The Bond holders have the option t¢ convert “hese into Common Shares ar Global Depository Shares, at a price of
Rs. 716.32 per share {subject to adjustment, if any] with a fixed exchange rate of Rs. 44.15 per US $ 1, at any time on or after
Aprit 27, 2006 and but before March 9, 2011,

The Bonds may be redeemed. in whole, at the option of the Company at any time on or after March 18, 2009. but before
February 6. 2011, subject to satisfaction of certzin condit ons. The Bonds are redeemable on March 18, 2011, at a premium of
26.765 percent of their principal amount unless previously converted, redeerned or purchased and cancelled.

The FCCB issue expenses totaling to Rs. 150.53 million [Net of taxes} and the premium payabie on redemption Rs. 549.47
miltion {Net of taxes) being the pro-rata charge for the year, have been adjusted against the Securities Premium Account.
Leases

Finance lease :

al  The Group has acquired assets under finance lease comprising mainly of land, busldings and vehicles. The minimum
lease rentals and the presentvalug of min mum lease payments as at December 31, 2006 and 2005, are under menticned:

Rs. in Million

2006 2005

al  Minimum lease payments outstanding 667.55 790.60

bl  Presentvalue of minimum lease paymemnts 561.93 65117

¢  Amounts due

Minimum lease Present value of minimum

payments lease payments

Rs. in Million Rs. in Million

2004 2005 2006 2005

il not later than one year 77.24 H6.64 57.9 85.91

il later than one year but 307.82 304.50 250.856 260.08

not later than five years
iiil  later than five years 282.49 367.36 253.17 305.18
Operating lease :

bl The Group has leased various commertial prem ses and other facilities under non-cancellable operating lease. The
future lease payments in respect of these are as follows :

Minimum lease payments: Rs. in Miltion

a. not later than one year 10134

b.  later than one year but not later than five years 243.07

C. later than five years . 95.48

Total 440.89

¢l The Lease expense recognized during the year amounted to Rs, 452.52 million [Previous year Rs. 313.83 million)
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14. Related party disclosures

al Relationship:

Key management Relatives* Entities over which significant
personnel influence is exercised
Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh Mrs. Nimmi Singh, Fortis Healthcare Ltd.

mother SRL Ranbzxy Ltd.

International Hospitals Ltd.
Religare Securities Limited
Fortis Clinicat Research Ltd.
(Formerly Cscar Research Lid.)

Dr. Brian W. Tempest -

Mr. Ram S. Ramasundar -

Mr. Ramesh L Adige -

* Relatives of key managemant personnel with whom the Company had transactions during the year.

bl The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business.

Rs. in Million
(i1 Joint Ventures 2004 2005
Sale of finished goods 165.86 676
Balance at the end af the year:
Receivables 24.64 6.73
[iit Key management personnel and their relatives
Remuneration to key management personnel 147.26 85.50
House rent allowance 2.40 2.40
Pension 2.03 2.03
Medical reimbursement 0.02 *
* Previous year Rs. 1,250 rounded off to nil.
iiil  Entities over which significant influence is exercised
Purchase of materisls/finished goods 119 -
Sale of finished goods 25.13 1.99
Sale of fixed assets - 1.00
Services availed 159.14 22.27
Services rendered / other receipts n -
Balance at the end Jf the year :
Other receivab.es 10.95 1.52
Payables 7.80 0.06

15. Segment information
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group reviews the performance on the basis of business units identified as Pharmaceuticals
and Other businesses, which are reportable segments.

Pharmaceuticals segment comprise of manufacture and trading of Formulations, Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients |API)
and Intermediate, Generics, Druj discovery and Consumer Health Care products.

Other businesses comprise of chartering of aircrafts [discontinwed during the year) and rendering of financial services.
Geographic Segments

The Group's business is organized into four key geographic segments. Revenues are sttributable to individual geagraphic
segments based upon the location of the customers.

Other Infermation

All segment revenues, expenses assets and liabilities are directly attributable to the segments and disclosed accordingiy.

Segment revenues, expenses anc resulis include transfers between business segments. Inter-segment transfers are accounted
for at selling price to the transferring segment. Such transfers are eliminated on consatidation. @

The account:ng polictes consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements are also applied to revenues and
expenditure of individual segments.

Segment information disclosures as required under accounting standard on "Segment Reporting” issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

]
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al  Primary segment information

Rs. in Miltion
Pharmaceuticals Others Segment Total Elimination Total

2006 2005 2006 20CE 2006 2005 2006 2005 2004 2005
REVENUE
External revenue 61,421.33  51,343.04 12,73 14728 61,434.06 5281587 - - &1,434.06 52,815.87
Inter segmert revenue - 23.48 - 338% - 57.37 - 197.37) - -
Total revenue 61,6421.33 5136654 12.73 150670 41,434.06 52871.24 - 157.371 61,434.06 5281587
RESULTS
Total segment results  6,960.86  1501.01 21.45 2179 84,9820 1,712.97 - - 6,982.31 1712.97
Interest expenge (1,0346.32} (671.14)
Interest income 211.22 180.62
Exceptional items - 1121801
Inceme from sale of undertaking - 454.95
Unallocated corporate
incame net of expenses 35343 389.27
Income taxes [1,354.74) 697.57
Profit after tax 5,153.60  2,642.42
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment assets 78,757.7v 5714278 76%.22 10230 79,522.93 57.245.08 - - 7952293 5724508
Unallocated assets 5,459.01 5.140.65
Total assets 84,981.94 42.385.73
Segmrent liabilites 14,294.40 11,588.59 411.81 719 14,706.21 1560588 - - 14,705,271  11,505.88
Unallocated liabianies 44,082.58 2630984
Total liabilities 58,788.7%9 37915.72
Capital Expenditure 19,727.83 969410 n.o1 14151 19,727.84  9.835.61 - - 19.727.84  §.835.61
Depreciation, amortization,
& Impairment 1,841.90 142459 [.98 19.93  1,B42.8B  1,444.52 - - 1,842.88 1,4464.52
Non cash expenses other
than Depreciation,
amaortization & irmpairment 226,74 185.54 0.01 1.83 2248.75 187.37 - - 2246.75 188.04

b) Secondary segment information - Geographical
Rs, in Million
India Europe North America Asia Pacific
2006 2005 2004 2005 2006 20C5 2006 2005

Segment revenue 12,412.62 42,650 86 11,025.15 14,383.7718,753.29 1509661 4,608.02 518406
Segment assets 29,0989 30.872.41 256,511.55 9.033.2814,245.88 i3,881.58  2,584.9% -
Capital expenditure 2,1511.30 6,348.00  1,034.72 83188  3B.49  2,229.24 94.39 -

16. a]  Acquisition of Terapia S.A.

On June 7, 2006, the Group acquired 96.7% stake in “erapia S.A. (Terapia), a Romanian pharmaceutical company engaged
in the business of manufacturing generic f harmaceuticals, through Ranbaxy [Netherlands) B.V., for a cash consideration
of Rs. 15,019.19 million [US $ 326.71 million . The acquisition was funded from foreign currency convertible bonds proceeds
issued by the Parent Company during the year.

The Group has accounted for this acquisition under the purchase method. Accordingly, the financial results for the post-
acquisition period have been included in te consolidated financial statements of the Groug.

The purchase cest of Rs. 15,019.19 millien has beer allozated as follows ; Rs. in Million
Intangible assets, net 56%9.51
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,534.91
Other carrent assets 2,543.25
Goodwill 12,005.54
Total assets acquired 16,662.81
Less: Provisions 443.04
Other liabilities 1,200.58
Total liabilities assumed 1.643.62

Purchase cost : 15.019.19
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d]
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Acquisition of Ranbaxy Bealgium N.V. [Formerly known as Ethimed N.V.]

During the year, the Group z cquired the entire share capital of Ethimed N.V. a Belgiur pharmaceutical company engaged
in the business of manufacturing generic pharmaceuticals, through Ranbaxy (Nether.ands) B.V., for a cash consideration
of Rs. 69.65 million (US $ 158 millian}.

The Group has accounted for this acquisition under the purchase method. Accordingly. the financial results for the post-
acquisition period have been included in the cansolidated financial staterents of the Group,

The purchase cost of Rs. 62.65 millicn has been allocated as follows : Rs. in Million
Other current assets 42.59
Goodwill 42.31
Total assets acquired 84.90
Less: Provisions 1.4

Other liabilities 14.11
Total liabilities assumed 15.25
Purchase cost 69.65

Acquisition of Mundogen Pharma 5.A

During the year, the Group azquired the entire share capital of Mundogen Pharma SA, generic business of GlaxoSmithKline
[GSKI, in Spain, threugh Laboratorios Ranbaxy S.L., Spain for a cash consideration of Rs. 266.12 million [Eure 4.57 miltion},
The acquisition was fundzd from the proceeds of foreign currency convertible bonds proceeds issued by the
Parent Company during the year.

The Group has accounted {c r this acquisition under the purchase methad. Accordingly, the financiat results for the post-
acquisition period have bee 1 included in the conselidated financial statements of the Group.

The purchase cost of Rs. 2{6.12 million has been allocated as follows ; Rs. in Million
Other current assets 81.45
Goodwill 242.67
Total assets acquired 32412
Less: Provisions

Other liabilities 58.00
Total liabilities assumed 58.00
Purchase cost 26612

Acquisition of substantial assets of Allen S.p.A.

During the year, the Group acquired substantial portion of the unbranded generic tusiness of Allen S.p.A, a division of
GlaxoSmithKline, in Italy, th-ough Ranbaxy [talia S.p.A. for a cash consideration of Rs. 428.75 miltion (Euro 8.14 miltion}.
The acquisition was fundea from the proceeds of foreign currency convertible bonds issued by the Parent Campany,
during the year.

The Group has accounted fer this acquisition under the purchase method. Accordingly, the financial results for the post-
acquisition period have been included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The purchase cost of Rs. 428.75 million has been allocated as follows ; Rs. in Million
Intangible assets 380.42
Qther current assets 48.33
Purchase cost 428.75

Acquisition of additional stake in Ranbaxy Farmaceutica Lida., Brazil

As at December 31, 2005, Ranbaxy (Netherlands) B.V. held 80 percent of the outstanding equity shares of Ranbaxy
Farmaceutica Ltda. ["RFL"). During the year endad December 31, 2006, Ranbaxy [Netherlands] B.V. acquired an additional
13.67 percent of the equity thares for Rs. 184.25 million, resulting in a total holding of 93.67 percent. Management has
considered the net assets velue of RFL as its fair value on the date of acquisition. This acquisition was accounted for as a
purchase and additional goodwill amounting to Rs. 57.61 mitlion was recorded as an excess of the purchase price over
the aggregate of the propor ionate fair value of the net assets acquired.

Other acquisitions
On December 1, 2004, the Parent Company announced the acquisition of Be-Tabs Pharmaceuticals (Pty} Limited
("Be-Tabs"), in South Africa, for 2 total consideration of USD 70 Million (500 Millio~ ZARI. The transaction, subject to

requisite approvals from South Africa’'s Competition Council autharity, is expected to oe completed in the second quarter
of the year 2007.
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17. Events occurring after the balance steet date

On February 14, 2007, federat officials, led by the “DA, concucied a search at the New Jersey premises of the US subsidiaries of the
Group. The Group is cooperating with the officials in conn 2ction with the investigation,

At present, the investigation is in its preliminary s tages and the autcome and related impact of the same, if any, on the financials of
the Group cannot be determined.

18. Ran Air Services Limited

During 2006, the Group has divested its entire st areholding in equity shares of Ran Air Services Limited, consisting of the aviation
business for a cash consideration of Rs. 11 millinn. The Group has recognized a gain of Rs. 3.56 mullion on this divestment.

Prior to sale, the aviation services business partf.lio constituted a smail aperation and was reported as a part of "Others” business

segment.

The foltowing table reflects the carrying values ¢f the primary components of the business divestec.

Description 2005
Lard -
Property, plant and equipment 56.10
Accounts receivable, net of allewances 1.7
Inventory 1.47
Qther assets 409
Total assets : 63.37
Accounts payable 096
QOther liabilitres 58.14
Net assets of discoentinued operations 4,27
Revenue 17.23
Loss before tax 2.52

19, Serious Fraud Office case

During the year, UK Serious Fraud Office ["SFO"] has b-ought criminat proceedings agairst ten defendants including
Ranbaxy (UK) Limited for the offence of conspiracy to defra.d the Secretary of State for Health and others concerned with the
provision of medicinal products by fixing and mraintaining the price etc., during the period April 1, 1998 to September 30, 2060.
The trialis scheduled to commence in January 2 008. Ranbaxy UK Limited, if found found guilty wilt be subjected to fine. However,
ranagement doesn't deem it necessary to make any provision against such proceedings, since the likelthood of liabilities from
this matter is considered remote.

20. Cansotidated financial statements comprise th financial stalements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries listed below :

Subsidiary Country of Effective group
incorporation shareholding (%)
Ranbaxy Drugs and Chemicals Company India 100.00
Ranbaxy Drugs Limited India 106.00
Rexcel Pharmaceuticats Limited India 100.00
Solus Pharmaceuticals Limited . India 100.06
Vidyut Investments Limited India 100.00
Ran Air Services Limited*** India 100.00
Ranbaxy [Netherlands) 8.V. ['/RNBV"] The Netheriands 1H0.00
Ranbaxy N.ANYV, ' Antilles, Nethertands 100.00
Ranbaxy (S.A.} [Proprietaryl Ltd. South Africa 160.00
Sonke Pharmaceuticals [Pty} Ltd South Africa 48.40
Ranbaxy Inc., United States of America 100.00
Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals, Inc. United States of America 100.00
Ranbaxy USA, Inc., United States of America 100.00
Ohrn Laboratories, Inc. United Slates of America 100.00
Ranbaxy l.aboratories, Inc., United States of America 100.00
Ranbaxy Hotdings [U.K.] Ltd. United Kingdom 100.00
Ranbaxy [U.K.] Ltd. United Kingdom 100.00
Ranbaxy Pharmacie Generiques SAS France 100.00
Office Pharmaceutique tndustriel Et
Hospitatier SARL ["OPIH SARL "] France 100,00

Ranbaxy Ireland Ltd. Ireland 100.00
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SCHEDULE 24

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Contd.]

Subsidiary Country of Effective group
incorparation shareholding (%)
Ranbaxy (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 100.00
Ranbaxy Egypt {L.L.C.] Egypt 100.00
Ranbaxy Poland S.P. Z.0.0. Poland 100.00
Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals Bv** The Netherlands 100.00
Ranbaxy Europe Ltd. United Kingdorn 100.00
Basics GmbH Germany 100.00
Ranbaxy Do Brazii Ltda Brazil 100.00
Ranbaxy Panama, S.A. Panama 100.00
Ranbaxy Vietnam Company Ltd. Vietnam 100.00
Ranbaxy-PRP [Peru) SAC, Peru 100.00
Laboratorios Ranbaxy, S.L. Spain 100.00
ZAQ Ranbaxy Russia 100.00
Ranbaxy Australia Pty. Ltd. Austratia 100.00
Ranbaxy Portugal - Com E Cesenvoly
De Prod Farmaceuticos Unipessoal Lda Portugal 100.00
Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals Canadi Inc. Canada 100.00
Unichem Distribuicrs Ltd.** Thailand 99.94
Ranbaxy Italia S.p.A Italy 100.00
Ranbaxy Hungary Kt Hungary 100.00
Ranbaxy Mexico S.A. de C.V. Mexico 100.00
Lapharma GmbH* Germany 100.00
Ranbaxy Belgium NV.* Belgium 100.00
Mundogen Farma 5.A.* Spain 100.00
Ranbaxy Pharma AB* Sweden 100.00
Bounty Holdings Co, Ltd.** Thailand 9%.30
Unichem Pharmaceuticals Ltd.** Thailand 98.50
Gufic Pharma Limited India 98.00
Terapia S.A* Romnania 96.70
Ranbaxy Unichem Company Ltd. Thailand 88.56
Ranbaxy Nigeria Ltd. Nigeria B4.89
Ranbaxy [Guangzhou China) Limited Republic of China 83.00
Ranbaxy Farmaceutica L.tda, Brazil 93.67
Ranbaxy Signature LL.C United States of America §7.50
Ranbaxy Malaysia 5dn. Bhd. Malaysia 68.05
Joint Venture
Nihon Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd Japan 50.00

*new entities in 2006
**under liquidation during the ye:r
***reased to be subsidiary during the year
21.  Previous year figures
Previous year figures have been regrouped / recasted wherever considered necessary to make these comparable with those of
the current year.

Signatories to schedules 1to 26

On behalf of the Board of Directors

For WALKER, CHANDIOK & CO TEJENDRA KHANNA DR. BRIAN W, TEMPEST MALVINDER MOHAN SINGH

Chartered Accountants Ctairman Chief Mentor & CEQ & Managing Director
Executive Vice Chairman
VINOD CHANCHOK ATUL 50BTI RAM 5. RAMASUNDAR SUSHIL K. PATAWARI

Pariner Ctief Operating Officer & Fresident & CFO

Membership No. 10093 Whole-time Director

Secretary

Place : Gurgaon
Dated : March 29, 2007




FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Rs. in Miltion

Name of the Closing Capital Reserves Total Total Investments Turnever Proit Prowsion Profit Proposed
Subsidiary exchange rate assels  habilities [except in before for after dividend
against Indian case of tax tax fax
Rupee as on investment In
December . subsdiaries)”
31, 2006
Sotus Pharmaceuticals Lid. - 30.0% [6.97] 2335 0.3 - 16.95 (199 140 [3.39 -
Rexcel Pharmaceuticals Ltd. - 1000  32.02 67.20 25.18 - 63.20 17.64] 1.22 8 871 -
Vidyut Investments Ltd. - 25008 9435 702.24 357.81 - 36.23 20.80 .92 18.88 -
Ranbaxy Drugs and
Chemicals Company
[A public company with
unlirmited babity] - 42.00 3.54 66.72 118 34.30 - 2.9 0.72 224 -
Ranbaxy Orugs Ltd. - 31.00  (0.39) 3372 in 31.00 - (001 - [0.01) -
Gufic Pharma Ltd. - 0.59 1.53 290 087 - 0.24 1.00 0.2 0.88 -
Ranbaxy
{Guangzhou Chinal Lid..
China 5.6694  369.94 (282.48) 400.78 31332 - 50368  {31.67) - {3187 -
Ranbaxy [Neherlands| BV,
[Consabidated],
The Netherlands 44.2600 2233013 266032 43.546.65 "3.756.2) 42644 3181896 169594 72420 B2BAT # -
Ranbaxy Nigeria Ltd.,
Nigena 0.3449 1380 173.65 712.94 525.51 - 103151 98.05 2661 b1.64 4.90
Ranbaxy {Hong Kongl Ltd.,
[Consolidated}
Hongkong 44,2600 13.76  147.80] 18.31 52335 - 21.18 10.24) - {024} -
Baunty Haoldings
Company Ltd.,
Thailand 1.2492 687  6.85) 002 - - - (0.04} - 10.043 -
Ranbaxy Unichem
Comgany Ltd.,
Thailand 1.2492 124,92 77.36 254.92 52.64 0.38 436.04 59.°0 17.14 41.96 -
Unichemn
Pharmaceuticals Ltd.,
Thailand 1.2492 500 [4.93) 0.07 - - - 0.22 0.02 0.20 -
Ranbaxy Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd.,
Malaysia 12.5486 100.3%  353.49 825.18 371.13 - 983.08 141.74 2499 116.75 -
Ranbaxy Pharmacie
Generiques SAS,
{Consolidated,
France 58.4099 43506  20.62 1.875.09 1.419.41 - 320136 {79.73) (1391 (78.3% -
# After adjustment of Rs, 143.27 million towards Minority interest.
*Detail of Investments
Name of the subsidiary Particulars Nature of Face value Numbers Amount
investments {Rs. in Miltion}

Ranbaxy Drugs and Sidmak Laborateries Equity shares Rs. 100 16,733 34.30
Chemicals Company [Indial Limited
Ranbaxy Drugs Ltd. Ranbaxy Drugs and Cherrucals Cornpany Equity shares Rs. 10 3,100,0G0 31.60

[A public company wity unlimited biabiity)
Ranbaxy {Nethertands) B.V. Nihen Pharmaceticals Equity shares Yen 500 160,000 299.50
[Consolidated], The Netherlands Industry Ca. Ltd.. Japan

Ranbaxy {Guangzhou Chinat Limitad, China  Caprtal contributten 16.97

Ranbaxy Pharmacie (iener.ques, SAS, France Equity shares €9 827,600 109.97
Ranbaxy Unichem Company Limited, Bounty Holding Co., Limited, Tha:iand Ordinary shares 0.0%
Thailand Unichem Distnbutors Limited Capital contribution 0.37

Partnership, Thailang

Note:

In terms of approval granted by the Central Government under Section 12(8] of the Companies Act, 1956, a copy of the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss
Account, Report of the Board of Directors and the Report of the Auditors of * 12 substdiary companies have not been attached with Annuat Report of the
Company. The Company wall make available these document and the relate 4 detaiis upon reguest by any investor of the Company and of its subsidiary.
These documents wilt also be avaitable for inspection by any investor at the Head Office of the Company at 12th Flocr, Devika Tower, 6, Nehru Place,
New Delhi-110019, and that of the substdiary companies conc erned.




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2006 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, consolidated stockholders’
equity and comprehensive income and consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Campany’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
apinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of Terapia
S.A., awholly owned Subsidiary of the Company, statements of which reflect total assets, revenues and net income
of 7.23 percent, 4.46 percent and 11.82 percent respectively, of the related consolidated totals. These statements
were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our oginion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for, is based salely upon the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
as established by the Auditing Standards Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal controt over financial
reporting as a basis for designir g audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinior on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statement, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by managemen, as well as evaluating the overall financial statzment presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonzble basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audi: and the report of other auditors, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairty, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited
and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results of their operations, consolidated
siockholders' equity and comprehensive income and consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America.

As discussed in Note P to the f nancial statements, in 2006, the Company has adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 123(R), Share-Based Payments. The Company has also adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, "Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post-
retirement Plans” in 2006 issuec by FASB.

GRANT THORNTON

New Delhi, India
April 12, 2007



RANBAXY LABORATORIES LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{Al amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)/

As at December 3%,

2004 2005
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,762.81 2,286.33
Restricted cash 108.18 64.79
Accountis receivable, net of allowances 15,599.43 11,237.96
Inveniories 15,992.42 13.539.97
Deferred income taxes 1,091.14 1,804.51
{ncome taxes recoverable 1,757.31 1,608.02
Other current assets, net of allowances 3,619.99 3.416.30
Total current assets 40,931.28 33,959.88
Property, plant and equipment, net 19,698.91 17,325.1t
Deferred income taxes 1,792.04 1.753.44
Investment securities 600.24 4232
Goadwill, net 10,262.79 4,379.95
Intangibie assets, net 7,852.11 1,334.19
Other assets 1,042.63 670.94
Total assets 8§2,180.00 59.846.74
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Borrowings from banks and financiat institutions . 13,600.74 13.748.02
Current pertion of long term debt 3,490 3,142.86
Trade accounts payable 7,889.38 7.357.27
Income taxes payable B830.5% 765.14
Accrued expenses 2,159.1¢ 2.085.45
Other current Liabilities 1,285.30 1,346.42
Total current liabilities 2%9,255.31 2844536
Long-term debt, excluding current porticn 22,432.9% 318,74
Deferred income taxes 1,697.08 1,600.33
Deferred revenue 159.48 138.96
Other liabilities 1,848.35 958.71
Total liabilities 55,393.18 34,250.30
Minority interest 334.28 164.72
Comnrnitrnents and contingencies [See Note K, LS and V)
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, Rs. 5,00 par value,
598,000,000 equity shares authorized,
372,686,964 and 372,442,190 equity shares
issued and outstanding at Decernber 31, 2006 anc 2005 respectively 1,863.43 1.862.21
Additional paid in capital 6,735.13 4,388.2%9
Deferred stock-based compensation - {73.93|
Retained earnings 17,486.04 17,034.85
Accumulated other comprehensive lloss) / income 367.94 208.50
Total stockholders’ equity 256,452.54 2342192
Totat liabilities and stockholders’ equity 82,180.00 99.844.74

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these ¢onsolidated financial statements.
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RANBAXY LABORATORIES LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOQOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
[All amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)/

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005
Revenues
Product sales 60,275.M 50,468.67
Service income £06.47 27375
Other operating revenue 738.11 856.11
61,420.29 51,598.53
Cest of sales [excluding depreciation ard amortization) 29,465.74 27.143.85
Gross profit 31,954.55 24,654 .68
Operating expenses
Selling. generat and administrative expenses 19.651.83 17.274.06
Research and development expenzes 3,982.42 5,055.33
Depraciation and amaoriization 2,894.3 1,718.00
Foreign exchange lgain) / loss (682.06) 978.98
Total cperating expenses 25,846.50 25,026.37
Operating income / [loss) 6,108.05 [571.69]
Equity in gain of affiliate 50.30 47
Interest expense (1,78%.20) [669.60)
Interest income 207.05 173.99
Other income 431.28 300.49
Income / [loss) from continuing operations before income taxes,
discontinved operations and minority interest 5,007.48 [762.10]
Income tax expense / [benefit] on continuing operations B889.58 {1,020.91)
Income from continuing operations hefore discentinued operation
and minority interest 4,117.%0 258.81
Minority interest (57.31} [26.38)
Income from continuing operations 4,060.59 232.43
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax - 161.88
income from discontinued operations, net of tax - 384.72
Net income 4,060.59 77%.03
Earnings per equity share
Basic
Continuing operations Rs. 10.90 Rs. 0.62
Discontinued operations - Rs. 1.47
Net income Rs. 10.90 Rs. 2.09
Diluted '
Continuing operations Rs. 10.88 Rs. 0.62
Discontinued operations - Rs. 1.47
Netincome Rs. 10.88 Rs. 2.09
Weighted average number of equity shares used in ,
computing earnings per equity share
Basic 372,595,730 372,216,805
Effect of diluiive securities-employee stock option 746,412 1,089,479
Diluted 373,342,142 373,306,284

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of these consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED FI ANd;:IAL STATEMENTS -

RANBAXY LABORATORIES LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHCLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{All amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

Common stack

No. of Amcunt Additional  Deferred Retained Compre- Accu- Total
shares paid in stock- earnings hensive mulated stock-
capital based incorne other hotders’
compen- compre equity

sation hensive

income [/

llass]

Balance as at January 1, 2005 INI8484 1,853 6,2714.22 {124.78) 19,8469.63 190.33 28,068.31
Receipt on exercrse of stock options 560,706 3.30 1324 135.54
Receipt of share application money

pending allotment -
Deferred stock-based compensation I"E 17, 1817 -
Amortzation of deferred stock-
based compensation 32.68 32.68
Cash démdend paid {3.611.81} [3,611.81]
Comprehensive income
Net income 779.03 779.03 779.03
Unrealized hetding gain on '
marketable equity securities 16.99 16.99 16.99
Deferred tax on unreabzed
holding gain on marketable
equity securities 2.82 {z.82t (2.82}
Transiation adjustment 4.00 4.00 4.00
Total comprehensive inceme 797.20
Balance as at December 31, 2005 372,442,190 188221 6,388.29 {73.93) 17,034.85 208.50 25,421.92
Receipt on exercise of stock options 244,774 122 3608 57.30
Receipt of share application money
pending aliotrment &N 6.01
Amortization of deferred stock-
based compensation 552.48 358.48
Reclassification from deferred stock-
based compensation to additionat
paid 1n capital (7353 73.93 -
Cash dividend paid [3,611.40] [3.611.40
Comprehensive income
Net income 4,060.59 4,060.59 4,060.59
Unrealized holding gan on
marketable equity securities {55 05] [55.05] {55.05]
Deferred tax on unrealized holding
gain on marketable equity secunties 19.32 19.32 19.32
Translation adjustrrent 193.17 195.17 195.17
Total comprehensive income 4,220.03 ’
Balance as at December 31, 2006 372,686,964  1,862.43 6,735.13 - 17,486.04 367.94 26,452.54

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these consolidsted financral slaternents.
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RANBAXY LABORATORIES LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(il amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated/
Year ended December 31,
2006 200%
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income 4,060.59 779.03
Adjustments to reconcile net income t3 net cash and cash
equivalents provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 2,894.31 1,718.00
Deferred income tax expense / (benefit} 764,42 [1,288.12)
Allowance for doubtful assets 192.07 153.35
[Gainlfloss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (100.53) 30.06
Loss on disposal of investments 5.57 -
Income from discontinued operations - {546.60)
Equity in gain of affiliate {50.30) {4.71)
Amortization of deferred stock based compensation 358.68 32.68
Minority interest 57.31 26.38
Unrealised [gain] / loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 1,092.42) 1,497.89
Reversal for giminution in value of investments - 11.07}
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable [2,623.75] [616.84)
Inventories {1,750.46} 553.84
Other current assats [485.87] 304446
Other non-current assels (376.93) (226.94)
Accounts payable 1,160.95 835.49
Accrued expenses and other current ligbilities (702.06) (5,062.17)
Other non-current liabiiities 989.14 344.67
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,300.72 1,360.40
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equisment [2,778.24) (7.858.29)
Cash paid for acquisition of minerity nterest in subsidiary (181.23) [99.90)
Acquisition of additional stake in equ ty affiliate - [673.92}
Proceeds from sale of groperty, plan. and equipment 119.65 110.74
Acquisition of subsidiaries® [14,438.73} -
Purchase of intangible assets (690.756] (192.44)
Purchase of investment securities (202.00) -
Proceed from sale of investments 33.30 -
Proceed from sale of discontinued operaticns - 1,266.10
Amount invested in restricted cash balances (17.25) -
Maturity of restricted cash balances - 14.95
Net cash used in investing activities (18,155.25) {7,438.73)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings from banlis and financial instituticns, net " 856.26 10.282.12
Proceeds from issue of fereign currency convertible bonds 19,553.40 -
Principat payments on long term debt (1,396.51] 1.471.09}
Principal payments on capital tease cbligations {165.63] (0.60]
Proceeds from issuance of term loans - 1,782.95
Payment of dividend, including tax on dividend of
Rs 444.14 miltion and Rs 447.55 million, respectively {3,611.40) [3,611.81)
Receipt from employees on exercise of stock options 63.31 135.54
Payment of dividend to mincrity stock holders in subsidiaries (7.621 16.66}
Net cash provided by financing activities 15,291.91 71045
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year 437.37 1.032.14
Elfect of exchange rale changes on cash and cash eguivatents 3.M 815
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,286.33 1,246 05
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,7562.81 2,286.33
Supptemental disclosures
Cash paid during the year for interest 1,008.91 578.43
Cash paid during the year for income taxes 845.82 841.09
Assets under capital leases capitalized during the year 86.26 454.27
*Acquisition of subsidiaries
Assets and liabilities of the subsidiarizs upen acquisition
Working capital 893.09 -
Long-lived assets other than goodwill 7.893.97 -
Goodwill ansing on acquisition 5,651.67 -
Cost of investment in shares 14,311.42 -
Direct cost 127.31 -
Cash paid 14,438.73 -
The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial siatements.




CONSOLIDATED FI AN&ICIAL STATEMENTS -

RANBAXY LABORATORIES LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006 and 2005
{4l amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise s'ated/

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCIOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting pelicies appl ed in the preparation of the accompanying consaolidated financial statements
follows :

1. Organization and Nature of operations
Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited ["RLL™ or the “Company”). a public tmited company, was incorporated in India on June 16, 1961
and with its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group™) operates as an integrated international pharmaceuticat
organization with businesses encompassing the entire value chainin the marketing, production ana distribution of dosage forms
and active pharmaceutical ingredients.
The Group presently has manufacturing facitities. in eight countries, namely India, the United States of America, Ireland, China,
Malaysia, Nigeria, Romania and Vietnam. The Gro p’s major ma-kets include the United States of America, India, Europe, Russia /
1S, and South Alrica. The United States of Amzrica is the la~gest market and major products are Simwvastatin, Amoxycillin,
Ciproftoxacin, Isotretinon, Cephatexin and CoAr oxyclav. The research and development activities of the Group are principally
carned out at its facilities in Gurgaon, near New Delhi, India.
The Company's shares are listed for trading on the Mumbai and Mational Stock Exchanges in India, its Global Depository Receipts
{covering equity shares of RLL} are listed on th2 Luxemboury Stock Exchange and Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds are
listed on Singapore Stock Exchange.

2. Principtes of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tf e financial statements of RLL and atl its subsidiaries, which are more than 50
percent owned and controtled.

The Group accounts for investments by the equitt method of ccounting where it is able to exercise significant influence over the
operating and financing pelicies of the investee. The Group's equity in the income or loss of equity method affiliates is included
in the consolidated statements of income.

Al inter-company transactions and balances, between the entities included in the consolidated financial statements, have been
eliminated.

Details of the entities, which presently form pari of the Group and are consolidated under RLL, are as follows :

Name of entity Country of Shareholding
incorporation

Ranbaxy Drugs and Chernicals Company India 100.00%
Ranbaxy Brugs Limited india 100.00%
Rexcet Pharmaceuticals Limited India : 100.00%
Solus Pharmaceuticals Limited India 100.00%
Vidyut investments Limited India 100.00%
Ran Air Services Limited** [see note W/ India 100.00%
Ranbaxy [Netherlands] B.Y. ("RNBV"] The Netherlands 100.00%
Ranbaxy N.ANV. Antilies, Netheriands 100.00%
Ranbaxy [S.A) {Proprietary) Ltd. South Africa 100.00%
Sonke Pharmaceuticals (Proprietary] Ltd. South Africa 68.40%
Ranbaxy, Inc. United States of America 100.00%
Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals, [nc. United States of America 100.00%
Ranbaxy USA, Inc. United States of America 100.00%
Ohm Laberatories, Inc. United States of Ameriza 100.00%
Ranbaxy Laboratories, Inc. United States of Ameriza 100.00%
Ranbaxy Holdings [U.K] Ltd. United Kingdom 100.00%
Ranbaxy (U.K] Ltd. United Kingdom 100.00%
Ranbaxy Pharmacie Generiques SAS France 100.00%
Otfice Pharmaceutique Industriel Et

Hospitatier SARL ["OPIH SARL") France 100.00%
Ranbaxy Ireland Ltd. Ireland 100.00%
Ranbaxy [Hong Kong) Limited Hong Keng 100.00%
Ranbaxy Egypt {L.L.C] Egypt 100.00%
Rexcel Egypt IL.L.C] Egypt 100.00%
Ranbaxy Poland S.P. Z.o.0. Poland 100.00%
Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals BV* The Netherlands 100.00%
Ranbaxy Europe Ltd. United Kingdom 160.00%
Basics GmbH Germany 100.00%
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RANBAXY LABORATORIES LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006 and 2005
{All amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE A [fecontinued!

Name of entity Country of Shareholding
incorparation

Ranbaxy Do Brazil Lida Brazil 100.00%
Ranbaxy Panama, S.A, Panama 100.00%
Ranbaxy Vietnam Company Ltd. Vietnam 100.00%
Ranbaxy-PRP [Peru] S.AC. Peru 100.060%
Laboratorios Ranbaxy, 5.1.. Spain 100.00%
ZAO Ranbaxy Russia 100.00%
Ranhaxy Australia Pty. Ltd. Australia 100.00%
Ranbaxy Poriugal - Com E Desenvoly

De Prod Farmaceutices Unioessoal Lda ! Portugal 100.00%
Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals Canada Inc. Canada 1G0.00%
Unichem Distributors Ltd.* Thailand 99.96%
Ranbaxy Italia S.p.A taly 100.00%
Ranbaxy Hungary (L.L.C)) Hungary 100.00%
Ranbaxy Mexico S.A. de C.V. Mexico 100.0G%
Lapharma GmbH # Germany 100.00%
Ranbaxy Belgium N.V, # Belgium 100.00%
Mundogen Farma S.A. # Spain 100.00%
Ranbaxy Pharma AB # Sweden 100.00%
Bounty Holdings Co. £td.* Thaitand 99.30%
Unichem Pharmaceuticals Ltd.* Thailand 98.50%
Gufic Pharma Limited India 98.00%
Terapia S.A # Romania 26.70%
Ranbaxy Unichem Company Ltd. Thailand 88.56%
Ranbaxy Nigeria Ltd. Nigeria 84.89%
Ranbaxy {Guangzhou China] Limiled Republic of China 83.00%
Ranbaxy Farmaceutica Ltda. Brazil 93.67%
Ranbaxy Signature L.L.C. United States of America 67.30%
Ranbaxy Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 68.05%

#new entities in 2006
*under tiquidation during the year
**ceased to be subsidiary during the year

in addition to above, the Group holids 5% equity stake in Nilon Pharmaceutical Industry Co. Ltd., Japan. The Group accounts for
such investment by equity method of accounting.

During 2096, the Group established two new subsidiaries, Lapharma GmbH, incorporated in Germany and Ranbaxy Pharma AB,
incorporated in Sweden,

The net assets of the above mentioned-entities under liguidation are Rs. 12.51 million, as at Decemnber 31, 2004. The Group does
not consider liquidation of these entities to have a material impact on the financial statements.

3. Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in canformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ["US GAAP"), to reflect the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows of the Group.

4. Use of estimates

In preparing the Group's financial staterments in conformity with accounting principles gereratly accepted in the United States of
America, the Group's management is required to make estimates and assumptions that a“ect the reported amounts of assets
and liabslities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabitities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periads; actual results coutd differ from those estimates. Management's
estimates for charge-backs, rebates, discounts and returns, future obligations under employee benefit plans, inventory reserve,
the useful life of tangible and intangible assets and the reatization of deferred tax assets represent particularly sensitive estimates.

5. Exchange rate translation

The functional currency of the Company, including its consolidated domestic and foreign subsidiaries, has been determined in
accordance with the primary econoemic environment inwhich the respective entities operate The functional currency for Ranbaxy
(Netherlands) B.v. [RNBV), Ranbaxy Hongkong Ltd. and Ranbaxy Holding (U.K.} Ltd. is the US Dollar.




RANBAXY LABORATORIES LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006 and 2005
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10.

In respect of entities for which the functional currency is other than the Indian Rupee, the reporting currency of RLL, the asseis
and lLiabilities are transtated into Indian Rupees at the appropricie year-end exchange rates. Income and expenses are translated
using the monthly average exchange rates in effect during the year being reported. The resulting wranslation adjustments are
reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensiz€ income.

Transactions in foreign currency are translated nio the functional currency of the respective Group Company at the average
rates of exchange prevailing in the month of the ransaction, Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated
into the functional currency of the respective Brcup Company at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. All
foreign exchange gains and losses are recorded under "Foreign exchange [gain) / loss™ in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. The foreign currency exchinge lgain] / loss included in the consolidated statements of income for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, is Rs [682.06] mi..ion and Rs. 978.98 million, respactively.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include alt highly liqu d investmer:s with an originat maturity of three months or less.

Restricted Cash
Restricted casn represents deposits that have been pledgied with banks and will mature within one year.

Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials, work-in-pr¢ cess, finished goods, and packaging materials, and are stated at the lower of
cost or market value, Cost is determined using thi weighted avarage and first-in-first-out methods lor raw materials, packaging
materials and stores and spares and includes the purchas? pr.ce and attributable direci costs, less trade discounts. The cost of
work-in-praocess and finished goods comprises ¢ f direct labour, material costs and production overheads.

Aliowance for potentially obsolete or slow moviny inventory is made on the basis of management’s analysis of inventory levels,
expiration dates and prevailing market condition:s as p4rt of cost of sales.

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment, including assets acquired under capital lease agreements, are stated at historical cost less
accurnulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculited on the siraight-line method over the estimated usefut life of the respective
assets. Assets under capital leases and leasehold improvements are amartized over the lower of their estimated useful lives or
the term of the lease.

Advances paid for the acquisition of property, plant and equ prment outstanding at the balance sheet date and the cest of property,
plant and equipment not put to use before such cate are d sclosed as 'Capital work-in-progress.’ The interest cost incurred for
funding an asset during its censtruction period is capitalized based on the actualinvestment in the asset and the average cost of
funds; and was immaterial during the years ended Decemer 31, 2006 and 2005. The capitalized interest is included in the cost
of the relevant asset and is depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset.

The Group has determined the estimated useful lives of assets for depreciation purpeses as follows :

Leasehold land Over the term not exceeding 99 years
Buildings 30-50 years
Plant and machinery 5-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Office equipment 3-10 years
Vehicles 5 years

Expenditure for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred and amounted to Rs. 443.82 million and Rs. 374,29 million
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed off, the cost of
the asset and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated {rom the financial recards. Any gain or loss on dispasal is credited
or ¢charged to mncome,

Goodwill [see Note C)

Goadwill reflects the excess of the purchase price aver the fa r value of net assets acquired 1n a business acquisition. Pursuant
to Staternent of Financial Accounting Standards No 142 "Gocdwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Group does noi amortize
goodwill, and instead goodwill is tested for impair ment at leas* annually. The Company reviews goodwill for impairment annuatly
or more frequently if impairment indicators arise.

Intangible assets {see Note D]

Intangible assets consist primarily of acquired lice nse agreements, brands, purchased trademarks, technical know-how, product
dossiers and other intangibles identified on acquisition and a~e amortized aver the expected benefit period or the legal life,
whichever 15 {lower,
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12,

i3.

Revenue Recognition

Product sales

Revenue from sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients and fermulation products is recognized when titte and risk of toss of
products are transferred to the customer, on shipment of products for Free-on-Board {"FOB"} shipping point sales and upan
delivery to the customers for FOB destination point sales, and when previsions for estimatgs, including discounts, relative price
adjustments, refunds, chargebacles and other promotional programs are reascnably determinable, and when the foltowing
criteria are met :

*  Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

*  The price to the buyer is fixed and determinable; and

*  Collectibdity of the sales price is reasonably assured.

Provisions for sales discounts, medicaid and other rebates, damaged product returns and exchanges for expired products are
established as a reduction of sales revenues. These revenue reductions are established based on best estimates at the time of
sale based on histarical experienca, adjusted to reflect known changes in the factors that irnpact such reserves. These revenue
reductions are reflected either as a direct reduction to accounts receivable or through an allowance.

In the United States, some of the large customers are major wholesalers who resell the products to third party customers like
managed care organizatiens, drug store chains and pharmacies. A significant part of gross revenues from such wholesaters are
subject to various forms of rebates and allowances tknown ag "Chargebacks’], which are recorded as reductions {rom gross
revenues. The computation of the estimate for expected chargebacks is complex and involves significant judgment based on
historical experience and estimated wholesaler inventory levels, as well as expected sell-through tevels by the wholesalers to
indirect customers. The primary fzctors considered in developing and evatuating provision lor chargeback includes the average
historicat chargeback credits and & n estimate of the inventory held by the wholesalers, based on internal analysis of whalesaler's
historical purchases and contract sales.

Actual experience associated witt any of these items may be different from the Group’s estimates and the Group regutarly
reviews the factors that influence its estimates and, if necessary, makes adjustments wnen it believes that actual product
returns, credit, rebates, chargeback and other allowances may differ from established provisions.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Group had reserves for chargebacks, returns and rebates of Rs. 2.910.39 million and
Rs. 2,633.65 millicn, respectively.

Service income
License fees

The Group receives payments under various development, manufacturing, supply and distribution agreements. Under the terms
of these agreements, certain amounis may be received by the Group prior ta the commerciat taunch of a product and fulfillment
of the Group's ebligations under such agreements. These amounts are recorded as deferred revenue and are amortized to
revenue from the date of commercial launch through the term oi the retated agreement. The licenses are generally for a period
of 3 to 5 years.

Non-refundabie upiront payments received are deferred and recognized in the censolidated statements of income on a straight-
line basis over the estimated development period. Other inilestone payments received are recagnized in accordance with the
terms prescribed in the license agreement and where the Group has na future obligations or continuing involvemnent pursuant
to such milestone payment.

Royalty

Royalty income is based on sales rnade by third parties and is recognized an an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms of
the respective agreements.

Other revenues

Other revenues include claim settl zments and export incentives. Revenues under claim set-.ement agreements are recognized
in accordance with the terms of the respective settlement agreements in the period in which the claim is received. Export
incentives are recognized an an azcrual basis when the right to receive the incentives is esiablished in accordance with the
applicable laws.

Investment securities

Investment securities consist of available-for-sale equity securities and non-marketable equity securities.

Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices with unrealized gains and losses, net of
income taxes, are reported as acc smulated other comprehensive income or separate component of stockholders’ equity until
realized. Decline in the fair value of any available-for-sale security below cost that 1s determined to be other than temporary1s
charged to the statements of income. Realized gains and losses from the sale of available-fer-sale securities are determined on
the average cost method and are in-luded in earnings.

Non-marketakble equity securities are accounted for by the cost methed and are stated at cost, less provision for any decline
other than temporary decline invalue.

Interest and dividend income is recognized when earned.



RANBAXY LABORATORIES LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2006 and 2005
{4l amounts in Rupees Million, unless otherwise stated)/

NOTE A fcontinued)
14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

22.

Shipping and handling costs

Shipping and handling expenses of Rs. 1,519.96 million and Rs. 1,191.57 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively, incurred to transport products to customers, have been classified under selling, general and administrative
expenses.

Advertising costs

Costs associated with advertising are expensed 3s incurred; ard amounted to Rs. 2,426.81 million and Rs. 1,633.54 million for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Income taxes

The provision for current income tax expense is est mated by the respective entities in accordance with the relevant domestic
tax laws. The Group accounts for deferred income taxes under the liability method, in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 10% "Accounting for Ircome Taxes”. Deferred income tax asseis and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differen:es between zarrying amounts of existing assets and tiadilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax basis. Defer-ed income tax assets and babilities are measured using enacled tax rates for
the respective tax jurisdictions as on the date of e financial s*atements. The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in the slateinent af income in the period of change. Based on management’s judgment, the
measurement of deferred income tax assets is n:duced, if necessary, by a valuation atlowance for any tax benefits for which itis
more likely than not that seme portion or all of uch benehts vall not be realized.

Research and development costs

Research and development cosis are expensed as incurred, znd amounted to Rs. 3,982.42 million and Rs. 5,055.33 mitlion for
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, r¢ spectively. Casts incurred for equipment and facilities acquired or constructed
for research and development activities and having alternat ve fulure uses, are capitalized as property, plant and equipment
when acquired or constructed.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Group follows the guidance of Statement o” Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, "Accounting for the impairment or
Disposal of Long-lived Assets”. The Group corr panies review long-lived assets and certain idertifiable intangibles held and
used for possible impairment whenever events ¢r changes in circurnstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. Under FAS 144, and impairment loss (s recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected
to result from the use of the assets and its event Jal disposition are less than the carrying value. Impairment, if any, is assessed
using discounted cash flows. The Company had no such losses in-2006 or 2005,

Leases
Operating leases - lessee accounting {see Note VI

Lease rental expenses on operating leases are charged to eéxpense over the lease term as they becorne payabte. Certain aperating
lease agreements provide for scheduled rent increases over the lease term. Rental expense for these leases is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the tease term,

Capital lease

Assets acquired under a lease that transfers suostantiatly ail the nsks and rewards of ownership to the Group are capitalized
and are classified as finance leases. An asset acyuired by inance lease is stated at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value
or the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation. Finance charges
on finance leases are expensed over the term of the lease lo give a constant periodic rate of interest charge in proportion to the
capital balances outstanding. The rental obligat ons, net of interest charges, are reflected in borrawings.

Other comprehensive income

Staternent of Financial Accounting Standards N, 130, "R2perting Comprehensive Incomne,” establishes rules for the reporting
of comprehensive income and its components. Comprehensive income 15 defined as all changes in equity from non-owner
sources. For the Group, comprehensive income consists of net earnings, changes in the cumulative foreign currency translation
adjustments and unrealized holding gains and .osses or avallable-for-sale securities, The Comaany reports comprehensive
income in the consolidated statements of stockholders’ aquity.

Earnings per share [see note O}

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Stanca~ds No. 128, “Earnings per share.” basic earnings per share are
computed using the weighted average number of comimoen shares cutstanding during the perioc. Diluted earnings per share
are computed using the weighted average number of comman and dilutive common equivatent shares outstanding during the
period.

Stock-based compensation

In Decermber 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 12 3 [revised 20 4], "Share-Based Payment™ ["SFAS 123(R]"). SFAS 123(R] replaces
SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation™ ["SFAS 1237], and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for
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Stock Issued to Employees.” The new standard requires companies to recognize cost relating to share-based payment transactions
in their financial statements. That cost is to be measured based on the fair vatue of the zquity or liability instruments issued.
SFAS 123[R) alsc inctudes some changes regarding the timing of expense recognition, the treatment of forfeitures and the re-
measurement of liability classifizd awards at their current fair vaiue. SFAS 123(R} indicates that it is effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2005.

Accordingly, the Group adopted SFAS 123(R)] effective January 1, 2006. For transition purgoses, the Group elected the modified
prospective application method. Linder this transitian method, compersation cost recegnized in 2006 includes: [2) compensation
costs for all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value
g¢stimated in accordance with tha original provisiong of SFAS 123, and {b) compensation cost for all share-based payments
granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
123(R).

Results for prior perieds have no been restated.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company entersinto {forward oreign exchange contracts where the counterparty is generally a bank. The Company purchases
forward foreign exchange contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates on accounts receivable and loans
payable. These contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting under Staternent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” {"SFAS No. 1337, as amended. Any derivative that is either not
designated as a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per SFAS No. 133, is marked to markel and recagnized in income
immediately.

At December 31, 2008, the Comgany recognized a mark-te-market gain under “foreign exchange [gain} / loss” in the income
staternent on nor designated hedges of Rs. 1,092.42 million and recorded an asset of Fs. 214.50 mitlion, included in "other
current assets” on the balance sheet. At December 31, 2005, the Company recognized a mark-lto-market loss under “foreign
exchange [gain] / loss” in the inccme statement on non designated hedges of Rs. 1,497.89 mitlion and recorded a liability of Rs.
84454 million, included in "other current liabilities” on the balance sheet.

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds {FCCB)

Quring the year, the Company issued at par 5-year Zere coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds [FCCB) aggregating to
US $ 440 million [Rs. 19,553.60 rillion as on the date of the tssue] for financing international acquisition, capital expenditure
and others. The Bond holders have the option to corvert these into Commeon Shares or Glabal Depository Shares, at a price of
Rs. 716.32 per share [subject to adjustment, if any] with a fixed exchange rate of Rs, 44.15 per US $ 1, at any time on or after
April 27, 2006 and but before Match 9, 2011.

The Bonds may be redeemed, in whole, at the option of the Cormnpany at any time on or after March 18, 2009, but before
February 6, 2011, subject to satis'action of certain conditions. The Bonds are redeemable on March 18, 2011, at a premium of
26.763 percent of their principat ¢ mount unless previously converted, redeemed or purchased and cancelled.

The FCCB issue expenses totaling to Rs. 34,10 million, being the pro-rata charge for the year, has been adjusted in net incorne
and the interest accrued as at Decernber 31, 2006, on foreign currency convertible bonds is Rs. 751.20 million being the pro-rata
charge for the year, has been adjusted in net income, basis effective interest attribution rrethod.

Dividend
Dividends paid on commen stock is recorded as a reduction of equity when approved by the stockhotders.

Reclassification
Certain prior period amounts hav2 been reclassified to cenform to the current peried presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

[n September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ["FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
["SFAS"] No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements™. This Staternent defines fair value, establishes & framework for measuring fair
value in Generally Accepted Accaunting Principles [GAAP), and expands disclosures about fair value measurements, This
Statement applies to other accoun:ing pronouncements that require or parmit fair value mezsurements. In particular, disclosures
are required to provide information on the extent to which fair value is used to measure assets and liabilities; the inputs used to
develop measurements; and the effect of certain of the measurements on earnings or changes in net assets. This new standard
is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those
fiscal years, The impact of adopticn of this Statement will net have a material impact on our financial statements,

In July 2006, the Financial Accouning Standards Board ["FASB"} issued FASB interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes™ ["FIN 48°). This Interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an
enterprise’s financial statements i1 accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, "Accounting for income Taxes”. This Interpretation
prescribas a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This Interpretation also provides guidance on de-recognition,
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classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim pertads, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 also requires that the tax
effects of a pos tion be recognized orty if it is mon: likely than 10t to be sustained on audit, based on the technical merts of the
position, This Interpretation :s effective for f.scal vears beginnurg after December 15, 2006, The provisions of FIN 48 are 1o be
applied to all tax positions upon initiat adoption, with the cumulative effect adjustment reported as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings. The Group is currentty evaluating the potential impact, if any. that the adoption of FIN 48 will have
on our consolidated financial statements.

InSepternber 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158 “Employers Accountng for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans” {"SFAS *58%] which requires an employer ta recagnize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit plan as
an asset or liability in 1ts consolidated balance sneet. Under $FAS 158, actuarial gains and losses and prior service costs or
credits that have not yet been recognized through rarnings as r2t periodic benefit cost will be recogn zed in other comprehensive
income, net of tax, until they are amortized as a cc mponent cf net periodic benefit cost. SFAS 158 is effective as of the end of the
fiscal year ending after December 15, 2004, and shall not be 2pplied retrospectively. The Company adopted the standard on
December 31, 2004, and this did not have a material impact or aur fnancial statements.

NOTE B - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Company accounts for business combination s under the guidelines of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 141,
"Business combinations” ["SFAS No. 141"), which requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business
combinations consummated after June 30, 2001 SFAS Na. 14” also specifies the criteria that intangible assets acquired in a
purchase method business combination must meet to be recognized and reported apart from goodwitl.

Acquisition of Terapia 5.A.

On June 7, 2006, the Company acquired a 36.7% stake in Teradia S.A. {Terapia), a Romanian pharmaceutical company engaged
in the business of manufacturing generic pharmaceuticats, through Ranbaxy (Netherlands) B.V., for a totat cash consideration
of Rs. 15,019.19 mitlion [US $ 326.71 million), At tre date of the acquisition, the Company recorded the cost of the acquisiticn as
Rs. 15,019.19 mriltion, consisting of cash paid and ' he direct acauisition costs. The acquisition was funded from foreign currency
convertible bonds proceeds issued by the Company during the year.

The Company has accounted for this acquisitior under the purchase method. Accordingly, the financial resuits for the post
acqutsition period have been included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

The purchase cost of Rs. 15,019.19 million has bezn allocated a5 follows :

Intangible assets subject to amortization 4,860.39
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,534.51
Other current assets 2,543.25
Goodwill 5.724.66
Total assets acquired 16,662.81
Less: Provisions 443.04

Other liabilities 1,200.58
Total liabilities assumed 1,643.62
Purchase cost 15,019.19

Acquisition of Ethimed NV (name changed to Ranbaxy Belgium NV

During the year, the Company acquired the entire share capital of Ethimed NV [Ethimed}, a Belgium pharmaceutical company
engaged in the business of manufacturing gen:nc pharmaceuticals, through Ranbaxy (Netherlands] B.V., for a total cash
consideration of Rs. 69.65 millian (US % 1.58 m ltion]. A1 the date of the acquisition, the Company recorded the cost of the
acguisition as Rs. 69.65 million, consisting of cash paid and the direct acquisition costs.

The Company has accounted for this acquisitior under the purchase method. Accordingly, the {nancisl results for the post
acquisition period have been included in the consolidated “inanzial statements of the Company.

The purchase cost of Rs. 69.65 millien has been allocated as foilows :

Current assets 4192
Goodwill 4£2.97
Total assets acquired 84.89
Less: Provisions 1.4

Other .iahitities 1410
Total liabilities assumed 15.24

Purchase cost o 69.45
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Acquisition of Mundogen Farma SA

On July 18, 2C04, the Company at quired the entire share capital of Mundogen Farma SA, generic business of GlaxoSmithKline
[GSKI, in Spain, through its Spamish subsidiary, Laberatorios Ranbaxy S.L., for a total cash consideration of Rs. 266.12 million
(US $5.73 mitlion). At the date of the acquisitian, the Company recorded the cost of the acquisition as Rs. 266.12 million, consisting
of cash paid and the direct acquisition costs. The acquisition was funded from FCCB proceeds issued by the Company during the
year.

The Company has accounted for this acquisition under the purchase method. Accordingly. the financial results for the post
acquisition period have been included in the consolidated financial statements of the Corrpany.

The purchase cost of Rs. 266.12 million has been allocated as {ollows :

Other current assels 81.45
Goodwill 242.67
Total assets acquired 32412
Less: Provisions -

Other liabitities 5800
Total liabilities assumed 58.00
Purchase cost 26612

Acquisition of substantial asse:s of Allen 5.p.A, a division of GlaxoSmithKline, in lialy

During the year 200é. the Company acquired substantial portion of the unbranded generic business of Allen $.p.A, a division of
GlaxoSmithKtne, in ltaly, through its talian subsidiary. Ranbaxy ltalia S.p.A. for total cash consideration of Rs. 428.75 million
[Euro 8.14 million}, At the date of the acquisition, the Company recorded the cost of the acquisition as Rs. £28.75 million, cansisting
of cash paid and the direct acquisition costs. The acquisition was funded from fereiqn carrency convertible bonds proceeds
iasued by the Company during the year.

The Company has accounted for this acquisition under the purchase method. Accerdingly, the financial results for the post
acquisition period have been included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

The purchase cost of Rs. 428.75 r1illien has been allocated as follows :

Intangible asseis subject to amor ization 380.42
Other current assets 48.33
Total assets acquired 428.75

Total liabitities assumed -
Purchase cost 428.75

Acquisition of additional stake in Ranbaxy Farmaceutica Ltda., Brazil

As at December 31, 2005, RNBV held 80 percent of the outstanding equity shares of Rznbaxy Farmaceutica Lida. ["RFL"].
During the year ended December 31, 2006, RNBV acquired an additional 13.67 percent of the equity shares for Rs. 186.25 million,
resulting in a total holding of 93.67 percent. This acquisition was accounted for as a purchaze and additional goodwill amounting
to Rs. 57.61 mullion was recorded as excess of the purchase price over the aggregate of the propertionate fair value of the net
assets acquired.

Other acquisitions

On December 1, 2006, the Company announced the acquisition of Be-Tabs Pharmaceuticals [Pty} Limited ["Be-Tabs"]. in South
Africa, for a total consideration of 1S $ 70 mitlion (500 million ZAR). The transactions, subject to requisite approvals from South
Africa’s Competition Council authority, are expected to be completed in the first quarter of tne year 2007. The acquisttion of Be-
Tabs, would resuit in considerable synergies and would further strengthen Company’s foothald in Sauth Africa. It would reinforce
the Company's position by expanding the portfolio in a key market that is exhibiting strong growth potential.

NOTE C - GOODWILL

The Group accounts for goodwill end other intangible assets under provisions of Statemert of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets™ ("SFAS Np, 14271, Accordingly, the Group does not arnortize goodwill but instead
tests goodwill for impairment at least annually. During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company determined
through its estimates that no material impairment of goodwill exists.
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The following table represents the changes in gooadwill du-ing the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 :

2004 2005
Balance at the beginning of the peried 4,685.42 4,136.84
Translation adjustrent (195.49) {7.60)
Acguired during the period 6,081.85 556.18
10,571.58 4,685.42
Less: Accumulated amortization (308.79) {305.47)
Balance at the end of the year o 10,262.79 4,379.95
NOTE D - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquired and amortized intangible assets comprise :

txpected benefit 2006 2005
period [ in years)

Brands 5-10 1,144.56 1,144,564
Licenses 5-10 2,208.47 964.59
Trade marks 5-10 377.75 33792
Non-compete 10 211.00 210.00
Technical know-how 5 264.00 12694
Customer/ supplier relationships 513 6,036.12 -
10,241.90 2.784.01
Less : Accurnulated amortization (2,389.79) {1.449.82)
7,852.11 1.334.19

The aggregate amortization expanse for the yea ‘s ended Decernber 31, 2006 and 2005 was Rs. 992.20 million and Rs. 268.46
million, respectively. The amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 includes an impairment loss of Rs. 15.24
millian, relating to a license fer development of 3 pharmaceutical product, which was discontinued during 2004, There was no
impairment loss in 2006.

Amortization expense for intangibles over the next five years 1s given below :

Year ending December 31,

2007 1,447.08
2008 1.441.34
2009 1,419.38
2010 1,188.16
2011 1.143.28

NOTE E - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
At Decernber 31, 2004 and 2005, cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following :

20046 2005
Cash and chegues in hand 83.45 2709
Remittances in transit 86.39 286.04
@ Balances with banks and financial institutions
Time deoasits 1,496.60 1.201.34
Foreign currency bank balances 36.08 37.75
Other balances 1,060.09 734.11

2,762.81 2,286.33




Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited Annual Report 2006 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - US GAAP

RANBAXY LABORATORIES LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006 and 20056
Al amounts in Rupses Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE F - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABRLE

Accounts receivable as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are stated net of allowance for daubtful accounts, sales returns and
chargebacks. The Group Companies maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts on all accounts receivable, based on the
present and prospective financial condition of the custorner and ageing of the accounts receivable after considering historical
experience and the current ecencmic environment. Accounts receivable are generally not secured.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005 debtors’ breakup is as follows :

2006 2005
Grass debiors 15,977.468 11,448.04
Less : Allowance for doubtful deb's 378.25 210.08
Balance at the end of the year 15,599.43 1,237.96
The activity in the allowance for deubtful accounts receivable during the years ended Decernber 31, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:
2006 2005
Balance at the beginning of the year 210.08 32014
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable for the year 213.60 29.66
Recoveries during the year {11.52] (20.32)
Accounts receivable written off during the year {33.91}) 1119.40)
Balance at the end of the year 378.25 210.08
NOTE G - INVENTORIES
As of Decemnber 31, 2006 and 2005 inventories consisted of the following
2006 2005
Finished goods 7,527.20 4,459.27
Work-in-process 2,485.21 1,996.64
Raw materials 5,262.56 452579
Packing matenals 717.45 598.27
15,997.42 13,539.97
NOTE H - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment comprise of the following :
2006 2005
Freehold land 746.80 250.53
Leasehold tand and improvements 208.34 207.33
Buildings 6,008.08 4,279.54
Plani and machinery 16,993.08 12,666.46
Furniture and fixtures 719.36 593.32
Office equipment 2,800.23 2,500.74
Vehicles 727.30 359.47
Capital work-in-progress 3,538.07 5,598.24
31,741.26 26,455.73
Less: Accumulated depreciation 12,042.35] (9.130.62]

19,698.91 17,3251
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NOTE H /contmued/

Capital lease assets {included in the above] comprise of the fcl.owing :

2006 2005

Buildings §73.38 425.74
Plant and machinery 50.53 1.20
Office equipment s 4,78 43.06
Vehicles 27.42 .14
756.11 684.14

Less: Accumulated depreciation ! (183.60} (53.39)
572.51 630.95

to purchase the buildings recorded under capita

During the term of the lease, but not later than eighteen montrs prior to the expiration of the lease term, the Group has an option

lease assets ahave.

Depreciation expense for assets acquired under capital lease far the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was Rs.125.78

million and Rs. 45.36 million, respectively. |

The minimum lease rentals and the present value of min mum lease payments as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are under

mentioned :
Rs. in Million
2006 2005
a)  Minimum lease payments outstanding 647.55 790.60
bl Present value of minimum lease paymente 561.44 651.17
c]  Amounts due Mirimum lease payments Present value of m nimum

(Rupees Million) lease payments [Rupees Million}

2006 2005 2006 2005
il notlater than ane year 77.24 116.64 56.05 85.91
il later than one year but 307.82 306.60 252.22 260.08
not later than five years
i) later than five years 282.49 367.36 253.17 305.18
NOTE | - INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Invesiment securities comprise of the following :
As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Gross Gross
Carrying unrealized Carrying unrealized
value losses Fair value value losses Fair value
Equity securities 200.04 [57.42) 142.62 14.52 i2.37) 12.15
Non-marketable
equity securit es 154.51 (0.50) 154.01 152.51 {0.50) 152.01
Equity affiliate 299.50 - 2%9.50 254,93 - 254.93
Readity marketable
debt securities 41 - &N 492 - £12
658.16 (57.92} 600.24 426.08 {2.87) 423.21
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NOTE J - OTHER ASSETS

Cther assets comprise of the following :
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2006 2005

Prapaid expenses 392.7¢ 352.9¢C
Loans and advances 442 .44 231.94
Trade advances 797.67 324.97
Balances with statutory authorities, 1,946.39 1,974.06
Deposits 921.73 964.43
Others 161.460 238.94
4,662,482 4,087.26

Less: Current assets (3,619.99) (3,416.30}
1,042.63 670.96

NOTE K - BORROWINGS FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The Company and certsin group Sompanies have availed working capital and short terrn loans from banks and financial
institutions, expiring at various da:es during 2007 providing an aggregate borrowing capability of Rs, 28 hillion, primarily to
finance their warking capital requirements. The interest rates for these facilities are primar ly based on the London Inter-bank
(ffer Rate ["LIBOR"] or the Euro Inter-bank Offer Rate {"EURIBOR"), with lacal currency borrewings being based on country-
specific benchmark rates. Accordizgly, interest rates ranged from 3.0 percent to 19.0 percent, with the majorily averaging at
approximately 5.5 percent. Details of the borrowings from banks are as follows :

2006 2005

Overdraft facilities 2,996.54 1,624.12
Shart term loans 10,604.10 12,123.90
13,600.74 13,748.02

Amajority of these facilities are secared by some of the underlying assets of the borrowing entity and contain financial covenants
and restrictions on indebtedness. These borrowings are further supported by the following :

2004 2005
Corporate guarantee issued by RLL - 166.47
Corporate guarantee issued by RN3V and Letter of comfort from RLL 429.59 541.356
Letter of comfort / Letter of awareness from RLL 1,866.03 3,047.88
Secured by Charge over assets 2,808.31 486289
Sub-total 5,103.93 8.618.40
Unsecured loans 8,496.81 5129.42
Total 13,600.74 13,748.02

The aggregate of Corporate guarantees issued by RNBV in respect of the berrowings from banks is a maximum of Rs. 4,455.95
million. The terms of the guarantees are in accordance with the tenor of the loans/credit facilities. The guarantees can be involed only

in the event of default in repayment ay the borrowing entity.
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NOTE L - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt comprises of the following -

2006 2005

Secured term loans from banks - 30.63
Unsecured term loans from banks 5.828.7 5,558.08
Other unsecured loans 58.32 19.75
Zero coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonis (FCCB) 19.474.40 -
Capital lease obligations S61.44 65114
25,923.07 6.25%.50

Less : Current portion of long term debt {3,496.11] {3.142.86}
22,432.96 31674

Long-term debts other than unsecured foans and FCCB a-e s2cured by the property and /or plant and equipment andfor current
assets of the borrowing company and in certain ¢i:ses contain firancial covenants and restrictions on indebtedness. The borrowings
of some of ihe Group Companies are further supported by Corporate guarantees issued by RNBV. The terms of the guarantees are
in accordance with the tenor of the loans, The guarantees can be invoked only in the event of default n repayment by the borrowing
entity.

An interest rate profile of long-terr debt is given below :

2006 2005
Secured term loans from banks - 3.34 - 4.99 percent
. Unsecured term loans from banks 5.42 - 6.30 percent 0.30 - 4.89 percent
Other unsecured loans / FCCB / capital leases 4.00 - 6.00 percent 4.00 - 6.00 percent
The maturity profile of long-term debt outstanding is given below :
Year ending Unsecured loans Unsecured loans  Zero coupons long  Capital lease Total
December 31, from banks from others term convertible obligations
Debentures
2007 3,430.15 3.9 - 56.05 34900
2008 743.80 3.78 - 656.95 814.53
2009 - 8.06 - 64.32 72.38
2010 818.18 6.82 - 60.92 885.92
20m 834.78 473 19.474.40 60.03 20,375.94
Thereafter - 31.02 - 253.17 28419
NOTE M - OTHER LIABILITIES
Other liabilities comprise the foltowing :
2006 2005
Interest payable 26.48 27.78
Accrued interest 751.20 -
Acceptances 718 3013
Unclaimed dwvidends $7.71 69.35
Statutory dues 547.01 46537
Employees benefits payable 1,267.35 1.093.41
@ Other lLiabilities 436.52 419.09
3,133.45 2,305.13
Less : Other current liabilities {1,285.30} (1,344.42)

1,848.35 958.1
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NOTE N - STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

a)

bi

Common Stack

The Company presently has only o1e class of common stack. For atl matters submitted to vote in the stockholders’ meeting,
every holder of common stock, as reftected in the records of the Company on the date of the steckholders’ meeting has one vote
inrespect of each share held.

Dividends

Indian statutes mandate that the dividends shall be declared out of the distributable profits only after the transfer of up to
10 percent of net income computec in accordance with regulations to a general reserve. Skould the Company declare and pay
dividends, such dividends are required to be paid in Indian rupees to each hotder of equity shares in proportion to the number of
shares held to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date. Quring the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the
Company distributed dividends of R 5. 3167.26 miilion and Rs. 3,164.26 million, at the rate of 170 percent of commen stock in each
year.

During the year Ranbaxy Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Ranbaxy Unichem Company Ltd. and Ranbaxy Nigeria Ltd. distributed dividends to
stockholders, other than RNBV and RLL, of Rs. 4.74 million (2005 - Rs. 5.87 million} at the rate of 15 percent [2005 - 14.08
percent} of common stock, and Rs. *.G3 miltion (2005 - Rs. 0.51 miltion] at the rate of 7.50 percent (2005 - 4 percent) and Rs. 1.07
mitlion (2005 - Rs. Nil) at the rate cf 50 percent (2005 - Nil percent} of common stock, respectively.

NOTE O - EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

A reconciliation of net income and number of shares of the basic and diluted earnings per share computation frem continuing
operations is as follows :

2006 2005
Net Income
Income from continuing operations after minority interest 4,060.59 232.43
Income from discentinued cperations, net of tax effect - 161.88
Gain from disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax effect - 384.72
Net income 4,060.59 779.03
Number of shares
Basic weighted average numter of shares cutstanding 372,595,730 372,216,805
Effect of dilutive securities* {amployee stock options) 746,612 1,089,479
Diluted weighted average number of shares cutstanding 373,342,142 373,306,284
* excludes anti-dilutive securities 26,681,866 4,895,520

NOTE P - EMPLOYEE STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEMES

Share-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock options under the expense provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation” ["3FAS 1237, i.e., prior to adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Group had recognized compensation
cost |based on intrinsic vatue which is the latest closing price, prior to the date of the meeting of Baard of Directors in which the
options are granted] for all awards granted as a personnel cost over the vesting period. Also, the Company recorded all forfeitures
as they occurred.

Upon adoption of SFAS 123tR} in 2006, the Group recognized an expense of Rs. 332.33 million. This effect relates to an adjustrnent
of accrued compensation costs, wkich under SFAS 123(R) are required to be based an the estimated number of share-based
payment awards ta vest, with considiration of expected forfeitures. In additien, as a result of adopting SFAS 123(R), certain balance
sheet amounts associated with share-based compensation costs have been reclassified within the equity section of the balance sheet.
This change in presentation had nc effect on our tolal equity. Effective January 1, 2004, deferred compensation [representing
unearned costs of share-based payments| and employee stock options outstanding are presented on a net basis, with the net
amouni being reclassified inte additionat paid-in capital.

The fotlowing table llustrates the efect on net income and earnings per common share for “he current year and last year if the
Group had applied the fair value method to alt share-based awards.
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NOTE P fcontinued!

2006 2005
Net income
As reported 4,060.59 779.63
Add : Share-based compensation expense
included in reported net income 358.68 -
Less : Stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair vaiue based method fcr all awards 405.02 180.75
Adjusted pro forma for computing basic earning per share 4,014.25 598.28
Earnings per share : Basic
Asreported Rs. 10.90 Rs. 2.0%
Adjusted proforma Rs. 10.77 Rs. 1.61
Earnings per share : Diluted
As reported Rs. 10.88 Rs. 2.09
Adjusted pro forma Rs. 10.75 Rs. 1.60

As a result of adopting SFAS 123{R} on January 1, 2006, the Greup's net income for the year ended December 31, 2006, is
Rs. 332.33 million lower than if it had continued to account for share-based compensation under SFAS 123, 8asic and diluted
earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2006, would have been Rs. 11.79 and Rs. 11.77 if the Group had not adopted
SFAS 123(R), compared to reported basic and diwted earnings per share of Rs. 10.%0 and Rs. 10.88, respectively.

The Cornpany's Emplayee Stack Option Schernes ("ES0Ss"| provide for the grant of stock options to eligibie management employees
and Directors of the Company and eligible managzment empleyees and Directors of the subsidiaries. The ESOSs are administered by
the Board's {ompensation Commitiee. Options itre granted on the basis of performance and the grade of the employee. Presently,
we have three ES0Ss ("ESOS 1", "ESOS 1" and "E30S 20057}, Options can be distributed at the discretion of the cornmittee to select
employees depending upan (il Criticality of the sositian held, li) Potential of the Manager and [iiil Significant contribution made
during the year.

The ES0Ss limit grants to an employee is 23,000 options for E$0S | and 46,000 options for ESOS It and ESQS 2005 in any given
year. ESOS | and |l provide that the exercise price of options is to be determined at the average of the daily closing price of the
Company's equity shares on the National Stock £xchange ["NSE"] during a period of 26 weeks preceding the date cf the grant.
ES0S 2005 provides that the exercise price of uptions will be the latest available closing price or the Steck exchange on which
the shares of the Company are listed, prior to the date of the meeting of the Committee of Directors in which the options are
granted. If the shares are listed on more thar one stack exchange, then the stock exchange where there is highest trading
volume on the said date shatl be considered. The options ves! over a pericd of five years from the date of grant with 20 percent of
the options vesting at the end of each year. Options lapse if they are not exercised prior to the expiry date, which is ten years from
the date of the grant.

As the nurnber of shares that an individual employee is entitled to receive and the price of the option is known on the grant date,
the grants made pursuant to the ESQSs are cosidered fixed grants,
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NOTE P [fcontinued)

Stock option activity under the Schemes is as follows

Year ended December 31, 20046

Weighted- Weighted-

average average

Range of exercise remaining

Stock options exercise prices price contractual life

(numbers) (Rs.) (Rs.] {years)

Outstanding, beginning of the year 6,704,838 283.50 - 538.50 456.13 8.05

Granted during the year 1,221,300 3%92.00 392.00 9.10

Forfeited during the year {676,430) 283.50 - 538.50 47242 -

Exercised during the year (181,883) 283.50 - 538.50° 315.24 -

Lapsed during the year (216,845]  283.50 - 538.50 471.18 -

Outstanding, end of the year 6,850,980 283.50 - 538.50 446,35 7.39

Exercisable at the end of the year 2,282,437  2B3.50 - 538.50 417.60 -

Year ended December 31, 2005

Weighted- Weighted-

average average

Range of exercise remaining

Stock options exercise prices price contractual life

{numbers] [Rs.} [Rs.] [years]

Outstanding, beginning of the year 5,039,620 283.50 - 496.00 397.39 8.29

Granted during the year 3,013,350 538.50 538.50 9.16

Forfeited during the year {802,914) 283.50 - 538.50 473.64 -

Exercised during the year (488,802 283.90 - 496.00 329.67 -

Lapsed during the year (56,416) 283.50 - 496.00 455.14 -

Outstanding, end of the year 6,704,838 283.50 - 538.50 45633 8.05

Exercisable at the end of the year 1,281,584 28350 - 496.00 36351 -
The fellowing tabte summarizes infarmation about stock options cutstanding at December 31, 2006 :
Options outstanding Options exercisable

Range of Number of Weighted Weighted Number of Weighted

exercise prices outstanding average average outstanding average

remaining exercise exercise

contractuat life price price

Up to Rs. 283.50 997,739 6.10 Rs. 283.50 509,814 Rs. 283.50

Rs. 284.00-Rs 372,50 Ns 09 498 Rs. 343.023 574,346 Rs. 338.69

Rs. 373.00-Rs 538.50 5,135,132 798 Rs. 492.44 1,198,277 Rs, 512.48

6,850,980 7.39 Rs. 446,35 2,282,437 Rs. 417.60

The foliowing is a summary of the cnanges in non-vested shares for the year ended Decernber 31, 2006:

Shares Weighted average

exercise price

Non-vested shares at January 1, 2006 5,413,736 475.67
Granted during the year 1,221,330 392.00
Vested during the year {1,449,517) 44718
Forfeited during the year {676,430 472.42
Nen-vested shares at December 31, 2006 4,509,289 462.65
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NOTE P fcontinued/
Pursuant to the tssue of bonus shares on October 11, 2002, the employees to whom options were granted until October 4, 2002,
are entitled for additional shares on exercise of options i1 the ralio of "three for five",

The fair value of instruments issued under the vhare-based compensation plans is calculated using Btack-Schotes model. The
following table summarizes the assumptiors used in caliulat ng the fair value in the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 :

2006 2005
Dividend yield 2.17 percent 2.50 percent
Expected life 10 years 10 years
Risk free interest rate 7.55 percent 7.G0 percent
Volatility 40.55 percent 32.23 percent

The expected forfeiture rate, computed by the e dernal veluer, is taken as 11.38%. The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was
developed for estimating fair value of traded oftions tha: have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. Since options

. pricing models require use of subjective assumyp-iions, changes therein can materially affect fair value of the options. The options
pricing models do not necessarily provide a reliable measure of fair value of the options.

NOTE Q - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of our business we have ¢ ntered into transactions for purchase and sale of goods and services with some

. of the related parties in which our directors exercise significant influence, hereinafter referred as "Significant Interest Enlities.”

The Company has also made payments for rensuneration to its key management personnel and their relatives in accordance

‘. with their employment contracts. All these purchase and sz .e transactions were arm’s-tength transactions and none of these
were material to our overall operations.

The following is a surnmary of related party transactions during the year :

Purchases from 2006 2005
Significant Interest Entities 1.19 -
Sales to
Associate 165.86 676
Significant Interest Entities 2513 2.99

Other expenses paid to

Significant Interest Entities an -

Other expenses received from
Significant Interest Entities 159.14 22.27

Related party balances at year-end coemprise the following :

Amounts due from

Associate . 24.64 673
Significant interest Entities 10.95 1.52
e . . 35.59 8.25

Amounts due to
Significant Interest Entities 7.80 0.06
7.80 0.06
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NOTE R - INCOME TAXES

The pravision for income taxes corrprises the fallowing:

2006 2005
Income [/ [loss] before income taxes
Domestic 3,377.43 782.09
Fareign 1.630.05 (1.544.19)
5,007.48 (762,101
Income from discontinued of erations - 241.29
Gain from disposal of discontinued operations - 4972
5,007.48 (25.09)
Current income tax expense / {henefit]
Domestic taxes (213.64) 273.92
Foreign taxes 338.80 179.70
Deferred income tax expense / [benefit]
Domestic taxes 382.78 (601.58)
Foreign taxes 381.64 [686.54)
Total 889.58 {834.50)
Less:Tax on Discontinued operations
Current tax expense - [193.73)
Deferred tax benefit - 7.32
B89.58 {1,020.91)

The reported income tax expanse differed from amounts computed by applying the enacted tax rates to income / [loss) before
income faxes as a result of the following :

2006 2605
Income / [loss} before income taxes and minority interest 5,007.48 (762.10)
Enacted tax rate for India 33.66% 33.66%
Computed expected {ax expens: / {benefitl 1,685.52 [256.52]
Effect of :
Valuation allowance 141.36 106.54
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 163.57 {47.77)
Differences between Indian and foeign lax rates ' 160.51) {103.89)
income exempt from income taxes (56.94) [10.79]
Incremental deduction altowed for research and develapment expenses (884.54) (1.081.82)
Tax earlier years (154.20) 116.56
Tax rate change c.14 179.27
Qthers 55.18 77.51

Income tax expense / (benefit] 889.58 1.020.91)
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NOTE R /continued!

The tax effect of significant temporary differences that resiltes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities and a description of the
iterns that create those differences are given below. The classification of the deferred tax assets and ligbilities is determined based on
the transaction from which the timing difference arises. Non-current deferred tax assets and liabilities are shown separately due to
the tax jurisdiction in which the timing difference wrises.

2004 2005

Current deferred income tax assets, net
Allowance for accounts receivable 119.51 17.55
Inventory related 761.06 726.90
Net operating losses carried forward - 463.17
Capital lease obligations 1.35 1.42
Other current assets 332.87 220.9?
Current liabilities (115.67) 286.23
Accounts payable (7.98] 19.68]
Total current deferred income tax asset 1,091.14 1,806.51
Non-current deferred income tax assets
Intangibles 194.74 217.43
Property, plant and equipment - . 0.16
Capital lease cbligations 0.63 1.72 ’
Net operating losses carried forward 1.495.90 - 1,675.6%
Other non-current liabilities 317.41 "t 9.04
Other non-current assets 60.18 17.47
Investments 19.49 . 0.05
Less : Valuation allowance in respect of net ope-ating losses carned forward (296.31) o [148.08!
Total non-current deferred income tax asset 1,792.04 1,753.44
Non-current deferred incomne tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (1,697.08) 1,600.33

(1,697.08) (1,606.33)
Net non-current deferred incomne tax asset 94.96 15311

The enacted tax rate in India is 33.66 percent but the effective tax rate for the Group is 17.77 percent. The reduction in the effective
tax rate is mainly en account of earnings derived from units set up in specified zone within India for which the Company is etigible
for tax concessions under the lecal laws and the incrermental deductions available under Indizn tax laws for research and
develapment activities,

In assessing tne realizability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether it is mare likely than net that some
portion ar all of the deferred income tax assets will be reatizad.

The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assels is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the
perieds in which the temporary differences bezome deductible. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered
realizable, however, could be reduced in the nea * term If estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are
reduced,

Avaluation allowance has been established agai st the deferred income tax assets on account of the tax effects of the operating
losses carried forward of certain subsidiary companies. As at December 31, 2604 and 2005, the value of net operating losses
considered realizable and correspondingly the rmimmum leve. of future taxable inceme required to realize these losses were
Rs. 2,633.10 million and Rs. 1,934.05 million, respectively. Tre applicable local tax laws altow the net operating tosses to be
carried ferward as long as the respective entity continues its business,

Deferred income taxes on undistributed earnings. of the Group's overseas operations have not been recognized as such earnings
are considered to be indefimtely reinvested and it 1s not practicable to calculate the deferred taxes associated with these earnings.
The aggregate undistributed earnings conside-ed to be indefinitely reinvested are approximately Rs. 8,757.19 million and
Rs, 4,011.21 mitlion as of Decermber 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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NOTE S - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT FLANS

al Gratuity

In accordance with applicable Indiar laws, the Company and its Indian subsidiaries provide for gratuity, a defined benefit retirernent
plan covering eligible employees ['the Gratuity Plan’]. This Plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees on
retirernent, death, incapacitation or termination of employment of amounts that are based on salary and tenure of employment.
Liahilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation and contributed to the Gratuity Fund Trust
["the Trust™]. Trustees administer contributions made to the Trust and invest in specific designated securities as mandated by
law, which generally comprise Centrat and State government bonds and debt instruments of government-owned corporations.

The following tahle sets out the funded status of the Gratuity Plan and the amounts recognized in the Group's consolicated
financial statements :

2004 2005
Change in the benefit obligations
Projected Benefit Obligations ["PB0"] at the beginning of the year 263.3 236.30
Service cost 26.89 24.54
Interest cost 23.20 17.72
Actuarial loss 15.97 12.46
Benefits paid 24,20) [27.7)
PBO at the end of the year 305.17 263.3i
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beg nning of the year 26715 239.95
Actual return on plan assets 19.94 1615
Employer contributions 51.67 38.76
Benefits paid (24.20) (27.7i)
Benefits payable (9.41) -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 30517 267.15
Net gratuity cast for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, included the following compenents :

2006 2005
Service cost 26.89 24.54
Interest cost 23.20 17.72
Actuarial loss 15.97 12.46
Net gratuity cost 66.06 54.72
The actuarial assumptions used in accounting for the Gratuity Ptan were as follows :

2006 2005
Discount rate 8.0% 7.5%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.50% 5.0%
Rate of return cn plan assets 8.0% 8.0%

The expected long-term return on plan assets is based on the expectation of the average long-term rate of return expected to
prevail over the next 15 - 20 years on the types of investments prescribed as per the statuto-y pattern of investment.

The Company's Gratuity Plan weight >2d-average asset allocations at December 31, 2006 and 205, are fully in the debt instruments
category.

The Company expects to contribute 3s. 56.00 million te its gratuity plan during the year ending December 31, 2007. The following
benefit payments, based on fuiure services of employees, as appropriate, are expected to be paid :

Year ending December 31,

2007 28.55
2008 32.05
2009 35.03
2010 39.00
201 43.55
Thereafter 305.00

in respect of certain other employees of the Company, the gratuity benefit is provided through annual contributions to a fund
managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India ["LIC™). Under this plan, the settlement obligation remains with the Company,
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NOTE § /continued!
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¢)

although LIC administers the fund and determings the ann sal contribution premium required to be paid by the Company. Expenses
incurred in respect of thesa ernployees approx mated Rs. 6.20 million and Rs. 1.79 million for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Superannuation benefit

Apart from being covered under the Gratuity Plan described earlier, certain employees of the Company and its Indian subsidiaries
participate in a superannuation benefit; a defined contribution plan administered by LIC. The Company and its Indian subsidiaries
make annual contributions hased on a specifie 3 percentage of salary of each covered employee. The Company and its Indian
subsidiaries do nat have any further obligation t3 the supzrannuation pian beyond making such contributions, Upon retirement
or separation [only if after completion of service of 5 years] a1 employee becomes entitled for pension, as determined by LIC,
which is paid directly to the concerned employes. The Company and its Indian subsidiaries contributed approximately Rs. 61.26
miliion and Rs. 40.50 million to the superannuation plan du-ing the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

Pension plans

The Company has a retirement Pension Plan ("Pension Flan™) which is linked to superannuation benefits described above. This
Pension Plan is applicable for certain managemznt employees who retire after completion of service of 10 years or are separated
after completion of service of 20 years, based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment. Such pension amount is reduced
by the amount payable by LIC under the superannuation plan and is payable as additionat pension. The liability for such additional
pension is determined and provided on the basis of actuariat valuation.

The foltowing table sets out the status of the pension plan and the amounts recognized in the Group’s cansolidated financial
statements :

2006 2005
Change in the benefit obligations
Projected Benefit Obligations [*PBO"} at the beyinning of the year 845,23 628.30
Service cost 55.31 52.56
Interest cost 76.61 4732
Actuarial loss 1.34 136.03
Benefits paid (20.84) [18.78}
PBO at the end of the year 957.65 845.23
Net pensicn cost for the years ended Decembe- 31, 2004 and 2805, included the following components :

2004 2005
Service cost 55.31 52.56
Interest cost 76.61 4712
Actuarial toss ' 1.34 136.03
Net pension cost 133.26 2351
The actuarial assumptions used in accounting " or the Pension Plan were as follows :

2006 2005
Discount rate 8.0% 7.5%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.5% 5.0%

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid -

Year ending December 31,

2007 23.55
2008 27.08
2009 3145
2010 36.G0
20m 38.50
Thereafter 340.00

RLL has contributed approximately Rs. 126,74 millian and Rs. 235.27 mitlion to the pension scheme during the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 200%, respectively,
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NOTE S [continuad]

d)

el

f)

Deferred compensation plan

RP} maintains a nonquatified, deferred compensation plan for certain executive employees, Each participating employee may
elect to defer up te 100 percent of .heir compensation. The employses' cantributions to the Plan are invested in certain funds
based on each employee’s investment election and the fair market value of those funds are recorded as a long-term asset with
a corresponding liability representing future benefits payable to the employees.

Vacation pay plan

RLL and its Indian subsidiaries perrait encashrment of privilege leave accumulated by their employees on retirement, separation
and during the course of service (the "Vacation Pay Plan"}. The liability for encashment of privilege leave is determined and
provided on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at balance sheet date.

The following table sets out the stat is of the Vacation Pay Plan of RLL and the corresponding amounts recognized in the Group's
consolidated financial statements :

2006 2005
Change in the benefit obligation:
Projected Benefit Obligations ["PB0"] at the beginning of the year 138.07 127.78
Service cost 22., 19.76
Interest cost 11.05 9.58
Actuariat loss 23.66 11.09
Benefits paid (35.57) {30.14)
PBO at the end of the year 159.32 138.07
Net vacation pay cost for the years anded December 31, 2006 and 2005, included the following components :

2006 2005
Service cost 22.61 19.76
Interest cost 11.08 9.58
Actuariat loss 23.56 1.09
Net vacation pay cost 57.32 40.43
The actuarial assumptions used in accounting for the Vacation pay plan were as follows

2004 2005
Discount rate 8.0% 7.5%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.5% 5.0%

RLL and its Indian subsidiaries proviiled approximately Rs. 94.33 million and Rs. £5.13 million towards the liability for encashement
of privilege leave for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Other benefit plans

RLL and certain group companies a so have defined contribution plans, which are largely governed by local statutory laws of the
respective countries and cover the zligible employees of the subsidiary, These plans are funded both by the members and by
maonthly company contributions, pnmarily based on a specified percentage of the employeas’ salary. The total contribution to
these schemes during the years enced December 31, 2006 and 2005, &re Rs. 212.3Z millicn and Rs. 224.45 mitlion, respectively.

RPI participates in a savings plan under Section 401(k} of the Internal Revenue Code ("Code”] covering substantially all etigible
empioyees. The plan allows for emg loyees to defer upto 15% of their annuat earnings {within limitations, as adjusted by Section
415(b}[1](A) of the Code] on a pre-tay basis through veluntary contributions to the plan.

The plan provides that RPI can male optionat contributians in an amount up te the maximum allowable by Section 404 of the
Code. Employees are 25 percent vested with regard to the employer's contribution following one year of service and fully vested
after three years of service. For the years ended Decernber 31, 2006 and 2003, the contribiutions to the alan were Rs. 30.56
million and Rs. 33.74 million, respectively.

Terapia, 8.A. {Terapia) provides Pos: Retirement benefit plan an retirement under which employees receive 2 bonus equal to a
gross average salary, in compliance with the provisions of the collective labour agreement, Both Terapia and its employees have
the obligation te contribute to the Ne tional Retirement Fund. Terapia has nc obligation of paying future benefits other than to the
Mational Retirement Fund, The obligation has been provided in the books amounting to Rs. 163.49 mitlion for the year ended
December 31, 2004.
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NOTE T - SEGMENT REPORTING

SFAS No. 131 “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”, sets out the standards for the way that
business enterprises report information about operating segments and related disclosures about products and services,
geographical areas and major customers.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Group's performance and allocates resources based on review of financial
informaticn on the following main disaggregated componenis of the Group's business :

al  Pharmaceuticals : global sales, detailes by regions and countries and global operaling income data. The Group’s
pharmaceuticat business operates in four main regiors : India, North America, Europe and Rest of the world.

bl  Research and development : expenses inc.urred on research and development, and
cl  Administration : corporate expenses.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic businesses aggregated by the nature of their preducts, customers, production
technologies and marketing methods. Accordingly, the Group provides information regarding its Pharmaceuticals segment
[dosage forms, active pharmaceutical ingredient and drug intermediates), trading in pharmaceutical products, drug discovery
research and novel drug delivery systems research, which is coliectively referred to as the "Pharmaceuticals” business.

The Company was also engaged in operations relating to charter of aircraft and financial services, referred to as "Others”
businesses. The Group has divested the busine ss of charter of aircraft during the year.

Revenue and expenditure in relation to segmenls is categorized based on items that are individually identifiable to that segment.
Information by business segments for the year ended December 31, 2006 :

Particulars Pharmaceuticals Others Total
Revenues 61,407.42 12.87 61,420.29
Less: Inter-segment revenue - - -
Net revenues 61,407.42 12.87 61,420.2%
Operating expenses
Cost of sales 29,465.74 - 29,465.74
Selling, general and administrative expens:s 19,641.68 1015 19,651.83
Depreciation and amortization 2,892.56 175 2,894.91
Research and development 3,982.42 - 3,982.42
55,982.40 11.90 55,994.30
Less : Inter-segment expenses - - -
Net operating expenses . 55,982.40 11.50 55,994.30
Net income before unallocated items 5,425.02 0.97 5,425.99
Reconciliation to net income
Financial expenses, net - - (1,582.15]
Foreign exchange gain - - 682.06
Other income, net - - 431.28
Income tax expense - - (889.58)
Equity in gain of affiliate - - 50.30
Minority interest - - (57.31]
Net incame as per consolidated statement of Income ' - - 4,060.59
Information relating to assets Pharmaceuticals Others Total
Total assets 76,018.75 702.24 76,720.99

Less :Inter-segment assets
Accounts receivable, net of allowances - - _
Other current assets, net of allowances - - _

Net assets employed 76,018.75 702.24 76,720.99
Unallocated corporate assets §,459.01
Total assets 82,180.00
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NOTE T fcontinved!

Information by business segments for the year ended December 31, 2005

Particulars Pharmaceuticals Others Total
Revenues 51,682.45 17.10 51,599.55
Less : Inter-segment revenue - (1.02} (1.02)
Net revenues 51,582.45 16.08 51,598.53
Operating expenses
Cost of sales 27.143.85 - 27.143.85
Selling, general and administrative expenses 17,239.25 16.08 17,255.32
Depreciation and amortization 1,711.34 6.65 1.717.99
Research and development 5,055.33 - 5,055.33
51,149.77 22.73 51.172.50
Less : Inter-segment expenses (1.02] - {1.02)
Net operating expenses 51,148.75 22.73 51,171.48
Net income before unallocated tems 433.43 (6.58) 427.05
Reconciliation to net income
Unallocated corporate expenses - - {19.78]
Financial expenses, net - - [495.61]
Foreign exchange loss - - (378.98)
Other income, net - - 300.49
Income tax benefit - - 1.020.91
Equity in gain of affitiate - - 47
income {rom discontinued operations,
net of tax effect of Rs. 79.41 mi lion - - 161,88
Gain from disposal cf discontinued operations,
net of tax effect of Rs. 107.00 mullion - - 384,72
Minority interest - - [26.38}
Net income as per consolidated statement of Income 779.03
Information relating to assets Pharmaceuticals Dthers Total
Total assets 53,996.08 732.98 54,729.06
Less : Inter-segment assets
Accounts receivable, net of allowances - - -
Other current assets, net of allowances - - -
Net assets employed 53,996.08 732.98 54,729.046
Unallocated corparate assets 5117.68
Total assets 59,846.74

NOTE U - FINANCIAL INSTRUMZNTS AND CONCENTRATIONS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Group to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents,
accounts receivables, other receivables, investment securities and deposits. By their nature, alt such financial instruments
involve risk including the credit risk. of non-performance by counter parties. The Group's cash equivalents and time deposits are
invested with banks. The Group moanitors the credit worthiness of its custemers o which it grants credit terms in the normal

course of the business.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, other receivables, accrued liabilities, and accounts
payable approximate fair value, because of the short-term maturities of these financial instruments. The carrying amounts of
capital lease obligations, long-term debt and time deposits approximate their fair values as these carry interest rates which
reflect market rate for borrowings with similar terms and maturities currently available t¢ the Company. The fair value of the
long term deposits cannot be estimated as the maturity of these deposits is not presently known.
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NOTE U fcontinved!

RLL and Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals, Inc. [RPt) accounted for approximately 40 percent and 28 percent (45 percent and 29 percent
for 2045} of the Group's consolidated revenues. in the fisca, 2006. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, three [previcus year two}
customers of RPl accounted for approximately 20 percent ard 21 percent of the Group's gross accounts receivable, respectively.
The Company enters into certain forward foreigin exchange contracts where the counter party is generally a bank, The Company
does not consider the risk of non-performance by the counterparty te be significant. The currency-hedged items are mainly
denominated in the following currencies : Unitec States Dollar (US $) and Japanese Yen [Yen). The aggregate contracted principal
of the Company's derivative financial instrumen s sutstardirg as at December 31, 2006 and 20095, are Rs. 28,045.89 millien and
Rs. 306,947.95 million, respectively. The forward foreign exchange contracts mature between one month and twelve months.

NOTE V - COMMITMENTS AND CONTIMGENCIES

RLE and the Group companies lease office premises and rasidentiat facilities under both cancelable and non cancelable operating
leases. Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, is approximatety Rs. 462.28 million and Rs. 433.05
million, respectively.

The minimum rental commitments under the ron cancelable operating leases are approximatety as follows :

Year ending December 31, Rupees Million
2007 101.34
2008 94.65
200% 72.81
2010 37.32
2011 3829
Thereafter 96,48
Other Contingencies

RLL and some Group companies are invelved ir certain claims, tax assessments and litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business, primarily related to alleged patent infringement for products that the Group currently manufactures, sells or distributes
or intends to manufacture, sell or distribute. In certain claims and litigation, the Group companies are named as a co-defendant,
along with others, including RLL. Further, certa n of the Group 's preducts have a higher regulatory risk profile, and accordingly
the Group has increased its product tiability ccverage. The Group evaluates the requirements for establishing provisions for
such claims, assessments and litigation pursuant to SFAS No. 5 - Accounting for Contingencies. Management believes that
these matters, taken individually or in the aggre gate, will not have material adverse impact on the Group's financial position or
results of operations.

A summary of the contingencies existing at Deccember 31, 2006 and 2605, is as follows :

2006 2005

Claims against the Company not acknowtedged as debts* 1,172.69 1.028.46
Third party guarantees io banks 71.68 2490
Demand for taxes pending disposal of appealis)* 216.45 208.58
1,460.82 1.261.94

* Includes Rs. 365.59 miltion {2005 - Rs. 311.70 million) deposited under appeal.

Interest on certain claims may be payable as anc when the oL :came of the related claim is determined and has not been included
above,

Capitat purchase commitrments of the Group a! December 31, 2006 and 2005, are Rs. 491.44 million and Rs. 589.20 miltion,
respectively.

Royalty Agreements

Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (RPY) has a roya.ty agreement with a third party for the payment of royalties relating to the sale
of certain preducts in the United States of America. The third party supplies active pharmaceutical ingredient to the Cornpany.
The Company, in turn, suppties the finished product to RF1. The total royalty expense incurved during 2006 and 2005, under this
royalty agreement is approximately Rs. 321.13 million and Rs. 331.4C million, respectively, and is included in cost of sales.
Approximatety Rs. 32.67 million and Rs. 3.44 miltion remained payable under the agreement as of December 31, 20G4 and 2005,
respectively, and is included in “accounts payatle” on the balance sheet.
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NOTE W - RAN AIR SERVICES LIMITED AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

During 2006, the Company had reazhed an understanding with Reigus Aviation Private Limited [Reigus) on the divestment of its
entire shareholding in equity shares of Ran Air Services Limited, consisting of the aviation business, The sale was effective from
April 1, 2006. :

The Company has classified the assets, liabilities, and results of operations for the aviation business pertfolio as discentinued
operations in accordance with SFAS 144. The following table reflects the carrying values and business operations of the primary
components of the business dispoced.

Description 2006 2005
Land

Property, plant and equipment 44.05 45.78
Accounts receivable, net of allowarices 2.27 1.7
inventory 2m 1.47
Other assets 3.52 415
Total assets ' 51.95 53.1
Accounts payable 1.32 0.97
Other liabilities 53,77 5775
Net assets of discontinued operations (3.14) [5.61}

Prior to sale, the aviation services business portfolio constituted & small operation and was reported as a part of "Others”
business segment.

The following amounts relate to the business operations of Ran Air Services Limited thal the Company agreed to sell as at
March 31, 2006 :

Description 2006 2005
Net revenue 12.87 17.10
Selling, general and administration 10.07 16.01
Depreciation and amortization 1.75 b.64
Operating income 1.05 [5.55]
Interest expense - 0.01
Other income (0.01) (0.33
Income / Hloss) before income tax 1.06 (5.433
Income tax {benefit) / expense (1.41) 1.63
Income / lloss) after tax 2.47 (7.06}

During 2006 the assets, other than those related to discontinued operations, consisting of mainly land. buildings, plant and
equipment amounting to Rs. 592.66 million is classified as held for sale, because the carrying amount of these assels and
liabilities were expected to be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets
hetd for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to setl,

NOTE X - SERIOUS FRAUD OFFICE CASE

During the year, UK Serious Fraud Office {"SF0"] has brought criminal preceedings against ten defendants including Ranbaxy
{UK} Limited for the offence of conspiracy to defraud the Secretary of State for Health and others concerned with the provision of
medicinal preducts by fixing and rr aintaining the price, etc., during the period April 1, 1998, to September 30, 2000. The trial is
scheduled to commence in January 2008, Ranbaxy [UK] Limited, if found guilty, will be subjected to a fine, However, the management
doesn't deem it necessary to make any provision against such proceedings, since the likelihood of biabilities from this matter is
considered remaote.

NOTE Y - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FDA investigation

On February 14, 2007, federal officiais, led by the FOA, conducted a search at the New Jersey premises of the US subsidiaries of
the Group. The Group is cooperatin with the officials in connection with the investigation,

At present, the investigation is in its. preliminary stages and the cutcome and related impact of the same, if any, on the financials
of the Group cannot be determined
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RECONILIATION BETWEEN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS UNDER INDIAN GAAP AND U.S. GAAP

Materisl differences between the financial statem ants undzr the Indian GAAP and U.S. GAAP are primarily attributable to the
requirements of U.5. GAAR far accounting of depreciation of property, plant and equipment, accounting for cost incurred for
acquiring rights for product under development und forward foreign exchange contracts, cost of employee stock incentive
scheme, treatment of expenses relating te foreign currency convertible bonds which are summanzed below -

Description Indian GAAP U.5. GAAP

Depreciation of property, At rates prescribid under respective Based on estimated useful life

ptant and equipment demestin laws ard regulation of assets

Forward foreign exchange Premiurs earned/paid accounted in Contracts that are not

contracts income statement over the term of effective hedges are recorded
contracts ' at year end at their fair value

and resultant gain / loss
recognized in the results
of operations

Cost incurrad for acquiring Capitalized as intangible assets under Charged to income statement in
rights for product the heac "Product development” and the year in which it is incurred
under development subsequent expenditures on development

of such products are also added to the
cost of intangibles

Foreign currency convertible Expensed off frar share premium Charged to income staternent

bonds issue costs

Premium on redemption of Expensed off fror share premium Charged to income statement

foreign currency convertible bonds

Costs of employee stock Costs based on intrinsic value method Costs based on fair value

incentive scherne method as per "Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation”
{"SFAS 123R"}

A reconcitiation of net income as per Indian GAAP and U.5. GAAP is set out below :

Rs. in Million

2006 2005
Net income after minority interest as per U.S. GALP 4,061 779
Add :
Additional depreciation and amertization 1.051 260
Casts incurred for acquiring product under develcpment including subsequent expenditures 51 342
Issue casts of foreign currency convertible bonds 36 -
Interest on foreign currency convertible bonds payable at tne time of redemption 751 -
Costs of employee stock incentive scheme i.e. fair value vs. intrinsic value 332 -
Translation gain on integral operation taken to incorne staterment in IGAAP 455 -
Forward {oreign exchange coniracts at fair value at year end - 1,457
Less: '
Forward foreign exchange contracts at fair value &t year end 1,092 -
Deferred taxes 108 189
Current tax earlier years 312 -
Others 122 72

Net income after minority interest as per Indian GAAP 5,103 2,617




Concept Note

As Ranbaxy accelerates its pace towards Vision 2012, it is constantly expanding its global
footprint across developed and emerging markets, progressing ‘Towards Global Leadership,’
the underlying theme of the Annual Report thisyear.

Ta symholize the organization's global reach and influence, a globe with several faces set within
the lines of latitude and longitude, represents Team Ranbaxy, czmprising over 11,000 people of 51
nationalities. It portrays a cultural assimilation of peoples’ strength and commitment, which cuts
acrossall boundaries and propels them towards a ccmmon goal.

The orange lines of latitude and longitude [Ranbaxy's house color] are indicative of the expansion
and sirategic acquisitions of the Company, that have seamtessly progressed and have
transior med the arganization into a key global player inthe pharmaceutical industry,
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